
Agenda Item 

December 8, 2021 

TO: City Council 

FROM: Eric Swenson, Mayor 

SUBJECT: Committee Appointments 

The following appointments are made, subject to the approval of the Council. 
Please forward any adverse comments to me prior to the Council meeting on 
Monday, December 13, 2021. No reply is required if you approve of my decision.  

Woodburn Budget Committee 
Steven Kufeldt 
Elida Sifuentez 
John Reinhardt 

Woodburn Library Board 
Katrina Chatfauros 
Nancy Kirksey 
Cynthia Branger Munoz 

Woodburn Public Art Mural Committee 
Mary Beth Cornwell 
Sharon Corning 
Brenda Valentin-Bravo 
Judy Massaia 

Woodburn Parks and Rec Board 
Kasi Pankey 

Woodburn Tourism Advisory Committee 
Lisa Ellsworth 

Woodburn Planning Commission 
Anabel Hernandez-Mejia 

1



CITY OF WOODBURN 
APPLICATION FOR COMMISSION/COMMITTEE/BOARD MEMBER 

 

 

For City Use Only 
 
 

Dated Received:    

Mayor’s Decision:    

Name:   Date:   

Present Address:   

City/State/Zip:   

Phones:   Work:   Home:   Cell:   

Email: 

Years Lived In Woodburn:   

Occupation:   

Education:   

Address for Past 5 Years:   

City/State/Zip:   

Registered Voter:  � Yes       � No                                                  Resident of Woodburn:  � Yes       � No 

Commission/Committee/Board Applying For (excluding City Council and Mayor position): 

 �  Woodburn Budget Committee 
 �  Woodburn Library Board 
 �  Woodburn Planning Commission 
 �  Woodburn Mural Committee 

�  Woodburn Global Inclusion Advisory Committee 
�  Woodburn Recreation and Parks Board  
�  Other (Specify)   

Why you want to apply:   

 

 

 

 

What experience/expertise/interest do you have for this group?   

 

 

 

 

 
 
When you apply, it is understood that you will be volunteering to attend all meetings and to 
actively participate. Commissions/Committees/Boards generally meet once monthly during 
the evening hours. Some groups may meet more often, if necessary. THIS FORM IS NOT AN 
APPLICATION FOR A CITY COUNCIL OR MAYOR POSITION.   
 

A resume may be attached to this application but is not required. 

Anabel Hernandez-Mejia 12.08.2021

1750 Park Ave. #D-101
Woodburn, OR 97071

530.953.9658
anabelhm@fhdc.org

2
Resident Leadership Coordinator, FHDC

BS Marketing & BS Special Events & Tourism - CSU Chico

2173 Donnovan Ave.
Corning, Ca 96021

   4317 Brookfield Ave

                    Tillamook, OR 97141

X

X X

                                          Enjoy being part of my community. From previous experience being involved in my hometown's

chamber of commerce, the community in only as great as its actively involved members. From continuing the memorable 

traditions to bringing innovative twists, it is the becoming involved to make those desired differences. In regard to planning,

this was a missing piece in my small hometown. At the time, was young and felt without the capacity to build or advocate 

for a strategic planning committee. Now that the stars align, would like to take up the opportunity 

                                                                                                                 Have been working with Farmworker Housing

Developmente Corp. (FHDC) for over 2.5 years although more directly with residents' needs and community building. 

Community building and involvement are areas of interest as a member and seeing my family's future in it. In similar

manner, working with the families that I do, am aware with some of the community needs. Am able to understand 

multiple points of view and find middle ground within reason.

2

Anabel
Inserted Text
Anabel Hernandez-Mejia



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 8, 2021 

Page 1 - Council Meeting Minutes, November 8, 2021 

  
DATE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, CITY OF WOODBURN, COUNTY OF 
MARION, STATE OF OREGON, NOVEMBER 8, 2021 
 
CONVENED   The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor Swenson presiding. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Mayor Swenson Present  
Councilor Carney Present  
Councilor Cornwell Present 
Councilor Schaub Present- via video conferencing 
Councilor Swanson Present - via video conferencing  
Councilor Puente Present 
Councilor Cabrales Present- via video conferencing  
 
Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, City Attorney Shields, Assistant City Administrator 
Row, Police Chief Pilcher, Community Development Director Kerr, Economic Development 
Director Johnk, Human Resources Director Gregg, Public Works Projects and Engineering 
Director Liljequist, Public Works Operations Director Stultz, Finance Director Turley, Public 
Affairs and Communications Coordinator Moore, Economic Development Specialist Setzer-
Lemon, City Recorder Pierson 
  
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Mayor Swenson announced the following:  
• City Hall, the Library, and Transit Services will be closed on November 11 in observance of 

Veterans Day. The Aquatic Center will be open normal hours. 
 
• City Hall and the Library will be will be closed November 25 and 26 for the Thanksgiving 

Holiday. The Aquatic Center will be closed November 25 for the Thanksgiving Holiday. Transit 
Services will be closed on November 25 for the Thanksgiving Holiday but will be open normal 
business hours on Friday, November 26.  

 
• The City Council meeting scheduled for November 22, 2021, is cancelled.  The next City Council 

meeting will take place on December 13, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
Community Services Director Cuomo provided updated information on COVID-19 in Woodburn.  
 
Economic Development Director Johnk and Economic Development Specialist Setzer-Lemon 
provided information on the North Marion County Employment Hub. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Woodburn City Council minutes of October 25, 2021, 
B. Building Activity for October 2021. 
Carney/Cornwell… adopt the Consent Agenda. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 3166 - AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO REAPPORTIONMENT 
OF WARD BOUNDARIES, REPEALING ORDINANCE 2483, AND DECLARING AN 

3



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 8, 2021 

Page 2 - Council Meeting Minutes, November 8, 2021 

EMERGENCY  
Carney introduced Council Bill No. 3166. City Recorder Pierson read the bill twice by title only 
since there were no objections from the Council. City Administrator Derickson provided a staff 
report. On roll call vote for final passage, the bill passed unanimously. Mayor Swenson declared 
Council Bill No. 3166 duly passed. 
 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 3167–  AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE 2237 AS 
PART OF THE ORDINANCE REVIEW/REVISION PROJECT AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY  
Carney introduced Council Bill No. 3167. City Recorder Pierson read the bill twice by title only 
since there were no objections from the Council. Assistant City Administrator Row provided a 
staff report. On roll call vote for final passage, the bill passed unanimously. Mayor Swenson 
declared Council Bill No. 3167 duly passed. 
 
AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR AQUATIC CENTER DX RECOVERY 
UNIT REPAIR  
Community Services Director Cuomo provided a staff report.  Carney/Cornwell… authorize the 
City Administrator to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with Envise Inc. for the 
Aquatic Center DX Recovery Unit Repair in the amount of $113,392.00. The motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
City Administrator Derickson reported the following:  

• The dog park at Senior Estates will be discussed at the next Park Board Meeting and Karen 
Linton who brought the item to the City Council will attend that Park Board meeting to 
participate in the discussion of an off leash area.  

• Front Street trees damaged during ice storm are currently being removed and are 
scheduled to be replaced with healthy trees. Public Works Operations Director Stultz 
provided information on the trees to be removed and noted that they hope to have the trees 
replaced with smaller trees in early spring. He added that some of the trees are being 
removed as their roots are causing hazards on the sidewalks.   

• Working through some glitches on the Sidewalk Improvement Plan in regards to ADA 
standards and the additional costs associated with that.  

 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
Councilor Cornwell noted that Trunk or Treat was a great success and hopes it can continue in the 
future.  
 
Councilor Schaub stated that she was excited to hear about the dog park for Senior Estates and that 
Karen Linton did a great job.  She added that she had four trick or treaters at her house and wished 
they had more.  
 
Councilor Cabrales stated that there is a holiday food basket event for seniors 60 and over and 
anyone that wants to register can let her know.  
 
Councilor Swanson stated that she is collaborating with Gabi at the food bank who is continuing 
to collaborate to work closely to serve the population that are unsheltered in our area.  
 
Mayor Swenson stated that Trunk or Treat was great and that Chief Pilcher was a great 

4



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 8, 2021 

Page 3 - Council Meeting Minutes, November 8, 2021 

representative as was Tommy in his dinosaur costume.  He reminded Councilors that the 
groundbreaking ceremony for Amazon will take place on November 16th and that the Mayor’s 
Tree Lighting Ceremony will take place on November 28th at 5:15 p.m. at the Plaza.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Mayor Swenson entertained a motion to adjourn into executive session.  Carney/Puente… move 
into executive session under the authority of  ORS 192.660(2)(i). The motion passed unanimously. 
The Council adjourned into executive session at 8:30 p.m. and reconvened at 9:14 p.m. Mayor 
Swenson stated that no action was taken by the Council while in executive session. 
 
Carney/Cornwell… direct the Mayor to sign an agreement to the City Administrators Current 
employment agreement to do the following: number one, increase base salary by 2%; number two, 
add an additional 40 hours to vacation leave bank. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Carney/Schaub… direct the Mayor to sign an amendment to the City Attorneys current 
employment agreement to do the following: number one, increase base salary by 2%; number two, 
add an additional 40 hours to vacation leave bank; and number three,  extend the term of the present 
agreement until December 31, 2023. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Carney/Cornwell… meeting be adjourned.  The motion passed unanimously.   
The meeting adjourned at 9:16 p.m. 
 
 

 
APPROVED                                                            

                            ERIC SWENSON, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST                                                                               
                 Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
                 City of Woodburn, Oregon 

5



Page 1 – Executive Session, Council Meeting Minutes, November 8, 2021 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

NOVEMBER 8, 2021 
 

DATE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, CITY OF WOODBURN, COUNTY OF 
MARION, STATE OF OREGON, NOVEMBER 8, 2021 
 
CONVENED   The meeting convened at 8:30 p.m. with Mayor Swenson presiding. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Mayor Swenson Present  
Councilor Carney Present  
Councilor Cornwell Present 
Councilor Schaub Present- via video conferencing 
Councilor Swanson Present - via video conferencing  
Councilor Puente Present 
Councilor Cabrales Present- via video conferencing  
 
Mayor Swenson reminded Councilors and staff that information discussed in executive session is 
not to be discussed with the public. 
 
Media Present:  None. 
 
Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, City Attorney Shields, City Recorder Pierson 
 
The executive session was called:  

 
To review and evaluate, pursuant to standards, criteria and policy 
directives adopted by the governing body, the employment-related 
performance of the chief executive officer of any public body, a public 
officer, employee or staff member unless the person whose performance 
is being reviewed and evaluated requests an open hearing pursuant to ORS 
192.660 (2)(i). 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The executive session adjourned at 9:14 p.m. 
 
 
      APPROVED_______________________________ 
        Eric Swenson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST_______________________________ 
   Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
   City of Woodburn, Oregon 

6



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 18, 2021 

Page 1 - Council Meeting Minutes, November 18, 2021 

  
DATE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, CITY OF WOODBURN, COUNTY OF 
MARION, STATE OF OREGON, NOVEMBER 18, 2021 
 
CONVENED   The meeting convened at 12:07 p.m. with Mayor Swenson presiding. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Mayor Swenson Present - via video conferencing 
Councilor Carney Present  
Councilor Cornwell Present- via video conferencing 
Councilor Schaub Present- via video conferencing 
Councilor Swanson Present  
Councilor Puente Present 
Councilor Cabrales Present- via video conferencing  
 
Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, City Attorney Shields, Assistant City Administrator 
Row, Assistant City Attorney Granum, Executive Legal Assistant Bravo 
  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Mayor Swenson entertained a motion to adjourn into executive session under the authority of ORS 
192.660(2)(h) and ORS 192.660(2)(f). Carney/Swanson… move into executive session. The 
motion passed unanimously. The Council adjourned into executive session at 12:07 p.m. and 
reconvened at 12:27 p.m. Mayor Swenson stated that no action was taken by the Council while in 
executive session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Carney/Swanson… meeting be adjourned.  The motion passed unanimously.   
The meeting adjourned at 12:27 p.m. 
 
 

 
APPROVED                                                            

                            ERIC SWENSON, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST                                                                               
                 Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
                 City of Woodburn, Oregon 

7



Page 1 – Executive Session, Council Meeting Minutes, November 18, 2021 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

NOVEMBER 18, 2021 
 

DATE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, CITY OF WOODBURN, COUNTY OF 
MARION, STATE OF OREGON, NOVEMBER 18, 2021 
 
CONVENED   The meeting convened at 12:07 p.m. with Mayor Swenson presiding. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Mayor Swenson Present- via video conferencing  
Councilor Carney Present 
Councilor Cornwell Present- via video conferencing 
Councilor Schaub Present- via video conferencing 
Councilor Swanson Present 
Councilor Puente Present 
Councilor Cabrales Present- via video conferencing 
 
Mayor Swenson reminded Councilors and staff that information discussed in executive session is 
not to be discussed with the public. 
 
Media Present:  None. 
 
Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, City Attorney Shields, Assistant City Administrator 
Row, Assistant City Attorney Granum, Executive Legal Assistant Bravo 
 
The executive session was called:  

 
To consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a public 
body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed 
pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2)(h). 
 
To consider records that are exempt by law from public inspection 
pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2)(f). 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The executive session adjourned at 12:27 p.m. 
 
 
      APPROVED_______________________________ 
        Eric Swenson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST_______________________________ 
   Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
   City of Woodburn, Oregon 

8



Agenda Item 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator __x____ City Attorney ____x__ Finance __x___ 

  December 13, 2021 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 

FROM: Eric Liljequist, Public Works Projects & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of a Public Utility Easement at 440-450 Parr Road 
(Valor/Heritage Schools), Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax Lot 
052W1300500)

RECOMMENDATION: 

Accept the dedication of a public utility easement granted by The Woodburn 
School District, owners of the property located at 440-450 Parr Road, Woodburn, 
OR 97071 (Tax Lot 052W1300500).  

BACKGROUND: 

The property owner is required to provide a public utility easement in order to 
satisfy the conditions of approval of Design Review (CU 2019-02, DR 2019-02, EXCP 
2019-02, & VAR 2019-01). 

DISCUSSION: 

The easement is a 5-foot wide public utility easement located along the northern 
property boundary limits, adjacent to Parr Road.  This public easement provides 
a permanent easement and right-of-way to construct, reconstruct, operate, and 
maintain public utilities.   

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There is no cost to the City for the Public Easement. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A Copy of the Public Easement document is included as Exhibit “A” and Exhibit 
“B”.  

9



10



11



12



13



Agenda Item 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney ___x___ Finance __x___ 

  December 13, 2021 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 

FROM: Eric Liljequist, Public Works Projects & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of a Right-of-Way Dedication at 440-450 Parr Road 
(Valor/Heritage Schools), Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax Lot 
052W1300500)

RECOMMENDATION: 

Accept the right-of-way dedication granted by The Woodburn School District, 
owners of the property located at 440-450 Parr Road, Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax 
Lot 052W1300500).  

BACKGROUND: 

The property owner is required to provide a right-of-way dedication in order to 
satisfy the conditions of approval of Design Review (CU 2019-02, DR 2019-02, EXCP 
2019-02, & VAR 2019-01). 

DISCUSSION: 

The public right-of-way dedication is located along the northern property 
boundary, adjacent to Parr Road. This 11.5-foot wide public right-of-way 
dedication provides compliance with the service collector street classification 
width requirements stipulated by the Woodburn Transportation System Plan.   

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There is no cost to the City for the right-of-way dedication. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A Copy of the right-of-way dedication document is included as Exhibit “A” and 
Exhibit “B”.  

14



15



16



17



18



Agenda Item 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney ___x___ Finance __x___ 

 December 13, 2021 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 

FROM: Eric Liljequist, Public Works Projects & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Two Public Utility Easements at 1041 N. Boones Ferry 
Road (Lincoln Elementary Schools), Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax Lot 
051W07BD02300)

RECOMMENDATION: 

Accept the dedication of two public utility easements granted by The Woodburn 
School District, owners of the property located at 1041 N. Boones Ferry Road, 
Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax Lot 051W07BD02300).  

BACKGROUND: 

The property owner is required to provide two public utility easements in order to 
satisfy the conditions of approval of Design Review (CU 2019-06, DR 2019-08, EXCP 
2019-04, & VAR 2019-06). 

DISCUSSION: 

The first easement is a 5-foot wide public utility easement dedication located on 
the southern side of the property boundary, adjacent to Hwy 214.  The second 
easement is a 10-foot wide public utility easement dedication located along the 
easterly side of the property boundary, adjacent to Boones Ferry Road. Both 
easements provide a permanent easement and right-of-way to construct, 
reconstruct, operate, and maintain public utilities. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There is no cost to the City for the public utility easements. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A Copy of the two public utility easement documents is included as Exhibit “A” 
and Exhibit “B” for each dedication.  

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



Agenda Item 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney __x____ Finance __x___ 

 December 13, 2021 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 

FROM: Eric Liljequist, Public Works Projects & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of a Right-of-Way Dedication at 1041 N. Boones Ferry 
Road (Lincoln Elementary Schools), Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax Lot 
051W07BD02300) 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Accept the right-of-way dedication granted by The Woodburn School District, 
owners of the property located at 1041 N. Boones Ferry Road, Woodburn, OR 
97071 (Tax Lot 051W07BD02300).  

BACKGROUND: 

The property owner is required to provide the right-of-way dedication in order to 
satisfy the conditions of approval of Design Review (CU 2019-06, DR 2019-08, EXCP 
2019-04, & VAR 2019-06). 

DISCUSSION: 

The public right-of-way dedication is located along the easterly property 
boundary, adjacent to Boones Ferry Road.   This 1-foot wide public right-of-way 
dedication provides compliance with the minor arterial street classification width 
requirements stipulated by the Woodburn Transportation System Plan.   

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There is no cost to the City for the Right-of-Way dedication. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A Copy of the Right-of-Way dedication document is included as Exhibit “A” and 
Exhibit “B”.  

28



29



30



31



32



Agenda Item 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator __x____ City Attorney __x____ Finance __x___ 

  December 13, 2021 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 

FROM: Eric Liljequist, Public Works Projects & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Four Public Easements at 2145 Molalla Rd NE 
(Woodburn Eastside Apartments), Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax Lot 
051W09B000900)

RECOMMENDATION: 

Accept the dedication of four public easements granted by The Woodburn 
Eastside Apartments, owners of the property located at 2145 Molalla Rd NE, 
Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax Lot 051W09B000900).  

BACKGROUND: 

The property owner is required to provide four public easements in order to satisfy 
the conditions of approval of Design Review (CU 2019-04, DR 2019-06, & VAR 
2020-05 Related to ANX 2019-01). 

DISCUSSION: 

The first easement contains both an 82-foot wide public utility easement and a 10-
foot wide public utility easement located within the property boundary limits as 
shown in the attached exhibit.  This public utility easement provides a permanent 
easement and right-of-way to construct, reconstruct, operate, and maintain 
public utilities.  The second easement is a 16-foot wide public waterline easement 
located throughout the property boundary as shown in the attached exhibit.  This 
public utility easement provides a permanent easement and right-of-way to 
construct, reconstruct, operate, and maintain water mains and appurtenances. 
The third easement is a 0.89-foot public sidewalk easement along the southern 
property boundary. This public sidewalk easement provides a permanent 
easement and right-of-way to construct, reconstruct, operate, and maintain the 
Hwy 211 frontage sidewalk.  The fourth easement is a variable width public access 
easement that is located throughout the property boundary as depicted in the 
attached exhibit that will be operated and maintained by Woodburn Place 
Apartments, LLC. 

33



Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There is no cost to the City for the Public Easements. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A Copy of the four Public Easement documents is included as Exhibit “A” and 
Exhibit “B” for each dedication.  

34



AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:

Woodburn City Recorder
City of Woodburn
270 Montgomery Street
Woodburn, OR 97071

CITY OF WOODBURN, OREGON
PUBLIG UTILITY EASEMENT

woodburn Place Apartments, LLc GRANTOR grants to the clry oF
WOODBURN, OREGON, hereinafter called CITY, a permanent easement and right-of-
way, including the permanent right to construct, reconstruct, operate, and maintain Public
Utilities on the following described land:

see attached Exhibit "A" Legal Description of Permanent Easement and
attached Exhibit.8" Sketch for Legal Description of Permanent Easement

which are by this reference incorporated herein

GRANIOR reseryes the right to use the surface of the land for any purpose that will
not be inconsistent or interfere with the use of the easement by CITY. No building or utility
shall be placed upon, under, or within the property subject to the foregoing easement
during the term thereof, however, without the written permission of clw.

Upon completion of the construction, CITY shall restore the surface of the property
to its original condition and shall indemnify and hold GRANTOR harmless against any and
all loss, cost, or damage arising out of the exercise of the rights granted herein.

The true consideration of this conveyance is Zero Dollars ($ O.OO;, and other
valuable consideration, the receipt of which is acknowledged by GRANToR.

GRANIOR covenants to CITY that GRANfOR is lawfully seized in fee simple of the
above-granted premises, free from all encumbrances and that GRANIOR and their heirs
and personal representatives shall warrant and forever defend the said premises and
every part thereof to CITY against the lawful claims and demands of all persons claiming
by, through, or under GRANIOR.

Public Uti
Page 1 of

lity Easements (Temporary and Permanent)
4

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



Agenda Item 
 

 
 
Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ______ City Attorney ______ Finance _____ 

 
 
                     December 13, 2021 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council  
 
FROM: Scott Derickson, City Administrator 
 McKenzie Granum, Assistant City Attorney 
  
SUBJECT: National Opioid Litigation Settlement Participation & State 

Apportionment of Funds 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the City's participation in- and authorize the City Administrator to sign 
the global settlement agreements and Oregon intrastate allocation agreements 
for the National Opioid Litigation, provided the State and Oregon Local 
Governments reach a final agreement for the allocation of funds by a required 
January 2, 2022 deadline.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Nationwide settlements have been reached to resolve all Opioid litigation 
brought by states and local political subdivisions against the three largest 
pharmaceutical distributors: McKesson, Cardinal Health and AmerisourceBergen 
(“Distributors”), and manufacturer Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and its parent 
company Johnson & Johnson (collectively, “J&J”).  These settlements will provide 
substantial funds to states and subdivisions for abatement of the Opioid epidemic 
across the country. 
 
In August 2021, Oregon joined 43 other states in signing onto the $26 billion legal 
settlements with the Distributors and J&J. The State is now expected to receive 
nearly $332 million from those agreements, money that will be used on drug 
treatment and abuse prevention. In addition to billions of dollars to be used for 
abatement of the effects of the Opioid epidemic in communities across the 
nation, the proposed settlements also provide injunctive relief that will require the 
Distributors and J&J to make significant changes in the way they conduct their 
business in order to address the Opioid epidemic on the supply side as well. 
 

55



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
At this time in the settlement process, the City of Woodburn, along with a critical 
mass of other local Oregon jurisdictions, needs to take certain steps to also opt-in 
to the settlement to ensure (1) that the State receives the maximum amount of 
the expected settlement funds1; and (2) that the City has the opportunity to 
maximize the amount of money that may flow-down to the local level through an 
agreed upon state apportionment and allocation of the settlement proceeds.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Should the City agree to participate in the global settlement agreements with the 
Distributors and J&J, a portion of the State's settlement proceeds will be allocated 
to the City over the next eighteen (18) years in accordance with the terms of a 
qualifying agreement between the State and its subdivisions. 
 
Local Governments in Oregon (i.e. counties and cities) have recently been 
negotiating with the State Attorney General regarding the apportionment of the 
Opioid Settlement Funds. A term sheet with key settlement provisions has 
preliminarily been agreed to and it is expected that a formal Intrastate Allocation 
Agreement will be ready for execution by the end of this year. Some of the key 
provisions of such agreement include: 
 

Allocation of Opioid Settlement Funds (approximately $332 million) 
• 45% of total settlement funds would go directly to the State (“State 

Fund”)  
• 55% of total settlement funds go directly to Local Governments (“Local 

Government Fund”) 
o Funds will be allocated amongst the cities and counties based 

upon a population metric that's been set by the litigating parties  
o Cities may elect to direct their payments to their county for more 

regional allocation per an IGA 

Use of Local Government Funds 
• Local Governments commit to use all funds for future opioid 

abatement per the national settlement agreements Approved 
Abatement Uses2 

                                                           
1 Incentive Payments have been built into the Settlement Agreement that are designed to 
reward states for increasing participation in the settlements by their subdivisions and/or taking 
steps to bar or otherwise resolve current and future subdivision litigation. 
2 The settlement agreements with the Distributors and J&J allow for funds to be directed toward 
a broad range of approved abatement uses by state and local governments. Developed in 
consultation with the nation’s leading public health experts, the list of pre-approved uses 

56



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

• Local Governments shall maintain detailed records of expenditures 
and comply with certain reporting requirements 

Release of Claims  
• All parties agree to release all claims and to participate in the 

Distributor and J&J settlement agreements  

Applicability  
• The allocation split would apply to all funds received by Oregon for the 

Distributors and J&J settlements. In addition, the allocation percentage 
(45% to the State of Oregon, 55% to OR Subdivision Fund) would also 
apply to future multistate Opioid Settlements with other Distributors, 
Manufacturers, and Pharmacies, subject to consideration of other 
terms of such settlements that impact allocation considerations. The 
allocation percentages would not apply to cases in bankruptcy, 
including the Purdue and Malinkrodt matters. The State has agreed to 
continue discussions with Local Governments regarding allocation of 
the Purdue and Malinkrodt settlements.  

 
Given the limited amount of time provided between the December 13th 
Council meeting and the January 2, 2022, deadline for joining the settlements as 
an initial participating subdivision, staff is requesting that the Council provide 
authorization to the City Administrator to enter into and sign the following 
agreements, conditioned upon the State and Local Governments reaching a 
final agreement on fund allocation before the end of the year: 
  
 Settlement-Related Agreements 

• Subdivision Settlement Participation Form for Distributors Agreement 
• Subdivision Settlement Participation Form for J&J Agreement 
• Oregon Intrastate Allocation Agreement or MOU for Use of 

Distributor Settlement Funds 
• Oregon Intrastate Allocation Agreement or MOU for Use of J&J 

Settlement Funds 
 

Given the City's size and more limited resources, it is both practical and 
reasonable to join the settlement at this time and agree to the proposed release 
of claims in exchange for the given financial award because the City would 
likely have no other recourse or ability to bring its own lawsuit against the 
Distributors and J&J. Should the City decline to participate at this time, it would 
be foregoing the initial settlement window that provides the greatest incentive 
                                                           
includes a wide range of intervention, treatment, education, and recovery services so that state 
and local governments can decide what will best serve their communities.  

57



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 
for increased funds for the City under the agreements with the Distributors and 
J&J.  

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
By signing onto the settlements and executing the associated releases, Woodburn 
would become a participating subdivision that would receive direct payments 
from the Distributors and J&J over the next 18 years for opioid abatement 
programs.   
 
The exact dollar amount the City should expect to receive is still being calculated 
based on the allocation metric that will be part of the State and Local 
Government Agreement/MOU. All future settlement dollars the City receives will 
be set aside in their own fund to be used only as permitted by the settlement 
agreements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

58



 Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney __x____ Finance __x___ 

   December 13, 2021 
 
 
TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM:  Chris Kerr, Community Development Director 
   Melissa Gitt, Building Official 
 
SUBJECT:  Woodburn/ Silverton IGA Amendment 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the City Administrator to sign the “2nd Amendment to Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the City of Silverton and the City of Woodburn for 
Inspections and Plan Review”. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The original intergovernmental agreement is set to expire December 31, 2021.  The 
following amendment to the original IGA was created to extend the agreement 
to December 31, 2023.  
 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. 2nd Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of 
Silverton and the City of Woodburn for Inspections and Plan Review. (3 
pages) 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

59



 
AMENDMENT TO IGA FOR INSPECTIONS AND PLAN REVIEW 
Silverton – Woodburn  Page 1 of 2 
 
 

2nd AMENDMENT TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF SILVERTON AND THE CITY OF WOODBURN 

FOR INSPECTIONS AND PLAN REVIEW 
 
 THIS Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Silverton, a 
municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, ("Silverton"), and the City of Woodburn, a 
municipal corporation of the State of Oregon ("Woodburn") (collectively the "Parties"), for 
Inspections and Plan Review, is entered into as of the last date of signature below 
("Amendment"). 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

A. Silverton and Woodburn previously entered in that Intergovernmental Agreement for 
Inspections and Plan Review, effective October 8, 2019 ("Original IGA"), whereby the 
Parties agreed to provide personnel to perform inspections and plan reviews for the 
other party as a backup to the other agency as needed. 
 

B. Silverton and Woodburn desire to enter into this Amendment (“2nd Amendment”) to 
extend the Term of the Original IGA and the Amendment, effective June 28, 2021 (“1st 
Amendment”). 
 

C. All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to them in the 
Original IGA. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agreed to amend the Original IGA as follows: 

 
AMENDMENT 

 
1. Term of the Agreement. Section XIV, is hereby amended, with the Term of the 

Agreement extended to December 31, 2023.  
 

2. No other Modifications. Except as expressly modified in this Amendment, the terms and 
conditions of the Original IGA and the 1st Amendment shall remain in full force and 
effect. To the extent that this Amendment (2nd Amendment) conflicts with the terms 
and conditions of the Original IGA, this Amendment shall control.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

60



 
AMENDMENT TO IGA FOR INSPECTIONS AND PLAN REVIEW 
Silverton – Woodburn  Page 2 of 2 
 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment to the Original IGA 

effective as of the last date of signature specified below. 
 
 

 
CITY OF SILVERTON, 
an Oregon municipal corporation 
 
 
 
       
Ron Chandler 
City Manager 
 
 
  
Date 

 
CITY OF WOODBURN, 
An Oregon municipal corporation 
 
 
 
       
Scott Derickson 
City Administrator 
 
 
  
Date 
 
 

 
 

61



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney __x____ Finance _x____ 

 December 13, 2021 
 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Martin Pilcher, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Intergovernmental Agreement for Marion County Multi-Jurisdictional 

Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the City Administrator or designee to sign an agreement with Oregon 
Department of Land Conservation and Development as part of the City of 
Woodburn’s Emergency Management Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Natural disasters occur when natural hazard events impact people, 
structures, and the environment. The dramatic increase in the costs 
associated with natural disasters over the past decades has fostered interest 
in identifying and implementing effective means of reducing these impacts. 
Natural hazards mitigation planning is a process for identifying and 
understanding the hazards facing a jurisdiction and prioritizing actions the 
jurisdiction can take to reduce injuries and deaths; damage to buildings, 
critical facilities, and infrastructure; interruption in essential services; 
economic hardship; and environmental harm. Reducing impacts also 
speeds up recovery and lowers its cost. 
 
The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) approves Natural 
Hazards Mitigation Plans (NHMPs) meeting federal requirements at 44 CFR 
201. Approval lasts five years. Having a current, FEMA-approved NHMP is a 
key factor in establishing eligibility for certain FEMA grants that fund natural 
hazards mitigation planning and projects. 
 
Marion County's Multi-Jurisdictional NHMP (aka MJHMP) (henceforth either 
term may be used) will expire on August 16, 2022. DLCD anticipates receiving 
a FEMA Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant (PDM 19) to assist Marion County, Cities, 
and Special Districts ("Jurisdictions") with updating the Marion County 

62



Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
MJNHMP. The grant's performance period extends thirty-six (36) months from 
the date of acceptance of the grant award. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 

The purposes of this Intergovernmental Agreement are to: 

(a) Formalize a working relationship between DLCD and the 
City that will result in an  updated Marion County MJNHMP 
adopted by City and approved by FEMA; 

(b)    Ensure the City is aware that the grant supporting this project 
requires the final deliverable to be a FEMA-approved NHMP, and 
that to achieve FEMA approval the City must not only consider, 
but also adopt an NHMP that FEMA has agreed to approve; and 

(c)    Ensure the City is aware of its responsibility to contribute financially to 
the Project using non- federal funds, and to track, document, and 
report its cost share as required. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
City of Woodburn staff time to fulfill responsibilities including: 
 
 (a) Attendance at required meetings. 
 (b) Gathering and providing data. 
 (c) GIS Services related to the City of Woodburn. 
 (d) Engaging with internal and external stakeholders.  
 
 
 

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ____x__ City Attorney _x_____ Finance __x___ 

 December 13, 2021 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
THRU: Martin Pilcher, Chief of Police 
   
FROM: Andy Shadrin, Lieutenant 
 
SUBJECT: Updated Firearms Range Use Agreement with the City of Hubbard  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Enter into an agreement with the City of Hubbard to allow Hubbard Police 
Department (HPD) personnel to use the Woodburn Police Department (WPD) 
Firearms Range and authorize the City Administrator to sign the Agreement. 
  
BACKGROUND: 
 
HPD does not possess a firearms range. HPD has historically used the Woodburn 
Police Department Range with a previous agreement since 2003.  Without the 
continued use of the Woodburn Police Department Range HPD personnel must 
travel a significant distance to conduct necessary firearms training. The WPD 
Range is geographically closer and would continue to assist the HPD in 
conducting necessary training.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Police Department has completed a study of the use of the WPD Range by 
the HPD. The agreement ensures that WPD personnel will have access to the 
facility to conduct all necessary training of WPD personnel.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The City of Hubbard will continue to pay $300 each year for access to the WPD 
Range.  

73



 
 

Integrity ˖ Courage ˖ Pride ˖ Respect ˖ Accountability ˖ Service 

W WOODBURN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
       1060 Mt. Hood Avenue, Woodburn, Oregon  97071 
       Phone: (503) 982-2345   FAX: (503) 982-2370 
 
 
 

Intergovernmental Agreement for Police Firearms Range Usage 
 
 
This Intergovernmental Agreement for police Firearms Range Usage ("Agreement") is made and 
entered into by and between the City of Woodburn, an Oregon Municipal Corporation 
("Woodburn"), and the City of Hubbard, an Oregon Municipal Corporation, for the benefit of the 
Hubbard Police Department ("Hubbard"), under the authority of ORS Chapter 190. 
 
RECITALS 
 

1. By the authority granted in ORS Chapter 190, incorporated cities may enter into 
agreements with other Law Enforcement agencies for the performance of any of the 
functions and activities that they have the legal authority to perform. 

 
2. Under said authority, the City of Woodburn and the City of Hubbard desire to enter 

into this Agreement, which allows sworn members of the Hubbard Police Department 
to use Woodburn Police Department’s firearms range subject to the provisions of this 
Agreement. 

 
3. The Woodburn Police Range will be used to conduct training. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 
TERM 
 

1. This Agreement is effective upon execution hereof on behalf of both parties, and shall 
not be terminated unless subject to the provisions contained herein. 

 
2. This agreement may be terminated by either party effective upon delivery of written 

notice to the other party.  
 

3. Notwithstanding the giving of notice of termination, the Hubbard Police Department 
shall remain obligated with respect to any unfulfilled financial obligation which 
accrued hereunder prior to the effective date of such termination. 

 

74



 
 

Integrity ˖ Courage ˖ Pride ˖ Respect ˖ Accountability ˖ Service 

OBLIGATIONS 
 

1.       Woodburn Police Department (WPD) shall allow the use of its police firearms range 
by sworn members of the Hubbard Police Department (HPD) subject to the 
limitations, provisions, and requirements of Oregon Law and as set forth in this 
agreement. 

 
2.       Range usage for general qualifying range training shall be subject to availability and 

cannot be guaranteed. In order to avoid range-scheduling conflicts, on or about the 
first of each month a member of HPD shall communicate with the Woodburn Police 
Firearms Rangemaster and they shall mutually agree to a range schedule. 

 
3.       Upon the execution of this Agreement, representatives of HPD and WPD shall meet 

and establish a training schedule for the upcoming 6 months.   
 

4.       HPD will be authorized to use the range on at least four (4) opportunities during a 
calendar year.   

 
5.       WPD shall maintain the range and shall be the sole entity authorized to modify or 

alter the range in any way. 
 

6.       The use of the police firearms range shall be subject to the following provisions: 
 
5.1 All range and safety rules as set forth in City of Woodburn Firing Range 

Protocol (attached at appendix A) shall be enforced by a HPD sworn 
representative who shall be present each and every time HPD officers 
utilize the range. WPD shall have the right to expel from the range any 
user who violates the Firing Range Protocol, or for any other reason in the 
WPD's sole discretion.  

 
5.2 The range will be open Monday-Friday from 8:00am to 9:00pm. A 

representative of HPD will need to contact the WPD Rangemaster in order 
to specify the date and time of all reservations.   

 
5.3       Other than sworn HPD Officers, this Agreement does not authorize any 

other persons including other agencies’ officers or agents to shoot at the 
range as guests of HPD without prior written consent of the WPD. 

 
5.4       The only weapons authorized for discharge at the range are handguns of 

the type normally utilized by law enforcement, police patrol rifles of the 
9mm or .223 caliber only, precision rifles chambered in .308 caliber, and 
police shotguns.  The discharge of explosives devices is prohibited. 

 
 
 
 

75



 
 

Integrity ˖ Courage ˖ Pride ˖ Respect ˖ Accountability ˖ Service 

COMPENSATION  
 

1. Hubbard shall pay the City three hundred 0/100 dollar ($300) per calendar year for use of 
the range.   
 

2. Hubbard shall make full payment to Woodburn during the month of July for the 
subsequent calendar year (running July 1 – June 31).  If this Agreement is terminated in 
the middle of a calendar year, Woodburn shall return to Hubbard a prorated amount of 
the fee collected for the remaining period of that year.  
 

3. Hubbard shall pay and be held liable for any damage done during their use of the range.  
Any damage done during the course of training at the range shall be reported immediately 
to the WPD Rangemaster or a WPD supervisor.  If necessary, a member of Public Works 
from the City of Woodburn shall inspect the damage to determine the extent of the 
damage and whether or not the range is safe to use.  A member of Public Works shall 
provide a written quote in order to display the costs associated with any damage done.  
HPD will only be held responsible for the actual costs to repair the damage.   

 
SAFETY 
 

1. HPD shall be exclusively responsible for the protection of its employees and agents and 
shall provide adequate safety provisions and supervision for its employees and agents 
who utilize the police firearms range. 

 
2. City of Woodburn shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to safety or 

supervision of HPD officers or agents who may be utilizing the police firearms range. 
 

3. City of Woodburn employees who witness or become aware of violations of good safety 
practices at the police firearms range shall report them to the WPD Rangemaster or WPD 
supervisor. 

 
LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY 

 
1. WPD shall be responsible for any claims, loss or damage resulting from the actions of 

WPD and its officers, agents and employees in the use of the facilities and participation 
in the training provided under this agreement. 

 
2. HPD shall be responsible for any claims, loss or damage resulting from the actions of 

HPD and its officers, agents and employees in the use of the facilities and participation in 
the training provided under this agreement. 

 
3. City of Woodburn assumes no liability for the actions of HPD officers or agents utilizing 

the Woodburn Police Firearms Range.  City of Woodburn represents and warrants only 
that it will use its best efforts to maintain the police firearms range. 

 

76



 
 

Integrity ˖ Courage ˖ Pride ˖ Respect ˖ Accountability ˖ Service 

4. Hubbard agrees, to the extent it may under the Constitution and laws of Oregon, to 
indemnify, defend, and save Woodburn harmless from any and all claims arising out of 
the acts, errors or omissions of Hubbard as a result of HPD's use of the Woodburn firing 
range or those for whose acts may be held liable under ORS  30.265, ; and further 
provided that with respect to any single claim or occurrence, Hubbard liability arising out 
of contribution or indemnity shall not exceed the limits provided by ORS 30.270, if 
applicable to the asserted claim. 

 
5. Each party shall insure or self-insure and be independently responsible for the risk of its 

own liability under this Agreement for claims within the scope of the Oregon tort claims 
act (ORS 30.260 to 30.300). 

 
6. Prior to entry to the Firing Range property, Hubbard shall provide a certificate of 

insurance or certificate of self-insurance which shall name the City of Woodburn, its 
officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds and shall be accompanied by an 
additional insured endorsement (if applicable).  

 
COMMUNICATION AND NOTICE 
 

1. Any notice in writing required to be given hereunder shall be sufficient if sent by regular 
mail or personally delivered to the Chief of Police, City of Woodburn; and to the Chief of 
Police, Hubbard Police Department.  

 
2. Each party shall designate, and may change from time to time, a representative for 

communication, negotiations, and general liaison with the other concerning the content, 
future, and administration of this Agreement.  No such designated representative shall be 
held an agent or attorney-in-fact having authority to bind either party. 

 
 
RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES 
 
Neither party shall at any time hold itself out as a subsidiary or affiliate of the other party. 
Further, nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the Parties, nor by any third 
parties, as creating the relationship of a joint venture or partnership between the Parties, or a 
relationship between a party and any suppliers, employees, contractors or subcontractors used by 
the other party to carry out functions under this Agreement. 
 
ASSIGNMENTS 
 
This Agreement and all rights and obligations of both Parties hereunder are personal to both 
parties. As such, neither party shall transfer, assign, or delegate any rights or obligations 
hereunder. 
 
GOVERNING LAW 
 

77



 
 

Integrity ˖ Courage ˖ Pride ˖ Respect ˖ Accountability ˖ Service 

This Agreement is governed by and will be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Oregon.  
 
AMENDMENTS 
 
Agreement represents the complete and integrated agreement between the parties with respect to 
the subject matter hereof, and may be amended only by written amendment executed by both 
parties.  As such, this Agreement cancels and supersedes all prior written and oral agreements, 
representations, negotiations, and communications between the parties and their representatives 
with respect to the subject matter hereof.  
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have caused the Agreement to be executed on behalf by 
their duly authorized representatives as of the last date of signature set forth below. 
 

      
Hubbard Police Department  City of Woodburn 
 
By: _______________________________ By:_______________________________  
 
 
Title: ______________________________ Title: _____________________________ 
 
 
Date: ______________________________ Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
 
 

78



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney ___x___ Finance __x___ 

               December 13, 2021 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Eric Liljequist, Public Works Projects & Engineering Director 
 
SUBJECT: Conditional Acceptance of a Right-of-Way Dedication and Public 

Utility Easement at 1560 W. Hayes Street, Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax 
Lot 051W07CC07100) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Conditionally accept the right-of-way (ROW) dedication and public utility 
easement (PUE) granted by The Diocese of Oregon, owners of the property 
located at 1560 W. Hayes Street, Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax Lot 051W07CC07100), 
provided the City approves the final plat for the Phase 3B subdivision of Smith 
Creek Development and that recording of the ROW dedication and PUE occurs 
concurrently with the final plat. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As part of the approval of the Smith Creek PUD Development, the developer, 
Stafford Development Company, LLC, agreed to extend the Killian Spring 
Parkway road located within the boundary of Phase 3B north of the subdivision to 
connect with W. Hayes Street per Exhibit P of the Conditions of Approval 
(attached).  
 
Part of the planned Killian Spring Parkway ROW improvement has already been 
dedicated to the City as part of the updates to the Nellie Muir Elementary School. 
Now that the developer is completing the subdivision platting process for Phase 
3B of the project, it has secured conveyance of the remaining 46 feet of ROW 
and an adjacent 5 foot PUE from the St. Mary's Episcopal Church, the Diocese of 
Oregon.  
 
The developer is required to provide the right-of-way dedication and PUE for the 
future Killian Spring Parkway connection in order to satisfy the conditions of 
approval of the Smith Creek PUD (PUD 2017-01). Once the dedication is 
accepted, the developer will then complete the roadway improvements to City 
engineering standards for a 66' wide public access street.  
 

79



Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The public right-of-way dedication and PUE are located along the westerly 
property boundary of the St. Mary's Episcopal Church, adjoining the ROW 
dedication already completed by the School District, providing for the future 
Killian Spring Parkway connection to W. Hayes Street.  The 46-foot wide public 
right-of-way dedication provides compliance with the access street classification 
width requirements stipulated by the Woodburn Transportation System Plan.  The 
5-foot public utility easement provides a permanent easement and right-of-way 
to construct, reconstruct, operate, and maintain public utilities. 
 
The request to Council is for a conditional acceptance because should the Smith 
Creek Phase 3B subdivision plat never be recorded, then the subject ROW 
dedication and conveyance of the PUE would not occur. It is City staff's 
expectation that the Phase 3B plat will be ready for final approval and recording 
by year's end and that both ROW and PUE conveyance documents will be 
finalized and recorded concurrently with the subdivision plat.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no cost to the City for the Right-of-Way dedication or PUE. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Exhibit P from the Smith Creek Approved Development Plans 
  
Draft Right-of-Way dedication document with included legal description and 
drawing for ROW as Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”  
 
Draft Public Utility Easement document with included legal description and 
drawing for PUE as Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B” 

80



Hayes-KSP, 9/5/2018 2:29:34 PM

81



82



83



City of Woodburn - DEED OF DEDICATION  Page 1 of 2 

After Recording Return to: 
City Recorder 
City of Woodburn 
270 Montgomery Street 
Woodburn, Oregon 97071 
 
Send Tax Statements to: 
City Recorder 
City of Woodburn 
270 Montgomery Street 
Woodburn, Oregon 97071 
 
 

DEDICATION DEED 
(RIGHT OF WAY) 

 
            ,  
 

(address)        , Grantor, does hereby grant 
to the CITY OF WOODBURN, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, Grantee, the 
following real property situated in the County of Marion, State of Oregon, to be used and held by 
the City of Woodburn for public street, road, right-of-way, and utility purposes, bounded and 
described as follows: 
 

See attached EXHIBIT A Legal Description; and  
 
See attached EXHIBIT B Drawing for Legal Description.  

 
 The true consideration for this conveyance is: $   Other value given, the receipt and  
 

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by GRANTOR      
 
GRANTOR hereby covenants to GRANTEE that GRANTOR is the fee title owner of the above 
described real property, free from all encumbrances, that GRANTOR has the right to convey the 
property to GRANTEE, and that GRANTOR and their heirs and personal representatives shall 
warrant and forever defend the title to the property against all lawful claims and demands 
whatsoever. 
 
 

Dated this ________day of _____________________________,      
 
GRANTOR 
 

      
 
 
 
                            
By:         
Title:         

84



City of Woodburn - DEED OF DEDICATION  Page 2 of 2 

State of Oregon    ) 
     ) ss. 
County of _____________________ ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______day of ______________, ______, 
                 (day)                     (month)                 (year) 
by      , as           
                            (Signer's Name)       (Title; write N/A if not applicable) 
of               
       (Name of Entity of whose behalf record is executed; write N/A if not applicable)  
 
                                                                                       
             

Notary Public for Oregon 
My Commission Expires _______________    

 
 
 
 
GRANTEE'S ACCEPTANCE 
 
By Signature below, the City of Woodburn, Oregon, hereby accepts this dedication pursuant to 
ORS 92.014. 
 
 
       
By:   
Title:        
 
 
State of Oregon ) 
   )   ss. 
County of Marion ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on     ,  , by Scott 
Derickson, City Administrator of the City of Woodburn, acting under authority granted to him by 
the Woodburn City Council. 
 
 
             
       Notary Public for Oregon 
       My Commission Expires    

85



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF LAND TO BE DEDICATION FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY 
  

86



 

EXHIBIT B 
 

DRAWING FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LAND TO BE DEDICATION FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY 
 

 
 
 
 

87



88



89



Public Utility Easements (Permanent) 
Page 1 of 4 

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
 
Woodburn City Recorder 
City of Woodburn 
270 Montgomery Street  
Woodburn, OR  97071 
 
 
 

CITY OF WOODBURN, OREGON 
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS 

Permanent 
 
 

 [NAME OF ENTITY] GRANTOR, grants to the CITY OF WOODBURN, OREGON, 
hereinafter called CITY, a permanent easement and right-of-way, including the permanent 
right to construct, reconstruct, operate, and maintain [describe public utilities] on the 
following described land: 
 

See attached Exhibit “A” Legal Description of Permanent Easement and 
attached Exhibit “B” Sketch for Legal Description of Permanent Easement 

which are by this reference incorporated herein 
 
  
 
 GRANTOR reserves the right to use the surface of the land for any purpose that will 
not be inconsistent or interfere with the use of the easement by CITY.  No building or utility 
shall be placed upon, under, or within the property subject to the foregoing easement 
during the term thereof, however, without the written permission of CITY. 
 
 Upon completion of the construction, CITY shall restore the surface of the property 
to its original condition and shall indemnify and hold GRANTOR harmless against any and 
all loss, cost, or damage arising out of the exercise of the rights granted herein. 
 
 The true consideration of this conveyance is [written amount] ($__________), and 
other valuable consideration, the receipt of which is acknowledged by GRANTOR. 
 
 GRANTOR covenants to CITY that GRANTOR is lawfully seized in fee simple of the 
above-granted premises, free from all encumbrances and that GRANTOR and their heirs 
and personal representatives shall warrant and forever defend the said premises and 
every part thereof to CITY against the lawful claims and demands of all persons claiming 
by, through, or under GRANTOR. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

90



Public Utility Easements (Permanent) 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 DATED this _____ day of __________________, 20____. 
 

[NAME OF ENTITY] 
 
 
BY:   
 [Name of Person, Title] 

 
 
 

CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

STATE OF OREGON, County of _________)  ss. 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of 
___________________ 20__ by [name(s) of person(s)], as [type of authority, e.g., officer, 
trustee, etc.] of [name of entity on behalf of whom instrument was executed] a corporation 
and the foregoing instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said corporation by 
authority of its Board of Directors; and each of them acknowledged said instrument to be 
its voluntary act and deed. 
 
 
   
 NOTARY PUBLIC FOR OREGON 
 My Commission Expires:    
 
City of Woodburn 
270 Montgomery Street 
Woodburn, OR  97071 
 
(Grantee’s Name and Address) 
 
By Signature below, the City of Woodburn, Oregon, 
Approves and Accepts this Conveyance Pursuant to 
ORS 93.808. 
 
 
City Recorder: 
 
 
  
Heather Pierson 

91



Public Utility Easements (Permanent) 
Page 3 of 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Legal Description of Permanent Easement 

92



Public Utility Easements (Permanent) 
Page 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

Sketch for Legal Description of Permanent Easement 

93



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney ___x___ Finance __x___ 

 December 13, 2021 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Scott Derickson, City Administrator 
  N. Robert Shields, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT:  Settlement of CIS Wastewater Treatment Plant Claim   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Receive the report. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
On February 13, 2021, Woodburn experienced a significant ice storm that 
caused extensive damage to the Poplar Reuse System, which is an integral part 
of the Woodburn Wastewater Treatment Plant.   
 
After this damage occurred, the City Administrator and City Attorney discussed 
this matter and the City Administrator submitted a claim to City County 
Insurance Services (CIS), the City’s insurer.     
 
CIS summarily denied the City’s damage claim because it claimed that there is 
no coverage for a property item not listed on the CIS Property Schedule. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City Attorney’s Office researched this matter and presented a formal 
demand letter to CIS supported by extensive legal citations.  CIS then retained 
an attorney from a Portland law firm to defend this claim.   
 
In response to the City’s demand, after extended discussions with the Portland 
attorney, City staff took action to settle this contested claim for 80% of the 
amount it will cost the City to repair the damage.  We believe that this is an 
excellent result since otherwise the City would have recovered nothing.   
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The CIS claim settlement of $159,898.00 will now be available to repair the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant.     

94



 

K:\xx PDF Agenda Process\2021\December 13, 2021\memo - 2021-11 November.doc 

CITY OF WOODBURN 
Community Development Department 
                                       MEMORANDUM 
 
270 Montgomery Street        Woodburn, Oregon 97071          (503) 982-5246  
 
Date:  December 1, 2021 
   
To:   Chris Kerr, Community Development Director 
               
From:  Melissa Gitt, Building Official         
 
Subject: Building Activity for November 2021  
 
 2019 2020 2021 

No. Dollar Amount No. Dollar Amount No. Dollar Amount 
 

Single-Family Residential 0 $0 1 $316,035 2 $580,902 
Multi-Family Residential 0 $0 1 $887,995 1 $1,599,501 
Assisted Living Facilities 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 
Residential Adds & Alts 1 $9,000 8 $99,093 3 $76,004 
Industrial 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 
Commercial 4 $230,000 5 $52,117 3 $1,083,104 
Signs and Fences 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 
Manufactured Homes 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 

TOTALS 5 $239,000 15 $1,355,240 9 $3,339,511 
Fiscal Year to Date  
(July 1 – June 30)  $3,796,739  $8,099,656  $28,559,183 

       
       

 
• Totals based off of permit valuation 

    

95



Agenda Item 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney ____x__ Finance __x___ 

December 13, 2021 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 

FROM: Chris Kerr, Community Development Director 
Colin Cortes, AICP, CNU-A, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: Annexation of Approximately 0.95 Acres of Territory owned by 
Northwest Willamette Homes LLC at 1251 Brown St (ANX 2020-02) 
and Approval of Related Land Use Applications for Development 
into the Valentina Estates No. 2 Subdivision of 5 Lots 

Recommendation:  

Conduct a public hearing and make a motion to tentatively approve the land 
use applications, directing staff to submit an ordinance for consideration at the 
next City Council meeting.   

Background: 

The item before the Council is action on annexation application ANX 2020-02 by 
Northwest Willamette Homes LLC on behalf of Northwest Willamette Homes LLC 
for property at 1251 Brown Street totaling approximately 0.95 gross acres and 
located south of Vine Avenue on the west side of the road. 

The territory is eligible for annexation because it’s within the City urban growth 
boundary (UGB).  

Upon annexation, the City would need to designate the property with City 
zoning. The Comprehensive Plan land use map designates the territory Low 
Density Residential.  Per Comprehensive Plan Policy Table 1, the default 
compatible zoning district is the Residential Single Family (RS) zoning district, 
which the applicant accepts. 

Because the applicant proposes also to subdivide the subject property into 5 
lots, there are child or corollary development applications: 

• Zone Change ZC 21-01:  This designates City zoning.
• Preliminary Subdivision SUB 2020-02:  This proposes subdivision (into 5 lots).

96



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 2 (ANX 2020-02) 
 
 
• Variance VAR 21-04:  The request is to vary from the Woodburn 

Development Ordinance (WDO) by measuring lot depth north-south from 
the shared access easement instead of east-west from the front lot lines 
parallel to Brown Street as WDO 1.02 “Lot … Flag lot” definition and Figure 
1.02D would require. 

 
The Planning Commission on October 14, 2021 heard and unanimously 
recommended approval of the consolidated applications package.  The 
applicant was the only individual to testify at that hearing. 
 
 
Discussion: 
 
Annexation is a policy decision by the Council. 
 
Decision-making criteria for annexation are in Woodburn Development 
Ordinance (WDO) 5.04.01C.  The attached Planning Commission staff report of 
October 14, 2021, particularly its Attachment 102 Analyses & Findings, addresses 
the criteria and finds them met. 
 
The Council reviews and decides upon the consolidated applications package 
for the development project because per WDO 4.01.07, the City reviews a 
package at the highest land use review type among the application types.  (In 
this context, it’s the annexation application type, which is Type IV – a Council 
decision.) 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
Annexing the territory into city limits would subject it to City taxing authority, 
including property tax that generates the largest source of funding for general 
fund services such as the library, policing, and parks and recreation.   
 
The City permanent tax rate is $6.0534 per thousand dollars – equal to a millage 
rate of 6.0534 mils – as set by Oregon Ballot Measure 50 in 1997-98.  The property 
had a rural dwelling, now demolished.  The table below simplifies and grossly 
estimates tax revenue, not accounting for increase resulting from development: 
 

Address Tax Lot Marion County 
Assessed Value (AV) 

Gross Estimate of City 
Property Tax (6.0534 mils) 

1251 Brown St 051W18C000900 $118,890 $719.69 
 

97



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 3 (ANX 2020-02) 
 
 
The estimate neither accounts for how the City might assess property value 
differently than Marion County nor excludes the unknown cost of providing 
basic utility services to the properties that the City does not already provide.  
Crucially, site development would increase both the number of residences and 
assessed valuation (AV) while also increasing City utility and other service costs. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Planning Commission October 14, 2021 Staff Report and attachments: 

101. Marked Tax Map 
102. Analyses & Findings (29 pages) 
102A. Public Works comments (2 pages; Oct. 7, 2021) 
103A. Annexation Service Provider Letters (SPLs; 4 pages) 
103B. Site plan existing site conditions Sheet C2.0 (dated May 4, 2021; 
submitted May 5, 2021) 
103C. Marion County Assessor’s Office aerial view of tree canopies (Oct. 6, 
2021) 
103D. Site plan Sheet C1.0 (dated July 23, 2021; submitted July 26, 2021) 
104. Transportation System Plan (TSP) Fig. 2 “Functional Roadway 

Classification” 

98



  

 

 

Staff Report 
 
To: Planning Commission 

 

Through: Chris Kerr, AICP, Community Development Director  

 

From: Colin Cortes, AICP, CNU-A, Senior Planner 

 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2021 (Prepared October 7, 2021) 

 

Item: “Valentina Estates No. 2” Subdivision (ANX 2020-02) 

 

Tax Lot(s): 051W18C000900; 1251 Brown Street 

 

Table of Contents 

ISSUE BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION ..................................................................... 1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................................................... 2 

RECOMMENDATION ....................................................................................................... 3 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ............................................................................................ 4 

ACTIONS ..................................................................................................................... 10 

ATTACHMENT LIST ....................................................................................................... 10 
 

 

Issue before the Planning Commission 

 

Annexation ANX 2020-02 (Type IV) with proposed subdivision SUB 2020-02 Valentina Estates 

No. 2 and variance request:  Commission is to hold a public hearing and make a 

recommendation to the City Council. 

 

99

https://marioncounty.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=b41e1f1b340a448682a2cc47fff41b31&find=051W18C000900
https://www.google.com/maps/place/1251+Brown+St,+Woodburn,+OR+97071/@45.1313045,-122.8620592,507m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x54955ea0c3a35435:0x44fed2e81bacfbe3!8m2!3d45.1313112!4d-122.8605958


Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 
Staff Report 
Page 2 of 10 

 

Executive Summary 

 

Location 

The proposed Valentina Estates No. 2 subdivision of 5 lots is based on annexation of 0.95 acres 

from Marion County.  The territory is a demolished rural homestead located along the west side 

of Brown Street south of Vine Avenue and along the south side of Valentina Estates subdivision. 

 

 
Preliminary subdivision from site plan Sheet C1.0  

 

 

Annexation & Zoning Designation 

Because the Comprehensive Plan land use map designates the territory Low Density Residential 

per Comprehensive Plan Policy Table 1, the default corresponding zoning district is Residential 

Single Family (RS).  Along with an annexation ordinance, the Council would by separate 

ordinance designate the annexed territory as RS.  

100



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 
Staff Report 
Page 3 of 10 

Development 

The developer will improve the street frontage from a rural gravel road to a half-street with 

asphalt, curb, landscape strip with street trees, and sidewalk and will grant public shared access 

to and from Brown Street along the shared driveway for the west rear landlocked Lots 2-4, the 

ones that lack direct access to a public street. 

 

After obtaining from the City Subdivision Final Plat Approval (FSUB), the developer would begin 

and complete recordation of the plat and easements with the Marion County Surveyor’s Office.  

Then the developer or a homebuilder would obtain City building permits and build dwellings.   

 

Site plans are within Attachments 103B & D.   

 

The Public Works Department, Woodburn Fire District, and Woodburn School District gave the 

applicant annexation service provider letters (SPLs; Attachment 103A) indicating that they can 

serve the development. 

 

Variance 

The variance application is for one request for Lots 2 & 3  to measure lot depth north-south 

from the shared access easement instead of east-west from the front lot lines parallel to Brown 

Street as WDO 1.02 “Lot … Flag lot” and Figure 1.02D would require. 
 

 

Recommendation 

 

Approval:  Staff recommends that the Planning Commission consider the staff report and 

attachments and recommend approval to the City Council application with the conditions 

recommended included with this report. 

 

 

  

101



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 
Staff Report 
Page 4 of 10 

Conditions of Approval 

The conditions are copied from towards the end of the analyses and findings (Attachment 102): 

 

General 

G1.  As part of building permit application, the applicant shall submit revised site plans meeting 

the conditions of approval and obtain Planning Division approval through sign-off on permit 

issuance. 

G2.  The applicant or successors and assigns shall develop the property in substantial 

conformance with the final plans submitted and approved with these applications, except as 

modified by these conditions of approval.  Were the applicant to revise plans other than to meet 

conditions of approval or meet building code, even if Planning Division staff does not notice and 

signs off on building permit issuance, Division staff retains the right to obtain restoration of 

improvements as shown on an earlier land use review plan set in service of substantial 

conformance. 

G3. References: Attachment 201 serves as a dictionary or glossary defining certain abbreviations, 

acronyms, phrases, terms, and words in the context of the conditions of approval.  The 200 series 

of attachments are as binding as the conditions of approval in the main body of the final decision. 

G4.  Due dates / public improvements: 

a. PLA/PAR/SUB:  Unless a condition specifies otherwise, conditions inc. those relating to 

any of final subdivision, final partition, property line adjustment or lot consolidation 

recordation are due by any of (1) before completion of recordation with the County, 

specifically no later than a City official signing a plat or re-plat Mylar per WDO 5.01.06C.1 

and (2) building permit application, whichever is earlier.  Also prior to both any 

recordation of any final subdivision, final partition, or property line adjustment and any 

of (1) and (2), whichever of (1) or (2) is earlier, the applicant shall submit and obtain 

Planning Division approval of an Address Assignment Request.  (For suggested addresses 

to request, refer either to the Pre-App PRE 2020-15 follow-up notes p. 6. or to the staff 

report / final decision “Notes to the Applicant” section that comes after the conditions, 

Note 18.) 

b. Dedications & Construction:  Unless a condition specifies otherwise, ROW and easement 

dedications and recordation(s), construction of frontage/street improvements, and 

construction of off-site, park, and other public improvements are due by any of (1) before 

completion of recordation with the County, specifically no later than a City official signing 

a plat or re-plat Mylar per WDO 5.01.06C.1 and (2) building permit application, whichever 

is earlier.  Where phasing is relevant, building permit issuance means issuance for the 

phase in which the conditioned improvement is located. 

 

102

https://www.woodburn-or.gov/dev-planning/page/address-assignment-request-form


Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 
Staff Report 
Page 5 of 10 

G5.  Recordation due dates:  The applicant shall apply to the County for recordations of items 

that the City requires no later than six (6) months prior to expiration of the land use approval as 

WDO 4.02.04B establishes, and shall complete recordations no later than three years past the 

land use “final decision” date.  The due date to complete recordations shall not supersede when 

recordations are due per Condition G4. 

 

G6.  Improvements civil engineering plan (CEP) review:  Per Attachment 203. 

G7.  Final plat application:  The developer shall, prior to recordation with the County, apply to 

the City for Subdivision Final Plat Approval per WDO 5.01.06. 

 

G8.  Fees:  The developer shall pay fees per Attachment 206. 

 

G-PW. Public Works:  The developer shall follow the appended PW comments (October 7, 2021; 

Attachment 102A). 

 

 

 

 

Preliminary Subdivision 2020-03 

SUB-1.  Administration and documents:  Per Attachment 202. 

 

SUB-2.  Brown Street:  The developer shall: 

a. Streetside PUE:  Dedicate 5 ft per WDO 3.02.01B and no wider per Condition V2a. 

b. Bicycle lane:  Be required to construct per Condition V2b. 

c. Landscape strips:  In addition to street trees per Condition V2d, landscape and irrigate 

per Condition V2c. 

d. ROW:  Dedicate ROW to result in min 36 ft west of centerline to meet or exceed the min 

width necessary to conform to WDO Figure 3.01D. 

e. Improvements:  Improve per both the half-street of Figure 3.01D plus 4 ft additional 

width of pavement east of centerline to conform to WDO 3.01.03C.  Bury electric power 

lines per Condition V3. 

f. Subsurface/underground:  Construct subsurface or underground improvements for 

potable water, sanitary sewer, and drainage or stormwater management as PW directs. 

103



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 
Staff Report 
Page 6 of 10 

  
Exhibit SUB-2:  Figure 3.01D – Service Collector 

 

 

SUB-3.  Access management and public shared access: 

a. Access management:  The developer’s choice of either Lot 1 or 5 is prohibited from its 

own direct driveway access to Brown Street and shall take vehicular access from the 

shared access driveway shared among Lots 2-4.  The driveway on the remaining lot shall 

be max width per Condition V5. 

b. Shared access easement:  To meet WDO 3.04.0A.2 & 3.04.03B.1, the developer shall 

establish a public shared access easement minimum 20 ft wide if the shared driveway is 

curbless, 21 ft if with curbs, or wider depending on how the developer conforms to 

walkway Condition V4, and revocable only with the concurrence of the Director.  The 

easement centerline shall follow that or those of the shared driveway and extend 

between ROW and each driveway stub. 

c. Text:  The easement shall grant public access (ingress/egress) to and from Brown Street 

to the benefit of Lots 2-4 as well as either Lot 1 or 5 and include the following text:  

"Pursuant to Woodburn Development Ordinance (WDO) 3.04.03B.3, the public shared 

access (ingress and egress) right of this easement is revocable only with the written 

concurrence of the Community Development Director." 

d. Driveway:  The driveway shall be maximum 20 ft wide if curbless or 21 ft if with two 6-

inch curbs.  The developer may sharpen the appearance of the turn radius of the driveway 

“T” by installing “grasscrete”.  The developer shall pave the south jut of the fire apparatus 

turnaround to the south property line, without curbing, to be adjacent to Lot 2 or Lots 1 

& 2 of a preliminary subdivision of the Brown Street Properties, including 1550 Brown 

Street, proposed through Pre App PRE 21-25 as Exhibit SUB-3 below illustrates. 

104



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 
Staff Report 
Page 7 of 10 

 
Exhibit SUB-3:  PRE 21-25 draft subdivision plan 

e. Review:  Regarding Condition G4, the developer shall submit a draft easement text and 

draft Exhibit A legal description and Exhibit B drawing prior to recordation and bundled 

with other materials for review regarding conditions that are due prior to final plat 

approval by the City. 

f. Utilities / off-street PUE:  Atop the shared access driveway, the developer shall dedicate 

an off-street PUE minimum width 16 ft that both secures access to public utilities by each 

of min Lots 2-4 and to accomplish such as PW directs. 

g. Maintenance agreement:  To meet WDO 3.04.03B.1 & 3, the developer shall establish a 

shared driveway private maintenance agreement addressing surface and 

subsurface/underground shared improvements.  The developer need not submit a draft 

for Director review prior to recordation, but shall submit a copy of the recorded document 

by, as an exception to any conflicting general condition about due dates, building permit 

application. 

 

 

 

 

Variance 21-04 

 

V1.  Lot depth:  Varying from WDO 1.02 “Lot … Flag lot” and Figure 1.02D, the developer may 

apply the lot depth standard for Lots 2 & 3 north-south instead of east-west. 

 

 

105



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 
Staff Report 
Page 8 of 10 

V2.  Brown Street:  The developer shall: 

a. Streetside PUE:  Not dedicate streetside PUE wider than 5 ft, with allowance for a jut or 

juts around fire hydrants to meet OFC as administered by the independent Woodburn 

Fire District or public works construction code. 

b. Bicycle lane:  Construct the WDO Figure 3.01D west half-street bicycle lane, and stripe it 

both to be MUTCD-compliant and as PW directs. 

c. Landscape strips:  Landscape the landscape strip or strips area remaining after street 

tree plantings with lawn grass or, if the City Engineer in writing allows, a species of 

groundcover.  Cobblestones, gravel, pebbles, and rocks are prohibited.  Bark dust, 

mulch, or wood chips are permissible only within the immediate vicinity of a street tree 

trunk.  The developer shall install landscape strip irrigation, and shall provide temporary 

irrigation during construction, per the public works construction code. 

d. Street trees:  Plant min 4 street trees inc. w/ root barriers as Attachment 201 defines.  

Fees in-lieu, if any, shall be per Attachment 206. 

 

V3.  Burial of electric power lines:  The developer shall do either (a.) or (b.): 

a. Bury:  At the site SE corner, remove from the electric power pole from the ROW, bury 

under the presently unpaved ROW the power line(s) that cross SW from the SE corner of 

Brown Street and the manufactured dwelling park driveway.  (See Sheet C2.0 Existing 

Site Conditions as Attachment 103B for context).  If the electric utility directs, it is 

permissible to install a new pole or poles within the easterly side of the Brown Street 

ROW beyond the gravel road to accomplish the lines going into and coming out of the 

ground east of the road.  This shall be due the same as per Condition G4b; or 

b. Pay:  Pay an electric power pole removal and line burial fee per Attachment 206. 

c. On-site:  On site (outside ROW), the developer shall bury or underground all utility 

services per WDO 3.02.04C. 

 

V4.  Shared access walkway:  The developer shall provide for shared walking access by 

constructing an ADA-compliant walkway min 3.5 ft wide, including curb width, along the required 

shared access driveway and that connects to each of Lots 2-4 as follows:   

a. Alignment/route:  The walkway may follow the driveway within or outside it.  The 

walkway may be part of mountable curb if the flat area above the slope is min width 3.5 

ft.   

b. Pavement:  The walkway may be asphalt, poured concrete, or concrete pavers.   

(1) If asphalt:  Whether within the driveway 20-ft width of asphalt or as additional width 

of asphalt, the walkway shall be hatch-striped, similar to an ADA parking stall 

accessible aisle, min width 3.5 ft to distinguish it from adjacent vehicular area.   

 

 

106



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 
Staff Report 
Page 9 of 10 

(2) If concrete:  (a) if outside the driveway 20-ft width, then raised min 4 inches or (b) if 

within, then raised through mountable curbing.  Either way, a concrete walkway 

shall be constructed to the same PW structural support, thickness, and slope 

specifications as for sidewalk. 

c. Access easement:  The shared access easement shall cover the walkway area.  The 

walkway shall be constructed to the same PW structural support, thickness, and slope 

specifications as for sidewalk. 

d. Plan review:  Drawings and documents necessary to administer the condition are due by 

building permit application, and walkway construction is due by final inspection. 

 

V5.  Driveway max:  The shared driveway shall be 20 ft wide max measured between curbing, if 

any, unless the OFC as administered by the independent Woodburn Fire District causes 

driveway width to exceed the max, and the driveway approach / apron / curb cut for Lot 1 or 5 

shall be 16 ft wide max and located no farther than 6 ft from the shared driveway curb cut. 

 

V6.  Bond / bonding / performance guarantee:  If the City accepts a request to review bonding 

construction of public improvements, review and approval, if any, shall be per Attachments 204 

& 206.  

 

V7.  Significant Tree removal:  For any and every Significant Tree the developer would remove, 

the developer shall pay a fee per Attachment 206. 

 

V8.  Architecture:  Where a WDO 3.07.03 provision regulates a dwelling front, for each dwelling 

on Lots 2 & 3 the provision shall apply to the south facade. 

 

V9-T. Bus transit fee: To further transportation demand management (TDM) through bus 

transit, the developer shall pay a bus transit fee per Attachment 206. 

 

 

  

107



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 
Staff Report 

Page 10 of 10 

Actions 
 

The Planning Commission may instead act on the land use application(s) to recommend to: 

1. Approve with modified conditions, or 

2. Deny, based on WDO criteria or other City provisions. 

 

If the Planning Commission were to act upon the recommendation, staff would proceed to a 

City Council hearing, tentatively scheduled for November 22, 2021, with the Commission 

recommendation.  (Were the Council to approve the consolidated application package, it would 

do so by adopting two ordinances, one for annexation and one for zoning, and authorizing a 

final decision document for the applications besides the annexation.) 

 

 

 

Attachment List 

 

101. Marked Tax Map 

102. Analyses & Findings 

102A. Public Works comments (Oct. 7, 2021; 2 pages) 

103A. Annexation Service Provider Letters (SPLs; 4 pages) 

103B.  Site plan existing site conditions Sheet C2.0 (dated May 4, 2021; submitted May 5, 2021) 

103C.  Marion County Assessor’s Office aerial view of tree canopies (Oct. 6, 2021) 

103D.  Site plan Sheet C1.0 (dated July 23, 2021; submitted July 26, 2021) 

104. Transportation System Plan (TSP) Fig. 2 “Functional Roadway Classification” 

201.* ANX 2020-02 Valentina Estates No. 2:  Dictionary & Glossary 

202. ANX 2020-02 Valentina Estates No. 2:  Administration Provisions 

203. ANX 2020-02 Valentina Estates No. 2:  Civil Engineering Plan (CEP) Review Provisions 

204. ANX 2020-02 Valentina Estates No. 2:  Performance Guarantee / Bond / Bonding 

Provisions 

205. [Number skipped.] 

206. ANX 2020-02 Valentina Estates No. 2:  Conditioned Fees 

*The 200 series of attachments are details for the Attachment 102 conditions of approval. 

108



^̂

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

<Ò

<Ò

R!

R!

<Ò
<Ò

80.
94

16
7.6

6

1200(51
4.4

8)

68
.16

1.43 AC

86
.75

27
94

-02
19

311.02 68
.45

10
6.3

5

900

16
3.5

3

16
3.7

8

283.80

1405
PARCEL 1

680.40

8.41 AC

800

600

40
6.8

0

75
8-4

38
,39

(61
5.3

2)

700

20' ACCESS EASE.

31.30

(20
0)

559.66

50

50

50

40

60

55

45

EL
AN

A

50

60 KE
LO

WN
A

50

50

PAYNER=55'
20 40ANDREA'S  CT

4050

5050 ST 40

50

PAYNE

45

STREET

50

40

COMSTOCK      AVENUE50

ST
BR

OW
N

60'

BO
ON

ES
   F

ER
RY

   R
D

60

60

30

BROW N
ST

30

40

BRADLEY ST

80

OGLE ST

80

UNION PA
CIFIC RAILR

OAD

20 A  
   S

TR
EE

T

40

40BRADLEY
WILSON ST

45

40STREET

40

60

AKSENIA  STREET

R=45

R=50'

50'60

50' CTWARREN    WAY

STR
EET

55LUBA STR
EET

STR
EET

5060

WA
LK

ER

60 50'

BRIDLEWOOD

50
'

PANA

BROWN

60

R=55'
NUGGET

CT

60
LANE

50'

60

50

PANA   CT

50'

50

50

PANA   
STR

EET

R=55'

40AV
E

WA
Y

ST 8080

5060

20

FR
ONT S

T

EL
AN

A

60 KE
LO

WN
A

50
60

55 SE
TT

LE
MI

ER

25
2080 PARR 55ROAD 80 5060

4060 50

6050

BRIDLEWOOD  LANE

40KELOWNA CT 50 50

60DR
IVE

UNION PACIFIC RAIROAD

OGLE ST

50 BRANDYWINE CT 50

60

2060
60'

34 80

34

COUNTRY   L
ANE

WA
Y

EL
AN

A

50'

60'
MARYLYNN

20

50'MR
 38

50
'

R=49'DAHLIA

AU
TU

MN

26' 50'26'

BL
VD CO

UN
TR

Y
LA

NE

50'

FOXGLOVE

50'

STREET 50'

AVENUE

50'

TULIP

STREET50' VINE AVE

50'

50'

50'

60'

TULIP   AVE 50
'

CO
MS

TO
CK

    
WA

Y

RO
Y  

 AV
EN

UE

BR
OW

N 
  S

T

69'

50
'VINE  AVE 50

50

LAZY ACRES

MOBILE HOME PARK

ST

BROWN

45

WARREN

50 WAY

ME
AD

OW
VA

LE

50 MEADOWVALE
RUN

DE
ER

50'

60'

DEER HERMANSON

RUN60
'

SHALIMAR

MOBILE  ESTATES

60

30

MR
 38

PARR  ACRES

MOBILE  HOME  PARK

7070

ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL
50

PR
IVA

TE
 S

T

UNION PA
CIFIC

 RAILR
OAD

60

1/4 COR

CTR SEC

W'LY NW CORB S BONNEY
DLC 47

NE COR
P RAYMOND

DLC 58

1813

1/4 COR
1924

E'LY SE CORP. RAYMOND
DLC 58

RE-ENT CORP. RAYMOND
DLC 58 SW COR

B. BONNEY
DLC 47

03 9
3 0

03 03 9

03 9
3 0

03 03 0

03 03 9

03 03 0
03 03 9

03 60 9

03 03 9

03 6
0 0

03 
03 

0

03 60 9

03 03 9

03 03 9

294.20

1406
PARCEL 2
3.01 ACP.P.

26
8.0

2
12

4.7
0

75.28

269.71

864.26

118
.74

75
6.1

6

260.96

49
5.3

9

243.05 54.93 76.90
40.90

7.00

21.99

2.36
26.0867.

33

49.75

03 60 9

03 03 9
2018    -0

57

DAYLILY   ST

SUNFLOWER   ST

IRIS  ST

AU
TU

MN
 BV

FOXGLOVE
ST

DAHLIA
ST

SPRING BLVD

SOUTH ARTERIAL

SUNFLOWER

DAYLILY
STST

IRIS

ST

50

50

50

50

50

50

60

50'

50'50'

50'

60
'

50
'

38
'

60
'

38
'

50'

50' 50'

SEE MAP
051W18BD

SEE MAP
051W18DB

SEE MAP
051W18DC

SEE MAP
051W18D

SEE MAP
051W19A

SEE MAP
052W24

SEE MAP
051W18AC

SEE MAP
052W13

SEE MAP
051W18BC

SEE MAP
051W19B

18CA18CB

18CD
18CC

MARION COUNTY, OREGON
SW1/4 SEC18 T5S R1W W.M.

WOODBURNWOODBURN
05 1W 18C05 1W 18C

SCALE   1" = 200'

FOR ADDITIONAL MAPS VISIT OUR WEBSITE AT
www.co.marion.or.us

DISCLAIMER:  THIS MAP WAS PREPARED
FOR ASSESSMENT PURPOSES ONLY

05 1W 18C05 1W 18C
WOODBURNWOODBURN

05 1W 18C05 1W 18C

05 1W 18C05 1W 18C

LEGEND
LINE TYPES

CORNER TYPES

Section Corner<Ò
1516

21 22

Waterline - Non Bndry

Railroad Centerline

Historical Boundary
Easement

Taxcode Line
Map Boundary

Road Right-of-Way
Taxlot Boundary

Railroad Right-of-Way
Private Road ROW
Subdivision/Plat Bndry
Waterline - Taxlot Bndry

NUMBERS
Tax Code Number00 00 0

All acres listed are Net Acres, excluding any
portions of the taxlot within public ROWs

Acreage

Tick Marks: A tick mark in the road indicates that the
labeled dimension extends into the public ROW

0.25 AC

NOTES

200.00
175.00

PLOT DATE: 6/25/2021

CANCELLED NUMBERS
100
200
201
300
400
500
1000
1300
1301
1400
1401
1402
1403
1404
1500

   

R! DLC Corner
<Ò 1/4 Section Cor.Ð 1/16TH Section Cor.

109

colinco
Highlight

colinco
Text Box
Attachment 101



Attachment 102 
 

Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-03, & VAR 21-04, etc. Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 1 of 29 

 

ANX 2020-02:  Analyses & Findings 
 
This attachment to the staff report analyzes the application materials and finds through 

statements how the application materials relate to and meet applicable provisions such as 

criteria, requirements, and standards.  They confirm that a given standard is met or if not met, 

they call attention to it, suggest a remedy, and have a corresponding recommended condition 

of approval.  Symbols aid locating and understanding categories of findings: 

 

Symbol Category Indication 

 Requirement (or guideline) met No action needed 

 Requirement (or guideline) not met Correction needed 

 Requirement (or guideline) not applicable No action needed 

 

 Requirement (or guideline) met, but might 
become unmet because of condition applied to 
meet separate and related requirement that is 
not met 

 Plan sheets and/or narrative inconsistent 

 Other special circumstance benefitting from 
attention 

Revision needed for 
clear and consistent 
records 

 
Deviation:  Planned Unit Development, Zoning 
Adjustment, and/or Variance 

Request to modify, 
adjust, or vary from 
a requirement 

 

Section references are to the Woodburn Development Ordinance (WDO). 

 

Table of Contents 
Project Name & Case File Numbers .............................................................................................................. 2 

Location ......................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Land Use & Zoning ........................................................................................................................................ 2 

Statutory Dates ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

Annexation Provisions .................................................................................................................................. 4 

Zoning Map Change Provisions ................................................................................................................... 10 

Subdivision Preliminary Approval Provisions .............................................................................................. 11 

Variance Provisions ..................................................................................................................................... 13 

Remaining Provisions .................................................................................................................................. 16 

Recommended Conditions of Approval ...................................................................................................... 21 

110

https://www.woodburn-or.gov/dev-planning/page/woodburn-development-ordinance-wdo


Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 2 of 29 

 

Applicant Identity ........................................................................................................................................ 27 

Notes to the Applicant ................................................................................................................................ 27 

 

 

Project Name & Case File Numbers 
The applicant submitted the project name Schultz Farm, but through re-submittal renamed it to 

Dove Landing.  The land use application master/parent case file number is Annexation ANX 

2020-03, and the children/corollary case file numbers are Planned Unit Development PUD 

2020-02, Preliminary Subdivision SUB 2020-03, & Zone Change 2020-02. 

 

Location 
Address(es) 1251 Brown St 

Tax Lot(s) 051W18C000900, 0.95 acres 

Nearest 
intersection 

Brown St & Vine Ave 

 

 

Land Use & Zoning 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation Low Density Residential 

Zoning District To be zoned Residential Single Family (RS) upon 
annexation 

Overlay District(s) none 

Existing Use(s) Demolished rural homestead 

 

For context, the comprehensive plan land use map designations and zoning are illustrated 

below with excerpts from the City geographic information system (GIS), the subject property 

labeled “outside city”, and the zoning is tabulated further below: 

  
Comprehensive Plan land use map excerpt Zoning map excerpt 

 

 

Cardinal Direction Adjacent Zoning 

111



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 3 of 29 

 

North Residential Single Family (RS) 

East No City zoning because not annexed; Lazy Acres Mobile Home Park. 

South RS; “Brown Street Properties” 

West RS; Boones Crossing Phase 4 PUD subdivision 

 

 

Statutory Dates 
 

Application 
Completeness 

August 11, 2021 

120-Day Final 
Decision Deadline 

December 9, 2021 per Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 227.178.  (The nearest 
and prior regularly scheduled City Council date would November 22.)* 

 

*However, the Assistant City Attorney had counseled staff on January 16, 2018 that an annexation 

request is not subject to the 120-day deadline for final action per 227.178(8). 

 

 

  

112

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors227.html


Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 4 of 29 

 

 

 

Annexation Provisions 
 

Because the proposal is for annexation, per 5.04 it requires a Type IV review with City Council 

decision.  The applicant submitted application materials on October 22, 2020 and revised and 

additional materials through August 3, 2021 (excerpted within Attachment 103). 

 

5.04.01 Annexation 
 

A. Purpose:  The purpose of this Type IV review is to provide a procedure to incorporate 

contiguous territory into the City in compliance with state requirements, Woodburn Comprehensive 

Plan, and Woodburn Development Ordinance. 

 

B. Mandatory Pre-Application Conference:  Prior to requesting annexation to the City, a Pre-

Application Conference (Section 4.01.04) is required.  … 

 

C. Criteria: 

1. Compliance with applicable Woodburn Comprehensive Plan goals and policies regarding 

annexation. 

2. Territory to be annexed shall be contiguous to the City and shall either: 

a. Link to planned public facilities with adequate capacity to serve existing and future 

development of the property as indicated by the Woodburn Comprehensive Plan; or 

b. Guarantee that public facilities have adequate capacity to serve existing and future 

development of the property. 

3. Annexations shall show a demonstrated community need for additional territory and 

development based on the following considerations: 

a. Lands designated for residential and community uses should demonstrate substantial 

conformance to the following: 

1) The territory to be annexed should be contiguous to the City on two or more sides; 

2) The territory to be annexed should not increase the inventory of buildable land 

designated on the Comprehensive Plan as Low or Medium Density Residential within the 

City to more than a 5-year supply; 

3) The territory proposed for annexation should reflect the City’s goals for directing 

growth by using public facility capacity that has been funded by the City’s capital 

improvement program; 

4) The site is feasible for development and provides either: 

a) Completion or extension of the arterial/collector street pattern as depicted on 

the Woodburn Transportation System Plan; or 

b) Connects existing stub streets, or other discontinuous streets, with another 

public street. 

113



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 5 of 29 

 

5) Annexed [sic] fulfills a substantial unmet community need, that has been identified by 

the City Council after a public hearing.  Examples of community needs include park space 

and conservation of significant natural or historic resources. 

b. Lands designated for commercial, industrial and other uses should demonstrate 

substantial conformance to the following criteria: 

1) The proposed use of the territory to be annexed shall be for industrial or other uses 

providing employment opportunities; 

2) The proposed industrial or commercial use of the territory does not require the 

expansion of infrastructure, additional service capacity, or incentives that are in excess of 

the costs normally borne by the community for development; 

3) The proposed industrial or commercial use of the territory provides an economic 

opportunity for the City to diversify its economy. 

 

D. Procedures: 

1. An annexation may be initiated by petition based on the written consent of: 

a. The owners of more than half of the territory proposed for annexation and more than 

half of the resident electors within the territory proposed to be annexed; or 

b. One hundred percent of the owners and fifty percent of the electors within the 

territory proposed to be annexed; or 

c. A lesser number of property owners. 

2. If an annexation is initiated by property owners of less than half of property to be annexed, 

after holding a public hearing and if the City Council approves the proposed annexation, the City 

Council shall call for an election within the territory to be annexed.  Otherwise no election on a 

proposed annexation is required. 

 

E. Zoning Designation for Annexed Property:  All land annexed to the City shall be designated 

consistent with the Woodburn Comprehensive Plan, unless an application to re-designate the 

property is approved as part of the annexation process. 

 

F.  The timing of public improvements is as follows: 

1. Street dedication is required upon annexation. 

2. Dedication of public utility easements (PUE) is required upon annexation. 

3. Street improvements are required upon development. 

4. Connection to the sanitary sewer system is required upon development or septic failure. 

5. Connection to the public water system is required upon development or well failure. 

6. Connection to the public storm drain system is required upon development. 

 

Regarding subsection B., staff hosted pre-application conference Pre-App PRE 2020-15 on July 

14, 2020. 

 

The applicant requests that the City designate the annexed territory with the Residential Single 

Family (RS) zoning district. 

 

114



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 6 of 29 

 

Regarding the criteria of subsection C.: 

 

1. The City Comprehensive Plan, Section G. Growth Management and Annexation contains 

annexation policies on pp. 30-31.  The annexation criteria in the WDO already reflect the 

goals, including efficient City services. 

 

First, the territory to be annexed is within the Woodburn Urban Growth Boundary 

(UGB).  The premise of a UGB is to define an area feasible for the City to provide services 

to greenfield development over approximately 20 years as described in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  So, in this way the annexation of territory within the UGB is 

consistent with the comp plan. 

 

Second, the territory also is adjacent to infrastructure that development can make use 

of or extend into the territory to develop it: 

 Roads and street:  Brown Street borders to the property to the east, providing a 

means of access.  (The annexation legal description and map series excludes the 

right-of-way (ROW) adjacent to the site.  ANX 2018-01 Brown Street properties 

annexed the ROW through Ordinance No. 2563 [2018], Exhibit B.) 

 Transit:  Along Brown Street, the City and other agencies could run transit 

vehicles.  To mitigate the effect of additional dwellings on the City bus transit 

system, staff applies a condition to development itself to assess a small fee. 

 Potable water, sanitary sewer, and stormwater sewer:  These are adjacent or 

nearby, and as the Public Works Department Engineering Division directs at the 

civil engineer plan (CEP) review and public works permit stage, the developer will 

upgrade and extend them as necessary to provide laterals to the site 

development and for these upgraded and extended utilities to accommodate the 

demands of the development. 

 Other:  Other franchise utility providers attend to such utilities as electric power, 

cable television and internet, natural gas, and cellular wireless telephony, often 

using existing or extended ROWs.  However, because required street 

improvements through 3.01 affect 3.02.04 relating to electric power lines and 

other utilities, staff applies a condition or conditions to development itself to 

clarify how staff applies 3.02.04 and ensure either that adjacent power lines go 

from a rural overhead state to an urban underground state or that a developer 

pays a reasonable contribution towards such.  

 

2. The territory is contiguous to the City.  Per the comp plan and with implementation 

through the WDO, upon development of the territory the City would require 

115



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 7 of 29 

 

improvements that guarantee that public facilities have adequate capacity to serve such 

development.   

 

The Public Works Department identified no impediments to serve the development that 

would not be resolved at the permitting stage, evidenced by the Public Works 

comments that are Attachment 102A. 

 

Second, the Public Works Department, Woodburn Fire District (WFD), and Woodburn 

School District (WSD) submitted service provider letters (SPLs) as annexation 

applications require.  They are in Attachment 103A.  The Public Works one dated August 

31, 2020 states: 

 
“This letter is to certify that the City of Woodburn has no capacity issue with the public 

wastewater treatment facility or public water treatment facility. However, the subject 

property is not adjacent to an existing collection system for water, wastewater or a public 

storm sewer collection system.  The requirements for these collection facilities would still 

need to be determined. The capacity analysis, design and installation would be the 

responsibility of the applicant/property owner.” 

 

Along with the Public Works comments that are Attachment 102A, it appears to 

Planning Division staff that the Public Works Department Engineering Division has no 

objection to annexation and that public works can serve the development through 

typical public improvements by a developer of the territory to be annexed. 

 

Additionally, the applicant’s narrative (October 21, 2020, p. 1) states: 

 
“The existing sanitary sewer will extended to the south to serve the annexed property. This 

sanitary sewer has adequate capacity for the annexed property. The water system is existing 

in front of the proposed annexation property. This water system has adequate capacity. The 

storm system for the annexed property will be to connect to the system to the south. This 

south system has adequate capacity and elevation for the proposed annexation.” 

 

There’s no written objection by the Public Works Department Engineering Division to 

the applicant’s narrative. 

 

The staff bullet 2 and 4 comments on criterion 1, regarding transit and electric power 

lines, are relevant also to this criterion 2 about public facility (infrastructure) adequate 

capacity. 

 

3. a. Examining the considerations under subsection a. because the Comprehensive Plan 

land use map designates the territory Low Density Residential, and the territory is to be 

116



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 8 of 29 

 

designated with Residential Single Family (RS) base zoning district consistent with both 

the applicant’s request and Comprehensive Plan Policy Table 1: 

 

1) The territory to be annexed at its north, south, and west boundaries meets the 

guideline that it “should be contiguous to the City on two or more sides”. 

 

2) The applicant’s narrative (p. 2) states: 

 
“Woodburn Buildable Lots are in low supply. These new proposed 5 lots will be far 

below the Woodburn 5-year supply.” 

 

Staff concurs. 

 

3) The applicant’s narrative (p. 2) states: 

 
“The proposed annexation utilizes available Street, Water, Sanitary sewer and Storm 

water systems.” 

 

There’s no written objection by the Public Works Department Engineering 

Division to the applicant’s narrative. 

 

4) Regarding (a), the applicant’s narrative (p. 2) states: 

 
“Brown Road is a developed Street within Woodburn and the Marion County Portion 

to the south is a gravel road. This gravel road does match the alignment in Woodburn. 

The improved Brown Road fronting 1251 Brown Road will meet Woodburn 

Transportation Plan.” 

 

Staff concurs and adds that regarding (b), the narrative adds that this is not 

applicable, and staff concurs. 

 

5) The applicant asserts no unmet community need. Because these analyses and 

findings come before the first public hearing by the Planning Commission, it is 

yet unknown if annexation fulfills a substantial unmet community need because 

the City Council has not yet identified such a need. 

 

Annexation of the subject territory demonstrates substantial conformance with the criteria. 

 

Regarding D., the applicant obtained the requisite written consent and such that no election is 

needed. 

117



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 9 of 29 

 

 

Regarding E., the applicant confirms the proposal includes no request to amend the 

Comprehensive Plan land use designation or upon annexation to designate the territory with a 

City base zoning district other than RS.  (Pursuant to Comprehensive Plan Policy Table 1, RS is 

the only applicable zoning district that implements the Low Density Residential designation.) 

 

Regarding F., the applicant need not address subsection 1. because the territory to be annexed 

is adjacent to annexed ROW and because the public improvements including ROW and public 

utility easement (PUE) dedications that F. describes are addressed through development 

review, i.e. land use review of site plans and, after land use review, civil engineering plan (CEP) 

review by the Public Works Department Engineering Division, instead of annexation itself 

 

  The annexation meets the criteria, including with conditions on the development itself. 

 

  

118



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 10 of 29 

 

 

 

Zoning Map Change Provisions 

 

Zoning Map Change Provisions 

5.04.04 

A. Purpose: The purpose of an Owner Initiated Official Zoning Map Change is to provide a 

procedure to change the Official Zoning Map, in a manner consistent with the Woodburn 

Comprehensive Plan. 

B. Criteria: The following criteria shall be considered in evaluating an Official Zoning Map 

Change; 

1. Demonstrated need for the proposed use and the other permitted uses within the proposed 

zoning designation. 

2. Demonstrated need that the subject property best meets the need relative to other properties 

in the existing developable land inventory already designated with the same zone considering size, 

location, configuration, visibility and other significant attributes of the subject property. 

3. Demonstration that amendments which significantly affect transportation facilities ensure 

that allowed land uses are consistent with the function, capacity, and level of service of the facility 

identified in the Transportation System Plan. This shall be accomplished by one of the following: 

a. Limiting allowed land uses to be consistent with the planned function of the transportation 

facility; or 

b. Amending the Transportation System Plan to ensure that existing, improved, or new 

transportation facilities are adequate to support the proposed land uses consistent with the 

requirement of the Transportation Planning Rule; or, 

c. Altering land use designations, densities, or design requirements to reduce demand for 

automobile travel and meet travel needs through other modes of transportation. 

Staff interprets this section such that it applies only to rezoning – a change from one City zoning 

district to another.  Because the zone change proposed through ZC 21-01 comes with 

annexation in order to assign City zoning, and the proposed zoning districts comply with the 

Comprehensive Plan land use map designations, the criteria are not applicable. 
 

  Not applicable. 
 

  

119



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 11 of 29 

 

 

 

Subdivision Preliminary Approval Provisions 

 

Subdivision Preliminary Approval Provisions 

5.03.10 Subdivision Preliminary Approval 

A. Purpose: The purpose of a Type III Subdivision decision is to ensure that the division of 

properties into 4 or more lots complies with the standards of this Ordinance (Sections 2 and 3).  

Subdivisions are allowed in all zones, provided the proposal meets applicable standards. 

B. Criteria:  Preliminary approval of a Subdivision shall require compliance with the following: 

1. That approval does not impede the future best use of the remainder of the property under the 

same ownership or adversely affect the safe and efficient development of the remainder of any 

adjoining land or access thereto. 

2. That the proposed development shall be served with city streets, water, sewer and storm 

drainage facilities with adequate capacity. 

3. That the plan for the development takes into account topography, vegetation and other natural 

features of the site. 

4. That adequate measures have been planned to alleviate identified hazards and limitations to 

development: 

a. For wetlands these shall be the measures required by the Division of State Lands for regulatory 

wetlands. 

b. For unstable areas, demonstration that streets and building sites are on geologically stable soil 

considering the stress and loads. 

5. The preliminary plat complies with all applicable provisions of this Ordinance (Sections 2 and 

3), except where waived by variance. 

Regarding the subdivision criteria: 

1. Adjacent development of residential subdivisions exists to the north (Valentina Estates 

plat) and west (Boones Crossing Phase 4 PUD plat).  To the south is annexed property 

yet to be redeveloped from rural to urban and for which there will have been a pre-

application meeting for subdivision, Pre-App PRE 21-26. 

2. The Public Works Department Engineering Division will see to this no later than during 

civil engineering plan (CEP) review following land use / planning / zoning approval. 

3. The site appears mostly flat, and the site plan appears to take this into account.  

Regarding tree preservation, see staff examination farther below for 3.06.07.  The same 

analysis and findings there apply also to this subdivision criterion. 

4. Staff knows of no natural hazards, and none of the applicant’s narratives or site plan 

sheets identify any.  Staff knows of no wetlands on site.  If any exist, the developer 

remains responsible for obtaining necessary permits from relevant outside agencies.  

Staff knows of no steep slope.  If any exist, the developer remains responsible for 

obtaining a grading permit, if required, and per a condition documenting grading 

120



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 12 of 29 

 

through a geotechnical report and sufficiently compacting and retaining dirt prior to 

construction of dwellings.  Second, conflicting vehicular turning movements can be a 

hazard, and because Brown Street is a Service Collector class street (of higher functional 

class than a local street), and 3.04.03 allows for access management, staff applies a 

condition or conditions to limit the number of driveways to 2 instead of 3 and to limit 

the widths of the driveways to lessen speeding, swooping turns into and out of the 

driveways. 

5. Regarding this criterion, yes if with the conditions of approval and except for VAR 21-04 

regarding lot depth for Lots 2 & 3.  Each lot meets minimum lot area and lot width and 

access conforms to the allowance for flag lots and for such lots to shave shared access 

per 1.02 “Lot … Flag lot”, Figure 1.02D (figure example Lots 3 & 4), and the lot 

dimensional standards in Table 2.02B. 

 

Staff applies conditions to specify administrative matters about how the developer carries out 

tasks such as how to record the subdivision, construct the half-street improvements, bury or 

pay towards burial of electric power lines, provide for a shared driveway and walkway as well as 

a public shared access easement covering them, and obtain City approval of new street 

addresses. 

 

  VAR:  Staff further addresses the variance to apply the lot depth standard differently below 

under the Variance Provisions section. 

 

 Staff applies a condition or conditions addressing the subdivision criterion of 5.03.10B.3 

regarding tree preservation as well as 3.06.07 regarding Significant Trees and also applies a 

condition or conditions regarding access management to lessen vehicular turning 

movement hazard. 

  

 

  

121



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 13 of 29 

 

 

 

Variance Provisions 
 

The variance application is for one request to measure lot depth north-south from the shared 

access easement instead of east-west from the front lot lines parallel to Brown Street as WDO 

1.02 and Figure 1.02D would require.  (1.02 “Lot … Flag lot”, Figure 1.02D) 

 

The applicant submitted narrative text addressing the criteria. 

 

Variance Criteria 
 
5.03.12 Variance 

A. Purpose: The purpose of this Type III Variance is to allow use of a property in a way that would 

otherwise be prohibited by this Ordinance. Uses not allowed in a particular zone are not subject 

to the variance process. Standards set by statute relating to siting of manufactured homes on 

individual lots; siding and roof of manufactured homes; and manufactured home and dwelling 

park improvements are non-variable. 

B. Criteria: A variance may be granted to allow a deviation from development standard of this 

ordinance where the following criteria are met: 

1. Strict adherence to the standards of this ordinance is not possible or imposes an excessive 

burden on the property owner, and 

2. Variance to the standards will not unreasonably impact existing or potential uses or 

development on the subject property or adjacent properties. 

C. Factors to Consider: A determination of whether the criteria are satisfied involves balancing 

competing and conflicting interests. The factors that are listed below are not criteria and are not 

intended to be an exclusive list and are used as a guide in determining whether the criteria are 

met. 

1. The variance is necessary to prevent unnecessary hardship relating to the land or structure, 

which would cause the property to be unbuildable by application of this Ordinance. Factors to 

consider in determining whether hardship exists, include: 

a. Physical circumstances over which the applicant has no control related to the piece of 

property involved that distinguish it from other land in the zone, including but not limited 

to, lot size, shape, and topography. 

b. Whether reasonable use similar to other properties can be made of the property 

without the variance. 

c. Whether the hardship was created by the person requesting the variance. 

2. Development consistent with the request will not be materially injurious to adjacent 

properties. Factors to be considered in determining whether development consistent with the 

variance [is] materially injurious include, but are not limited to: 

122



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 14 of 29 

 

a. Physical impacts such development will have because of the variance, such as visual, 

noise, traffic and drainage, erosion and landslide hazards. 

b. Incremental impacts occurring as a result of the proposed variance. 

3. Existing physical and natural systems, such as but not limited to traffic, drainage, dramatic 

land forms or parks will not be adversely affected because of the variance. 

4. Whether the variance is the minimum deviation necessary to make reasonable economic 

use of the property; 

5. Whether the variance conflicts with the Woodburn Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 

Variance Request:  How the City Applies the Lot Depth Definition 
 
1.02 “Lot … Flag lot” & Figure 1.02D 

 

The applicant’s sole variance request is to request for Lots 2 & 3 to measure lot depth north-

south from the shared access easement instead of east-west from the front lot lines parallel to 

Brown Street as WDO 1.02 “Lot … Flag lot” and Figure 1.02D would require.  The applicant’s 

variance narrative (submitted August 3, 2021; p. 3) states: 

 
“Woodburn Development Code Figure 1.02D indicate that Lots 2 and 3 of the proposed 

Valentina Estates 2 would be defined as flag lots.  

 

The development code further stipulates in Section 1.02 that the front line ‘in the case of a flag 

lot, the lot line which is most nearly parallel to the street that provides access to the interior lot.’  

The front lines of Lots 2 and 3 which are most nearly parallel to the street are the east lines. 

With the east lines being the front line, without variance, the lot depth would be defined to be 

as 79.04' and the minimum depth by Woodburn Development Code is 90'.  

 

Therefore, a variance is being pursued to designate the south lines of lots 2 and 3 to be the 

south line of each of the lots. This south line is the property line that is the frontage property 

line along the access lane.” 

 

Staff concurs with the applicant’s description of the request.  Regarding the criteria, B.1 & 2, 

the narrative states (pp. 3-4): 

 
“Strict adherence to the Woodburn Development Standards would limit the development to 4 

residential lots. The Valentina Estates Phase 2 as presented provides 5 buildable lots meeting 

Woodburn Development Lot Sizes and dimensions. Allowing the frontage of Lots 2 and 3 to be 

the south lines parallel to the private access lane would provide 5 buildable lots.  

 

Limiting the development to 4 lots imposes an excessive burden on the property owner. 

 

123



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 15 of 29 

 

The proposed Valentina Estates 2 has frontage along Brown Street and access from the private 

lane for Lots 2, 3, 4, and 5. There are no through streets in the proposed development. The 

proposed development is an island of infill in the Woodburn residential areas.  

 

The proposed development will not impact existing or potential uses of the development on the 

subject property or adjacent properties.” 

 

Staff concurs and recommends conditions of approval. 

 

 The variance criteria are met with conditions. 

 

 

  

124



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 16 of 29 

 

 

 

Remaining Provisions 
These are applicable provisions not already addressed in the application type provisions 

sections above. 

 

4.01.07 Consolidated Applications 
An applicant may request, in writing, to consolidate applications needed for a single development 

project.  Under a consolidated review, all applications shall be processed following the procedures 

applicable for the highest type decision requested.  It is the express policy of the City that 

development review not be segmented into discrete parts in a manner that precludes a 

comprehensive review of the entire development and its cumulative impacts. 

The proposal is consolidated. 
 

2.07 Special Uses 
There is no “community club building” (clubhouse). 
 

  None apply. 

 

3.01 Streets 
3.01, and 3.02.04 relating to electric power lines and other utilities, regulate street 

improvements. 

 

Long-range Planning 

TSP Figure 6 “Local Street Connectivity Plan” shows no street connections into the south area of 

the urban growth boundary (UGB) affecting the subject property, particularly compared with 

the constructed street network.  A street is neither expected nor required by Fig. 6 to enter or 

cross the subject property, and every lot can have direct or indirect access to a public street 

without a new public street per 3.04.01A. 

125



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 17 of 29 

 

 
TSP Figure 6 

 

 Staff applies a Condition SUB -2 to leave no doubt about what half-street improvements are 

required and variance Conditions V2a, b, & c and V3 to spell out how staff applies 3.01 and 

make it less difficult for PW to direct specifications and drawings during civil engineering 

plan (CEP) review that PW leads. 

 

 

3.04 Vehicular Access 
 

3.04.03 Driveway Guidelines and Standards 

B. Joint Access 

3. Every joint driveway or access between separate lots shall be established by an access 

easement and maintenance agreement to the satisfaction of the Director and revocable only 

with the concurrence of the Director. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

126



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 18 of 29 

 

3.04.01A regulates lot access to a public street and driveway widths.  Subsection A.1 allows for 

indirect access by easement, and 3.02.01 & 3.04.03B regulate easements.  The subdivision 

proposal includes indirect access to and from Brown Street for the west 3 of the 5 lots (Lots 2-

4). 

 

The WDO lacks specific steps for the developer about how to meet the shared access easement 

option.  Staff seeks to limit driveway number and width along Brown Street, which is a Service 

Collector class street (of higher functional class than a local street), and to minimize both 

interruption of planter strip and developer effort to plant the required street trees. 

 

 Staff applies Condition SUB-3 and V2, V4, & V5 to spell out for the developer how to meet 

the shared access easement standards, meet the lot access requirement, and to limit 

driveway number and width along Brown Street, which is a Service Collector class street (of 

higher functional class than a local street), because of functional class, and to minimize both 

interruption of planter strip and developer effort to plant the required street trees. 

 
3.04.05 Traffic Impact Analysis 

A. A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) may be required by the Director prior to the approval of a City access 

permit when the Director estimates a development proposal may generate either 100 or more 

additional, peak hour trips, or 1,000 or more additional daily trips, within ten years of a development 

application. 

 

The applicant submitted neither a TIA nor a traffic letter or memo, and the Director does not 

estimate that the development proposal would generate either 100 or more additional, peak 

hour trips, or 1,000 or more additional daily trips, within ten years of a development 

application.  However, staff experience with the conventional Institute of Transportation 

Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, reflected in the trip generation table in Resolution No. 

1893, Exhibit A, indicates that a house (ITE code 210) on average generates 1.01 peak hour 

trips, so 5 houses would generate 5.05 peak hour trips.   

 

New dwellings affect the need for transit that adopted long-range plans, the Transportation 

System Plan (TSP; 2019) and the Transit Plan Update Approved Final Report (2010), envision, 

and a modest contribution is needed towards implementing transit planning goals, generally 

described as transportation demand management (TDM) to lessen vehicular traffic by 

attracting City bus riders. 

 

 Staff applies Condition V9-T to charge a small fee towards the City bus transit system. 

 

 

127



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 19 of 29 

 

3.06 Landscaping 
3.06.02 General Requirements 

 

Staff expects the development to meet this section as applicable. 

 

  The requirement is met. 

 
3.06.03 Landscaping Standards 

A. Street Trees 

 

The site plans fail to illustrate street trees. 

 

  To secure a minimum amount of street trees and to the necessary specifications, staff 

applies conditions. 

 

3.06.07 Significant Trees on Private Property 

A. The purpose of this Section is to establish processes and standards which will minimize cutting or 

destruction of significant trees within the City. Significant trees enhance neighborhoods by creating a 

sense of character and permanence. In general, significant trees on private property shall be retained, 

unless determined to be hazardous to life or property. 

B. The provisions of this Section apply to the removal of any significant tree and the replacement 

requirements for significant tree removal. 

D. The issuance of a significant tree removal permit requires the property owner to replace each tree 

removed with one replacement tree. Each replacement tree shall be at least two inches in caliper. 

Each replacement tree shall be of a species not prohibited by this Section. The replacement tree shall 

be of the same size range at maturity as the significant tree replaced. … 

F. The property owner shall pay a mitigation fee for each required replacement tree that is not 

planted pursuant to this Section. The applicant shall pay the mitigation fee into the City’s tree fund. 

The amount of the mitigation fee shall be established by the City Council in the Master Fee Schedule, 

based on the average value of a two inch caliper tree available from local nurseries, plus planting 

costs. 

 

3.06.07 applies in addition to subdivision criterion 5.03.10B.3 staff examined earlier above.  Site 

plan Sheet C2.0 of existing conditions (May 5, 2021; Attachment 103B) has min 38 tree circles, 

and as of October 4, 2021, County Assessor aerial view (Attachment 103C) shows min 10 larger 

tree canopies on site.   

 

There might or might not be Significant Trees among the 38 trees that site plan existing 

conditions Sheet C2.0 illustrates.   

 

128



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 20 of 29 

 

Also, because of the nature of the proposal – a small subdivision of 5 lots and no common area 

tract(s), there is no reasonable expectation the developer would fit new trees on the lots and 

that homeowners would retain the trees.  Therefore, staff conditions the subsection F fee, 

found in the Planning Division Fee Schedule as the Tree Credit. 

 

  Staff applies Condition V7 through Attachment 206 requiring fees to remove Significant 

Trees as 1.02 defines, if any. 

 

Staff expects the development to meet the remainder of 3.06 as applicable. 

 

[Other] 

 

ORS 92.040(3) sets a 10-year expiration on development approvals in order to help with the 

issue of entitlement “vesting”.  It also local governments to set shorter periods, and staff opts 

to do so in case the project begins to manifest during the 3-year land use approval window but 

slows down or stops afterwards.  Condition SUB-1 sets an ultimate deadline.  As an example, 

were another recession like the Great Recession to occur and lead to a “zombie” project, it 

would be clear when an apparently dormant project was dead. 

 

 Staff applies Condition SUB-1 through Attachment 202 to clarify the issue of “vesting”. 

  

A geotechnical or “geotech” report is necessary for subdivision improvements.  It became 

necessary for Smith Creek Development building permits, and the master developer happened 

to have prepared one in keeping with private agreements with homebuilders and so was able 

to submit it on short notice.  Thankfully, the report document no field conditions that needed 

correction.  The Building Official thought Public Works handled Geotech reports, and this item 

isn’t a WDO requirement or a Planning Division policy item.  So, staff established a condition 

that gets the developer to submit a copy prior to the City in a timely way.  

 

 Staff applies a Condition SUB-1 through Attachment 202 regarding a geotech report. 

  

3.07.03 regulates architecture. 

 

 Staff applies Condition V8 to forestall confusion and questions about how to apply 

architectural provisions related to a dwelling “front” in the context of flag lots. 

 

 

  

129



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 21 of 29 

 

Recommended Conditions of Approval 

Approval:  Staff recommends that the Planning Commission consider the staff report and 

attachments and recommend to the City Council that it approve the consolidated applications 

package. 

 

General 

G1.  As part of building permit application, the applicant shall submit revised site plans meeting 

the conditions of approval and obtain Planning Division approval through sign-off on permit 

issuance. 

G2.  The applicant or successors and assigns shall develop the property in substantial 

conformance with the final plans submitted and approved with these applications, except as 

modified by these conditions of approval.  Were the applicant to revise plans other than to meet 

conditions of approval or meet building code, even if Planning Division staff does not notice and 

signs off on building permit issuance, Division staff retains the right to obtain restoration of 

improvements as shown on an earlier land use review plan set in service of substantial 

conformance. 

G3. References: Attachment 201 serves as a dictionary or glossary defining certain abbreviations, 

acronyms, phrases, terms, and words in the context of the conditions of approval.  The 200 series 

of attachments are as binding as the conditions of approval in the main body of the final decision. 

G4.  Due dates / public improvements: 

a. PLA/PAR/SUB:  Unless a condition specifies otherwise, conditions inc. those relating to 

any of final subdivision, final partition, property line adjustment or lot consolidation 

recordation are due by any of (1) before completion of recordation with the County, 

specifically no later than a City official signing a plat or re-plat Mylar per WDO 5.01.06C.1 

and (2) building permit application, whichever is earlier.  Also prior to both any 

recordation of any final subdivision, final partition, or property line adjustment and any 

of (1) and (2), whichever of (1) or (2) is earlier, the applicant shall submit and obtain 

Planning Division approval of an Address Assignment Request.  (For suggested addresses 

to request, refer either to the Pre-App PRE 2020-15 follow-up notes p. 6. or to the staff 

report / final decision “Notes to the Applicant” section that comes after the conditions, 

Note 18.) 

b. Dedications & Construction:  Unless a condition specifies otherwise, ROW and easement 

dedications and recordation(s), construction of frontage/street improvements, and 

construction of off-site, park, and other public improvements are due by any of (1) before 

completion of recordation with the County, specifically no later than a City official signing 

a plat or re-plat Mylar per WDO 5.01.06C.1 and (2) building permit application, whichever 

130

https://www.woodburn-or.gov/dev-planning/page/address-assignment-request-form


Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 22 of 29 

 

is earlier.  Where phasing is relevant, building permit issuance means issuance for the 

phase in which the conditioned improvement is located. 

G5.  Recordation due dates:  The applicant shall apply to the County for recordations of items 

that the City requires no later than six (6) months prior to expiration of the land use approval as 

WDO 4.02.04B establishes, and shall complete recordations no later than three years past the 

land use “final decision” date.  The due date to complete recordations shall not supersede when 

recordations are due per Condition G4. 

 

G6.  Improvements civil engineering plan (CEP) review:  Per Attachment 203. 

G7.  Final plat application:  The developer shall, prior to recordation with the County, apply to 

the City for Subdivision Final Plat Approval per WDO 5.01.06. 

 

G8.  Fees:  The developer shall pay fees per Attachment 206. 

 

G-PW. Public Works:  The developer shall follow the appended PW comments (October 7, 2021; 

Attachment 102A). 

 

 

Preliminary Subdivision 2020-03 

SUB-1.  Administration and documents:  Per Attachment 202. 

 

SUB-2.  Brown Street:  The developer shall: 

a. Streetside PUE:  Dedicate 5 ft per WDO 3.02.01B and no wider per Condition V2a. 

b. Bicycle lane:  Be required to construct per Condition V2b. 

c. Landscape strips:  In addition to street trees per Condition V2d, landscape and irrigate 

per Condition V2c. 

d. ROW:  Dedicate ROW to result in min 36 ft west of centerline to meet or exceed the min 

width necessary to conform to WDO Figure 3.01D. 

e. Improvements:  Improve per both the half-street of Figure 3.01D plus 4 ft additional 

width of pavement east of centerline to conform to WDO 3.01.03C.  Bury electric power 

lines per Condition V3. 

f. Subsurface/underground:  Construct subsurface or underground improvements for 

potable water, sanitary sewer, and drainage or stormwater management as PW directs. 

131



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 23 of 29 

 

  
Exhibit SUB-2:  Figure 3.01D – Service Collector 

 

 

SUB-3.  Access management and public shared access: 

a. Access management:  The developer’s choice of either Lot 1 or 5 is prohibited from its 

own direct driveway access to Brown Street and shall take vehicular access from the 

shared access driveway shared among Lots 2-4.  The driveway on the remaining lot shall 

be max width per Condition V5. 

b. Shared access easement:  To meet WDO 3.04.0A.2 & 3.04.03B.1, the developer shall 

establish a public shared access easement minimum 20 ft wide if the shared driveway is 

curbless, 21 ft if with curbs, or wider depending on how the developer conforms to 

walkway Condition V4, and revocable only with the concurrence of the Director.  The 

easement centerline shall follow that or those of the shared driveway and extend 

between ROW and each driveway stub. 

c. Text:  The easement shall grant public access (ingress/egress) to and from Brown Street 

to the benefit of Lots 2-4 as well as either Lot 1 or 5 and include the following text:  

"Pursuant to Woodburn Development Ordinance (WDO) 3.04.03B.3, the public shared 

access (ingress and egress) right of this easement is revocable only with the written 

concurrence of the Community Development Director." 

d. Driveway:  The driveway shall be maximum 20 ft wide if curbless or 21 ft if with two 6-

inch curbs.  The developer may sharpen the appearance of the turn radius of the driveway 

“T” by installing “grasscrete”.  The developer shall pave the south jut of the fire apparatus 

turnaround to the south property line, without curbing, to be adjacent to Lot 2 or Lots 1 

& 2 of a preliminary subdivision of the Brown Street Properties, including 1550 Brown 

Street, proposed through Pre App PRE 21-25 as Exhibit SUB-3 below illustrates. 

132



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 24 of 29 

 

 
Exhibit SUB-3:  PRE 21-25 draft subdivision plan 

e. Review:  Regarding Condition G4, the developer shall submit a draft easement text and 

draft Exhibit A legal description and Exhibit B drawing prior to recordation and bundled 

with other materials for review regarding conditions that are due prior to final plat 

approval by the City. 

f. Utilities / off-street PUE:  Atop the shared access driveway, the developer shall dedicate 

an off-street PUE minimum width 16 ft that both secures access to public utilities by each 

of min Lots 2-4 and to accomplish such as PW directs. 

g. Maintenance agreement:  To meet WDO 3.04.03B.1 & 3, the developer shall establish a 

shared driveway private maintenance agreement addressing surface and 

subsurface/underground shared improvements.  The developer need not submit a draft 

for Director review prior to recordation, but shall submit a copy of the recorded document 

by, as an exception to any conflicting general condition about due dates, building permit 

application. 

 

 

Variance 21-04 

 

V1.  Lot depth:  Varying from WDO 1.02 “Lot … Flag lot” and Figure 1.02D, the developer may 

apply the lot depth standard for Lots 2 & 3 north-south instead of east-west. 

 

V2.  Brown Street:  The developer shall: 

133



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 25 of 29 

 

a. Streetside PUE:  Not dedicate streetside PUE wider than 5 ft, with allowance for a jut or 

juts around fire hydrants to meet OFC as administered by the independent Woodburn 

Fire District or public works construction code. 

b. Bicycle lane:  Construct the WDO Figure 3.01D west half-street bicycle lane, and stripe it 

both to be MUTCD-compliant and as PW directs. 

c. Landscape strips:  Landscape the landscape strip or strips area remaining after street 

tree plantings with lawn grass or, if the City Engineer in writing allows, a species of 

groundcover.  Cobblestones, gravel, pebbles, and rocks are prohibited.  Bark dust, 

mulch, or wood chips are permissible only within the immediate vicinity of a street tree 

trunk.  The developer shall install landscape strip irrigation, and shall provide temporary 

irrigation during construction, per the public works construction code. 

d. Street trees:  Plant min 4 street trees inc. w/ root barriers as Attachment 201 defines.  

Fees in-lieu, if any, shall be per Attachment 206. 

 

V3.  Burial of electric power lines:  The developer shall do either (a.) or (b.): 

a. Bury:  At the site SE corner, remove from the electric power pole from the ROW, bury 

under the presently unpaved ROW the power line(s) that cross SW from the SE corner of 

Brown Street and the manufactured dwelling park driveway.  (See Sheet C2.0 Existing 

Site Conditions as Attachment 103B for context).  If the electric utility directs, it is 

permissible to install a new pole or poles within the easterly side of the Brown Street 

ROW beyond the gravel road to accomplish the lines going into and coming out of the 

ground east of the road.  This shall be due the same as per Condition G4b; or 

b. Pay:  Pay an electric power pole removal and line burial fee per Attachment 206. 

c. On-site:  On site (outside ROW), the developer shall bury or underground all utility 

services per WDO 3.02.04C. 

 

V4.  Shared access walkway:  The developer shall provide for shared walking access by 

constructing an ADA-compliant walkway min 3.5 ft wide, including curb width, along the required 

shared access driveway and that connects to each of Lots 2-4 as follows:   

a. Alignment/route:  The walkway may follow the driveway within it or outside it.  The 

walkway may be part of mountable curb if the flat area above the slope is min width 3.5 

ft.   

b. Pavement:  The walkway may be asphalt, poured concrete, or concrete pavers.   

(1) If asphalt:  Whether within the driveway 20-ft width of asphalt or as additional width 

of asphalt, the walkway shall be hatch-striped, similar to an ADA parking stall 

accessible aisle, min width 3.5 ft to distinguish it from adjacent vehicular area.   

(2) If concrete:  (a) if outside the driveway 20-ft width, then raised min 4 inches or (b) if 

within, then raised through mountable curbing.  Either way, a concrete walkway 

134



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 26 of 29 

 

shall be constructed to the same PW structural support, thickness, and slope 

specifications as for sidewalk. 

c. Access easement:  The shared access easement shall cover the walkway area.  The 

walkway shall be constructed to the same PW structural support, thickness, and slope 

specifications as for sidewalk. 

d. Plan review:  Drawings and documents necessary to administer the condition are due by 

building permit application, and walkway construction is due by final inspection. 

 

V5.  Driveway max:  The shared driveway shall be 20 ft wide max measured between curbing, if 

any, unless the OFC as administered by the independent Woodburn Fire District causes 

driveway width to exceed the max, and the driveway approach / apron / curb cut for Lot 1 or 5 

shall be 16 ft wide max and located no farther than 6 ft from the shared driveway curb cut. 

 

V6.  Bond / bonding / performance guarantee:  If the City accepts a request to review bonding 

construction of public improvements, review and approval, if any, shall be per Attachments 204 

& 206.  

 

V7.  Significant Tree removal:  For any and every Significant Tree the developer would remove, 

the developer shall pay a fee per Attachment 206. 

 

V8.  Architecture:  Where a WDO 3.07.03 provision regulates a dwelling front, for each dwelling 

on Lots 2 & 3 the provision shall apply to the south facade. 

 

V9-T. Bus transit fee: To further transportation demand management (TDM) through bus 

transit, the developer shall pay a bus transit fee per Attachment 206.  

  

135



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 27 of 29 

 

Applicant Identity 

  
Applicant Vassa Boudunov, Northwest Willamette Homes LLC  

Applicant’s 
Representative 

Gerald (“Jerry”) Horner, Engineer, Willamette Engineering 

Landowner(s) Northwest Willamette Homes LLC 

  

 

  

Notes to the Applicant 

The following are not planning / land use / zoning conditions of approval, but are notes for the 

applicant to be aware of and follow:  

1. Records:  Staff recommends that the applicant retain a copy of the subject approval. 

2. Fences, fencing, & free-standing walls:  The approval excludes any fences, fencing, & free-

standing walls, which are subject to WDO 2.06 and the permit process of 5.01.03. 

3. Signage:  The approval excludes any private signage, which is subject to WDO 3.10 and the 

permit process of 5.01.10. 

4. SUB Time Limit:  WDO 4.02.04B. specifies that, “A final decision on any application shall expire 

within three years of the date of the final decision unless:  1. a building permit to exercise the 

right granted by the decision has been issued; 2. the activity approved in the decision has 

commenced; or 3. a time extension, Section 4.02.05, has been approved.  Because 

unrecorded re-plats lingering indefinitely have burdened staff, a condition sets sooner time 

limits for subsection 2. to begin and finish recordation. 

5. Mylar signature:  The Community Development Director is the authority that signs plat Mylars 

and not any of the mayor, City Administrator, Public Works Director, or City Engineer.  Only 

one City signature title block is necessary. 

6. PLA Plat Tracker:  Marion County maintains a plat tracking tool at 

<http://apps.co.marion.or.us/plattracker/>.  Use it to check on the status of a recordation 

request to the County.  City staff does not track County plat recordation. 

 

7. Technical standards:   

a. Context:  A reader shall not construe a land use condition of approval that reiterates a 

City technical standard, such as a PW standard, to exclude remaining standards or to 

assert that conditions of approval should have reiterated every standard the City has in 

order for those standards to be met. 

b. Utilities:  A condition involving altered or additional sidewalk or other frontage/street 

improvement that would in the field result in displacement or relocation of any of utility 

136

mailto:bodunovv@gmail.com
mailto:jer.willengr@juno.com
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/plattracker/


Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 28 of 29 

 

boxes, cabinets, vaults, or vault covers does not exempt the developer from having to 

move or pay to move any of these as directed by the City Engineer and with guidance 

from franchise utilities. 

 

8. Other Agencies:  The applicant, not the City, is responsible for obtaining permits from any 

county, state and/or federal agencies, which may require approval or permit, and must obtain 

all applicable City and County permits for work prior to the start of work and that the work 

meets the satisfaction of the permit-issuing jurisdiction.  The Oregon Department of 

Transportation (ODOT) might require highway access, storm drainage, and other right-of-way 

(ROW) permits.  All work within the public ROW or easements within City jurisdiction must 

conform to plans approved by the Public Works Department and must comply with a Public 

Works Right-of-Way permit issued by said department.  Marion County plumbing permits 

must be issued for all waterline, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer work installed beyond the 

Public Right-of-Way, on private property. 

9. Inspection:  The applicant shall construct, install, or plant all improvements, including 

landscaping, prior to City staff verification.  Contact Planning Division staff at least three (3) 

City business days prior to a desired date of planning and zoning inspection of site 

improvements.  This is required and separate from and in addition to the usual building code 

and fire and life safety inspections.  Note that Planning staff are not primarily inspectors, do 

not have the nearly immediate availability of building inspectors, and are not bound by any 

building inspector’s schedule or general contractor convenience. 

10. Stormwater management:  The storm sewer system and any required on-site detention for 

the development must comply with the City Storm Water Management Plan, Public Works 

storm water practices and the Storm Drainage Master Plan. 

11. Public Works Review:  Staff performs final review of the civil plans during the building permit 

stage.  Public infrastructure must be constructed in accordance with plans approved by the 

City, as well as current Public Works construction specifications, Standard Drawings, Standard 

Details, and general conditions of a permit type issued by the Public Works Department. 

12. ROW:   

a. Dedication:  The Public Works Department Engineering Division has document templates 

for ROW and easement dedications that developers are to use. 

ROW – and public utility easement (PUE) – dedications are due prior to building permit 

per Public Works policy. 

b. Work:  All work within the public ROWs or easements within City jurisdiction must 

require plan approval and permit issuance from the Public Works Department. All public 

improvements construction work must be performed in accordance with the plans 

137

http://www.ci.woodburn.or.us/?q=pw_standard
http://www.ci.woodburn.or.us/?q=pw_standard


Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 29 of 29 

 

stamped “approved” by the City, and comply with the City’s Standard Specifications and 

Standard drawings. 

13. Franchises:  The applicant provides for the installation of all franchised utilities in any required 

easements. 

14. Water:  All water mains and appurtenances must comply with Public Works, Building Division, 

and Woodburn Fire District requirements.  Existing water services lines that are not going to 

be use with this new development must be abandoned at the main line.  The City performs 

required abandonment of existing water facilities at the water main with payment by the 

property owner.  All taps to existing water mains must be done by a “Hot Tap” method and 

by approved City of Woodburn Contractors.  The applicant shall install the proper type of 

backflow preventer for all domestic, lawn irrigation and fire sprinkler services.  The backflow 

devices and meters shall be located near the city water main within an easement, unless 

approved otherwise by Public Works. Contact Byron Brooks, City of Woodburn Water 

Superintendent, for proper type and installation requirements of the backflow device at (503) 

982-5380. 

15. Grease Interceptor/Trap:  If applicable, a grease trap would need to be installed on the 

sanitary service, either as a central unit or in a communal kitchen/food preparation area.  

Contact Marion County Plumbing Department for permit and installation requirements, (503) 

588-5147. 

16. Fire:  Fire protection requirements must comply with Woodburn Fire District standards and 

requirements, including how the District interprets and applies Oregon Fire Code (OFC).  Place 

fire hydrants within the public ROW or public utility easement and construct them in 

accordance with Public Works Department requirements, specifications, standards, and 

permit requirements.  Fire protection access, fire hydrant locations and fire protection issues 

must comply with current fire codes and Woodburn Fire District standards.  See City of 

Woodburn Standard Detail No. 5070-2 Fire Vault.  The fire vault must be placed within the 

public right-of-way or public utility easement. 

17. SDCs:  The developer pays System Development Charges prior to building permit issuance.  

Staff will determine the water, sewer, storm and parks SDCs after the developer provides a 

complete Public Works Commercial/Industrial Development information sheet as applicable. 

18. Street addresses:  Suggested addresses for the developer to apply for are: 

 Lot 1 = 1241 Brown Street 

 Lot 2 = 1245 Brown Street 

 Lot 3 = 1251 Brown Street (retain) 

 Lot 4 = 1255 Brown Street 

 Lot 5 = 1261 Brown Street. 

138



 

Engineering & Project Delivery 
190 Garfield Street ● Woodburn, Oregon 97071 

Ph. 5030-982-5240 ● Fax 503-982-5242 
 

 
Public Works Land Use Conditions 

VALENTINA ESTATES PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION 
1251 BROWN STREET 

ANX 2020-02 & SUB 2020-02 
October 7, 2021 

CONDITIONS OF LAND USE APPROVAL:  

1. The Applicant, not the City, is responsible for obtaining any necessary permits 
from the State, Marion County, Oregon Division of State Lands, US Army Corps 
of Engineering and/or federal agencies that may require such permit or approval 
for the construction of this development. 
 

2. Applicant to provide a final Engineer stamped storm drainage hydraulic analysis 
report for detention and conveyance system. The storm drainage hydraulic 
analysis shall comply with Marion County, Oregon Division of State Lands, US 
Army Corps of Engineering, City’s requirements, and any other required 
regulatory permits, as applicable. 
 

3. Construct private storm sewer system, including detention facilities in accordance 
with the approved plans and drainage report. . All required on-site detention area 
for the runoff from this site will need to be provided in accordance with the 
hydraulic analysis.  All on-site detention areas shall be maintained by the 
property owner in perpetuity. 
 

4. If required, a Permit from the Oregon Division of State Lands and US Army 
Corps of Engineering will need to be obtained to mitigate/delineated wetlands. 
This shall be obtained prior to city issuance of permit. 
 

5. Applicant to provide for the installation of all franchise utilities and shall provide 
any required easements for these facilities. All permanent utility services to the 
development shall be underground. 
 

6. Applicant to provide a copy of their 1200C permit prior to civil plans approval, if 
the permit is required, based  on the Engineer-of-Record acknowledgement.   
 

7. Final review of the Civil Plans will be done during the public improvements permit 
application.  Public infrastructure will be constructed in accordance with plans 
approved by public works. 

139

colinco
Text Box
Attachment 102A



 

 Engineering & Project Delivery 
190 Garfield Street ● Woodburn, Oregon 97071 

Ph. 5030-982-5240 ● Fax 503-982-5242 

 
8. Applicant to provide street lighting. 

 
9. All future sanitary sewer and storm drainage mains are gravity systems and the 

termini of sewer lines locations and depths shall be such that it is suited for future 
extensions to adjoining areas. Designed with size and depth to provide for future 
extensions.  
 

10. Fire hydrants locations and fire protection requirements shall be as per the 
Woodburn Fire Districts and City of Woodburn requirements. Show location and 
size of fire service vault in the plans, along proposed fire service line. Fire 
Service Vault shall be located within the public utility easement or right-of-way. 
 

11. Existing well and septic tank shall be abandoned properly as per State and 
Marion County regulations. On the plans indicate location of existing well and 
septic tank 

 

 

 

140



141

colinco
Text Box
Attachment 103APage 1 of 4



142



143



P a g e  1 | 1 
 

       

Woodburn School District 
1390 Meridian Drive, Woodburn, OR 97071  

Phone: 503-981-9555 
Fax: 971-983-3611 

 
 

October 5, 2020 

 

 

Jerry Horner   

Willamette Engineering, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9032 

Salem, OR 97305 

 

 

Re: Annexation for five lots located at 1251 Brown Road 

 

 

Mr. Horner:  

 

In response to your request, Woodburn School District has determined that your planned 

annexation located at 1251 Brown Road, will impact our schools in our district. However, we 

believe we will be able to accommodate the growth.  

 

 

Thank you,  

 

Casey Woolley 

 

 

 

 

 

Director of Safety and Operations  

Woodburn School District  

 

144

colinco
Text Box
Attachment 103Page 4 of 4



145

colinco
Text Box
Attachment 103B



146

colinco
Text Box
Attachment 103C



147

colinco
Text Box
Attachment 103D



§̈¦5

vÍÎ99E

vÍÎ219

vÍÎ99E
vÍÎ219

vÍÎ214 vÍÎ211

vÍÎ214

TRACY

LN

CANBYLP

MILL ST

RYE ST

KOI LN

VERA LN

HIGH ST

PLUM LN

N 2N
D ST

STARK ST

IDAHO DR

BR
YA

N 
ST

TULIP AV

HIG
HWAY

 99
E H

Y

OATS ST

RAILROAD

OREGON LP

JORY ST

OGLE ST

HA
WLE

Y S
TEL

AN
A W

Y

C AS
CA

D
EDR

S M ITH
DR

DE
ER

RU
N

CHATEAU
D R

OXFORD ST

JANSEN WY

TU

RNBERRY AV

TU KWILA DR

ROYAV

NAT
IONAL

 W
Y

AZTEC DR

SANTIAM DR

CAMAS ST

W
ILL

OW
AV

SA
LL

AL
 R

D
WHITNEY LN

HA
ZE

LN
UT

DR

ST
AN

FI E
LD

R
D

JAMES ST

BLAINE ST

EV
ER

GR
EE

N RD
GEORGE ST

MCNAUGHT RD

KING W
Y

TOMLIN AV

W
OR

KM
AN

DR

MCKINLEY ST

KOENER RD

GR
EE

NVIE W
DRN 3R

D ST

LAUREL AV

HO OPER ST

LE
AR

Y R
D

EL
M

ST

E CL
AC

KA
M A

S
CR

MC
LA

UG
HL

IN
D

R

N 1S
T ST

EAST LINCOLN RD

W
CL

AC
KA

M A
S C

R

ELLIOTT PRAIRIE RD

COMMERCE WY

SERRES LN

S
CA

S C
A D

E
DR

EAST HARDCASTLE RD

BO
ON

ES
 FE

RR
Y R

D

GESCHWILL LN

S 
CO

LU
MB

IA 
DR

219

DIMMICK LN

STAFNEY LN

MOLALLA RD

UN
IO

N 
SC

HO
OL

 R
D

FR
ONT S

T

AR
NE

Y R
D

MEADOW DR

CROSBY RD

BU
TT

EV
ILL

E R
D

INGALLS LN

PARR RD

JENSEN RD

BELLE PASSI RD

CARL RD

WILCO HY

AR
BO

R
G R

OV
E

R D

LE BRUN RD

BROWN ST

PA
RK

 AV

HARRISON ST

AS
TO

R
W

Y

W HAYES ST

OR
EG

ON
W

Y

LINCOLN ST

TUKWILA DR

N 5T
H ST

E CLEVELAND ST

GA
TC

H
ST

HAZELNUT DR

HARDCASTLE AV

COOLE
Y RD

ST
UB

B R
D

WOODLAND AV

STAC
Y ALLI

SON WY

PROGRESS WY

S P
AC

IFI
C H

Y

MT HOOD AV

WILCO HY

NEWBERG HY

N P
AC

IFI
C H

Y

PA
RR

RD

N FR
ONT S

T

E BLAINE ST

A 
ST

HIG
HW

AY
99E

HY

FR
ONT S

T

JUDY ST

RYE ST

TIE RR
A

LY
NN

DR

UM
PQ

UA
 R

D

CARL RDEAGLE DR
JANSEN WY

STARK ST

TULIP AV

T E N OA
KS

LN

MIL LER
FA

RM
RD

ME
RID

IAN
DR

BU
T T

E V
IL L

E
R D

SM
ITH

DR

SA
LL

AL
 R

D

WI
LL

OW
AV

W LINCOLN ST

VANDERBECK LN

ALEXANDRAAV JU
NE

 W
Y

BOONES FERRY RD

MYRTLE ST

PANA ST

COUNTRY CLUB RD

KING WY

PR
INC

ET
ON

RD

MAYANNA D R

IRO NWOOD TR

LE
AR

Y R
D

HERMANSON
ST

N 6T
H ST

MOLALLA RD

A

R NEY LN

N 1S
T S

T

N 2N
D ST

REED AV

HIGH ST

ST LOUIS RD

CROSBY RD

MO
UN

TA
IN 

VIE
W 

LN

DIMMICK LN

LINFIELD AV

KOI LN

UNION SCHOOL R
D

OGLE ST

EAST LINCOLN RD

OATS ST

BLY
LP

JORY ST

AR
BO

R 
GR

OV
E R

D

RO YAV

CAMAS ST

WHITN EY LN

GEORGE ST

KOENER RD

219

RA
ND

O L
P H

RD

HOOP ER ST

ALS

EA LP

EL
M 

ST

WCL
AC

K A
MA

S
CR

AR
NE

Y R
D

SERRES LN

S
CA

SC
A D

E
DR

GESCHWILL LN

S 
CO

LU
MB

IA 
DR

STAFNEY LN

INGALLS LN

JENSEN RD

BELLE PASSI RD

LE BRUN RD

W HAYES ST

WOODLAND AV

LINCOLN ST

BR
OW

N
ST

GA
TC

H
ST

PARR RD

E CLEVELAND ST

HARDCASTLE AV

STA
CY

AL
LIS

ON WY

ARNE Y RD

COOLE
Y R

D

AS
TO

R 
WY

PROGRESS WY

ST
UB

B R
D

BO
ON

ES
FE

RR
Y R

D

YOUNG ST

N FRONT ST

S S
ET

TL
EM

IER
AV

S FRONT ST

EV
ER

GREEN RD

N
SE

TT
LE

MI
ER

AV

MT HOOD AV N P
AC

IFI
C H

Y

MOLALLA RD
BU

TT
EV

ILL
E R

D

S P
ACIF

IC 
HY

vÍÎ219

§̈¦5

Woodburn TSP Update September 2019

¯

Figure
2

Existing Roadway 
Freeway
Major Arterial
Minor Arterial
Service Collector
Access Street

Future Roadway
Future Major Arterial
Future Minor Arterial
Future Service Collector
Future Access Street
Future Local Industrial
City Boundary
Urban Growth Boundary

H:
\21

\21
07

1 -
 W

oo
db

urn
 TS

P U
pd

ate
\gi

s\T
SP

\02
 Fu

nc
tio

na
l R

oa
dw

ay
 C

las
sif

ica
tio

n.m
xd

 - m
mc

co
rm

ick
 -  

5:2
5 P

M 
9/1

6/2
01

9

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl
Data Source: City of Woodburn, Oregon Department of Transportation

Functional Roadway Classification
Woodburn, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Note: Future roadway alignments are approximate and subject to further refinement.

148

colinco
Text Box
Attachment 104



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 201 

Page 1 of 2 

ANX 2020-03 Dove Landing PUD: 

 Attachment 201:  Dictionary & Glossary 

 

This document defines and explains abbreviations, acronyms, phrases, and words particularly in 

the context of conditions of approval. 

 “ADA” refers to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 

 “CEP” refers to civil engineering plan review, which is a review process independent of land 

use review led by the Community Development Department Planning Division and that is 

led by the Public Works Department Engineering Division through any application forms, 

fees, and review criteria as the Division might establish.  A staff expectation is that CEP 

follows land use review and approval, that is, a final decision, and precedes building permit 

application. 

 “County” refers to Marion County. 

 “Director” refers to the Community Development Director. 

 “exc.” means excluding. 

 “ft” refers to feet. 

  “max” means maximum. 

 “min” means minimum. 

 “Modal share” means the percentage of travelers using a particular type of transportation 

or number of trips using a type, as examples walking, cycling, riding transit, and driving. 

 “Modal shift” means a change in modal share. 

 “MUTCD” refers to Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices of the U.S. Department of 

Transportation (U.S. DOT) Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). 

 “NE means northeast. 

 “NW” means northwest. 

 “OAR” refers to Oregon Administrative Rules. 

 “o.c.” refers to on-center spacing, such as of trees or shrubs. 

 “ODOT” refers to the Oregon Department of Transportation. 

 “ORS” refers to Oregon Revised Statutes. 

 “PUE” refers to public utility easement, whether along and abutting public ROW (“roadside” 

or “streetside” PUE) or extending into or across the interior of private property (“off-street” 

PUE). In the context of property line adjustment, partition, or subdivision, the developer 

records through the plat with drawings and notes on the face of the plat. Absent this 

context, recordation is separate from land use review pursuant to a document template or 

templates established by PW. PW is the project manager for receiving, reviewing, accepting, 

obtaining City Council approval for, and recording public easement materials that a 

developer submits. 

149



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 201 

Page 2 of 2 

 “PW” refers to the Public Works Department. 

  “Root barrier” refers to that illustrated by PW SS&Ds, Drawing No. 1 “Street Tree Planting 

New Construction”. 

 “ROW” refers to right-of-way. 

 “RPZ” refers to root protection zone in the context of tree preservation.  

 “SE” means southeast.  

 “SDA” refers to site development area, the entire territory that is the subject of the land 

use application package. 

 “sq ft” refers to square feet. 

 “SS&Ds” refers to PW standard specifications and drawings. 

 “Street trees” refer to trees that conform to the WDO, including 3.06.03A and Tables 3.06B 

& C, and that have root barriers where applicable per PW Drawing No. 1 “Street Tree 

Planting New Construction”. 

 “Substantial construction” means that all grading necessary to accommodate full 

construction of both public improvements and common area improvements is complete, 

the developer constructed and dedicated all required public improvements, and the 

developer improved and dedicated all required common area tracts. 

 “SW” means southwest.  

 “Tot.” means total. 

 “TDM” refers to transportation demand management, which means according to the TSP 

(p. 82), “a policy tool as well as a general term used to describe any action that removes 

single occupant vehicle trips from the roadway during peak travel demand periods”, and 

according to Wikipedia as of October 13, 2020, “the application of strategies and policies 

to reduce travel demand, or to redistribute this demand in space or in time.” 

 “TSP” means the Woodburn Transportation System Plan (TSP). 

 “Walkway” refers to what would otherwise be called sidewalk except the paved walking 

surface is on private property outside of any of ROW or an easement granting public access. 

 “WDO” refers to the Woodburn Development Ordinance. 

 “WFD” refers to the Woodburn Fire District.  

 “WTS” refers to the Woodburn Transit System. 

 “w/i” means within. 

 “w/o” means without. 

 “VCA” refers to vision clearance area as WDO 1.02 and 3.03.06 establish or as a specific 

condition establishes. 

150

https://www.woodburn-or.gov/publicworks/page/street-tree-planting-new-construction-drawing
https://www.woodburn-or.gov/publicworks/page/street-tree-planting-new-construction-drawing
https://www.woodburn-or.gov/engineering/page/standard-specifications-drawings
https://www.woodburn-or.gov/publicworks/page/street-tree-planting-new-construction-drawing
https://www.woodburn-or.gov/publicworks/page/street-tree-planting-new-construction-drawing
https://www.woodburn-or.gov/dev-planning/page/transportation-system-plan-tsp-2019-2039
https://www.woodburn-or.gov/dev-planning/page/woodburn-development-ordinance-wdo


Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 202 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ANX 2020-02 Valentina Estates No. 2: 

 Attachment 202:  Administration Provisions 

 

Refer to Condition G3 / Attachment 201 for a dictionary/glossary, including acronyms and 

shorthand text. 

 

A. Documents: 

1. Plats:  Where any of Property Line Adjustment or Partition or Subdivision Final Plat are 

relevant, a developer may not apply for building permit until having completed 

recordation with the County and providing electronic copies of the recorded drawings 

and documents to the City, including as-builts.   

2. Easements:  Where any of extinguished, altered, or additional public easements are 

involved, a developer shall not apply for building permit until having completed 

recordation with the County and providing electronic copies of the recorded easement 

documents and drawings to the City, including as-builts. 

3. Geotech report:  After grading permit approval, if applicable, and by building permit 

application, the developer shall submit to the Director and PW a geotechnical report 

documenting that, whether or not the developer spreads any fill or spoil dirt across lots 

and tracts, soil is compacted and ready to accommodate the construction of buildings on 

lots and tracts proposed for development. 

4. Electronic copies:  Upon recordation, the developer shall submit to PW and cc the Director 

Adobe PDFs of the subdivision plat and any and all ancillary documents necessary to 

conform to conditions of approval and not addressed on the face of the plat, including 

easements and as-builts.  Failure to do so shall result in the City declining to accept 

building permit application. 

5. Piecemealing:  The developer shall not piecemeal submittal of items due for review prior 

to completion of recordation, and should submit a comprehensive, holistic set of 

documents as part of or at the same time as CEP review application to PW. 

 

B. Expiration:  Based on ORS 92.040(3), development per the Council land use final 

decision may continue 3 years past the decision date, the 3-year approval period being 

established by WDO 4.02.04, as follows: 

1. Subdivision Final Plat:  WDO 4.02.04B.2 shall mean that application to the City for final 

plat per WDO 5.01.06 occurs prior to 3 years past the final decision date.  The developer 

shall apply to the City for final plat prior to applying to the County for recordation. 

151



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 202 

Page 2 of 2 

 

2. Recordation with Marion County:  Same as WDO 5.01.06C.1. (within 30 calendar days of 

the Director’s signature on the plat Mylar). 

3. Vesting:  The decision is vested unless: 

a. The developer fails to meet subdivision and, where applicable, PUD requirements, 

resulting in the City being unable to authorize staff to sign a final plat Mylar by the 3 

years past the final decision date; or 

b. There is no substantial construction (as defined through Condition G3) by July 1, 

2026. 

 

 

152



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 203 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ANX 2020-02 Valentina Estates No. 2: 

 Attachment 203:  Civil Engineering Plan (CEP) Review Provisions 

 

Refer to Condition G3 / Attachment 201 for a dictionary/glossary, including acronyms and 

shorthand text. 

 

A. Purpose:  For other departments and divisions, to facilitate review of plans that 

following a land use final decision a developer submits to the PW Engineering Division for civil 

engineering plan (CEP) review.  To be a means of implementing land use final decision 

conditions of approval affecting street improvements, both surface and underground, and 

extending into PUEs.  To specify public improvement standards where there is no detailed 

specification in the WDO or the public works construction code. 

B. Administration:  The process by which to receive, review, and approve drawings and 

other documents related to public improvements required by land use conditions of approval 

may be through CEP that is paired with or incorporated into building permit review, if the City 

Engineer in writing allows the latter. 

C. Application:  For CEP, per what PW requires, and original / 1st submittal shall be due no 

later than final plat application to the Director. 

D. Cover letter:  Upon submitting CEP application to PW, a developer shall simultaneously 

alert the Director through a cover letter to the attention of the Community Development 

Department Planning Division referencing the intended or, if known, actual submittal date as 

well as the project name, tax lot number(s), street address(es), and the land use final decision 

conditions of approval that require the public improvements that are the subject of the civil 

engineering plans.  Referencing conditions may be by quotation or citing the identification 

numbers.  The developer shall identify the specific sheet (by number) or document page 

number that illustrates or notes how each part of a condition is met. 

E. Contact information:  The developer shall state the applicant’s name, company, phone 

number, e-mail address, and desired date for City staff to respond with review comments.  The 

cover letter to the Director may include these.  The developer may submit to the attention of 

the Director a copy of the stamped CEP application form submitted to PW if the form includes 

this required information.  

F. Fees:  The developer shall pay review fees per Attachment 206 and submit to the 

attention of the Director a copy of proof of payment, which should be bundled with other 

materials for the Director. 

153



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 203 

Page 2 of 2 

 

  

 

G. Site plans and other drawings:  For any of CEP review by the Director: 

1. Sizes/copies:  From among the minimum number of copies submitted to PW, 

submit to the attention of the Director at least 4 plan size copies of plan sets, 2 plotted 

at native scale (minimum 22 by 34 inches, maximum 24 by 36) and 2 at ledger (11 by 

17).  Within the cover sheet title block(s), include the date or anticipated date of 

submittal and the phrase “Civil Engineering Plans” or “Civil Plans for CEP”. 

2. Folding/electronic:  Fold the plan size sets if thin enough to do so.  Submit also 

Adobe PDF copies using a fileshare service. 

H. Developer’s role:  The developer is the project manager.  Because the Engineering 

Division may establish that CEP applicants have a single point of contact termed the “engineer 

of record”, the developer manages the engineer of record who handles the CEP and also 

interacts with the Community Development Director regarding DDP review.  For the Director, 

the developer is the point of contact, namely whoever on the developer’s team the developer 

tasks with being the project manager.  The developer shall be responsible for integrating 

Director directions into CEP review that the engineer of record leads with the Engineering 

Division.  If, when, and where conflicts arise between Director directions and Engineering 

Division directions, the developer shall be responsible for communicating with formal cover or 

transmittal letters messages from the conflicting division to the other division, and shall 

communicate such. 

I. [Letter “I” skipped]. 

J. Approved plan set:  There shall result an official version of a civil engineering plan set 

marked approved and issued by PW that shows all common area improvements and public 

improvements, including off-street public improvements, resulting from CEP, and where 

applicable resulting from DDP, that conforms to land use final decision conditions of approval.  

It shall come to be prior to building permit application, and CEP approved plan set approval and 

issuance shall be prohibited until the developer pays any CEP review fees per Attachment 206.  

The developer shall submit to the Director print and electronic copies of the plan set marked 

approved and issued by PW. 

CEP approval shall precede any of (1) completion of recordation with the County, specifically no 

later than a City official signing a plat or re-plat Mylar per WDO 5.01.06C.1 and (2) building 

permit application, whichever is earlier. 

154



 

Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 204 

Page 1 of 3 

 

ANX 2020-02 Valentina Estates No. 2: 

 Attachment 204:  Performance Guarantee / Bond / Bonding Provisions 

 

The following provisions supersede WDO 4.02.08 and do not relate to the usual warranty bond 

or bonds that PW requires for constructed public improvements or to franchise utility 

construction: 

 

A. Applicability:  Construction, installation, or improvement of public facilities, including 

streets including street trees, greenways, off-street bicycle pedestrian facilities, bus transit, and 

related improvements.  For private, on-site improvements such as landscaping, Subsection L 

below instead applies. 

B. Review:  When an applicant has an obligation to construct, install, or improve public 

facilities, the obligation shall be fulfilled prior to the issuance of a building permit unless the 

City Council has granted a written waiver of this requirement and the applicant has filed with 

the City Recorder and City Engineer a bond or other performance guarantee. Administration 

and review of performance guarantee requests related to public improvements as well as 

establishing administrative policy and review criteria for requests default to the Public Works 

Department Engineering Division.  The Community Development Director may advise the 

Division.  The City is not obligated to consider or accept for review any performance guarantee 

request, and the Engineering Division may refuse a request instead of accepting a request for 

review, reviewing it, and presenting it to the Council. 

C. Fees:  Per Attachment 206. 

D. Approval document:   

1. Council approval of a performance guarantee shall be in writing, signed by the 

Mayor or Council President as well as the City Administrator.   

2. The approval document, such as a letter, shall include the Council meeting date, 

the approval date, the due date by which either the developer will construct the public 

improvements or the City will call the bond or other performance guarantee, and the 

contact information of the developer, the developer’s civil engineer, the performance 

guarantee company, and the Public Works Department Engineering Division.   

 

 

155



 

Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 204 

Page 2 of 3 

 

3. It shall also list and describe the bonded improvements, enclose or incorporate 

the cost estimate or estimates that were the basis of the amount or percentage of the 

performance guarantee, and list the obligations of the developer.  Where any are 

relevant, the approval document shall also reference the land use approval case file 

number or numbers, land use approval expiration date per the final decision document, 

plat lot and tract designations, tax lot number(s), City address(es), and land 

development project name.   

4. The due date shall be no later than the City business day closest to one year past 

the meeting date on which the Council voted to approve the performance guarantee. 

E. Percent:  The performance guarantee shall be an amount equal to a percent of the cost 

of fulfilling the obligation as estimated by the City Engineer for the date by which fulfillment of 

the obligation is anticipated. The minimum shall be 200 percent.  A sufficient performance 

bond, cash deposit or a letter of credit are acceptable forms of security. 

F. Maintenance/Warranty:  As an additional and separate part of the performance 

guarantee, the applicant shall agree to maintain the public facility or improvement for a period 

of one year following acceptance by the City Administrator, to include but not be limited to 

repair, replacement and all things necessary to ensure its operational integrity. 

G. The security shall be forfeited to the City if the applicant does not fulfill the 

requirements stated in the performance guarantee and the City may use the security to 

complete the obligation or any part of it. Until the obligation is completed, the security shall 

remain in the custody of the City or shall be placed in an escrow account subject to City control. 

 H. Release:  Upon receipt of written notice to the City Administrator and City Engineer that 

the public facility or required improvements have been completed and are ready for final 

inspection and acceptance, the City Administrator or City Engineer shall, within ten City 

business days, inspect. When upon inspection or re-inspection the City Engineer finds and 

documents the work as acceptable, the City Administrator shall in writing authorize the City 

Engineer to release the performance guarantee within 45 days of inspection or re-inspection.   

The City Administrator shall place on the agenda of the next regularly scheduled Council 

meeting, for which the agenda packet due date has not already passed, written briefing that 

release will happen, is happening, or happened. 

 

 

 

 

156



 

Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 204 

Page 3 of 3 

 

I. Call:  If the applicant fails to fulfill the obligation to complete the public facility or 

required improvement, the City Engineer shall issue written notice shall be given within 5 City 

business days past the due date and detailing the failure and stating that the City’is using the 

security given to complete the obligation, that is, to call the bond or other performance 

guarantee, and the City shall do so.  The notice shall be courtesy copied to the City 

Administrator, City Attorney, City Recorder, and Community Development Director.  After the 

City completes the obligation and if the required security is not sufficient to compensate the 

City for costs incurred, the excess amount due to the City, plus a ten percent administrative 

charge, shall constitute a lien in favor of the City upon the real property subject to the 

obligation. 

J. The lien attaches upon entry in the City lien docket and the giving of notice of the claim 

for the amount due for the completion of the obligation. The notice shall demand the amount 

due, allege the insufficiency of the bond or other security to compensate the City fully for the 

cost of the fulfillment of the obligation, and allege the applicant’s failure to complete the 

required obligation. 

K. Once docketed, the lien may be foreclosed in the manner prescribed by ORS Chapter 

223 for foreclosing liens on real property. 

L. Private, on-site:  When an applicant has an obligation to construct, install, or improve 

private, on-site facilities, the obligation shall be fulfilled prior to the issuance of a building 

permit unless the City Administrator has granted a written waiver of this requirement and the 

applicant has filed with the City Administrator, City Recorder, and Community Development 

Director a bond or other performance guarantee. The City Administrator is not obligated to 

consider or accept for review any performance guarantee request, and may refuse a request 

instead of accepting a request for review, reviewing it, and approving it.  Fees and percent shall 

be per subsections C and E above, and the approval document shall contain information similar 

to what subsections D.2-4 above require. 

 

157



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 206 

Page 1 of 3 

ANX 2020-02 Valentina Estates No. 2: 

 Attachment 206:  Conditioned Fees 

 

All of the following conditioned fees are due as applicable, whether or not mentioned directly 

by a condition of approval. 

Refer to Condition G3 / Attachment 201 for a dictionary/glossary, including acronyms and 

shorthand text. 

 

Part A.  Fee Provisions 

1. Any and all conditioned fees are in addition to, and not in place or as discounts of, any 

existing charge or fee however termed ordinarily assessed based on any existing 

ordinance, resolution, or administrative policy, inc. adopted fee schedules.  If and when 

the City amends any ordinance, resolution, or administrative policy, inc. a fee schedule, 

to increase a charge or fee that is both (1) the same kind of charge or fee that is 

conditioned, (2) the amended charge or fee amount would exceed the amount 

conditioned, and (3) the increase takes effect before the conditioned fee is due, then the 

developer shall pay the greater amount.   

2. Payments of conditioned fees shall reference a final decision case file number and the 

condition of approval letter/number designation, be it in a check memo field or through 

a cover or transmittal letter.  For administrative and logistical details of such fee 

payments, the developer is to contact and administrative assistant or similar position in 

either PW or the Community Development Dept. as applicable. 

3. For a development of multiple buildings for which the developer applies for a building 

permit for each, the due date shall apply to issuance of whatever permit is first issued, 

unless a condition of approval as found in a land use final decision document specifies 

later for a given building. 

For all administrative and logistical questions about fee payment, the developer is to contact 

the permit/planning technician at (503) 982-5246 and refer to this attachment within the ANX 

2020-02 Valentina Estates No. 2 final decision. 

For payment method policy details, the developer is to contact the Finance Department at (503) 

982-5222, option zero, for payment method policy details. 

 

158



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 206 

Page 2 of 3 

Part B.  Fee Table 

Table 206B.  Conditioned Fees 

Condition 
Reference 

Fee Type Amount Context Timing Staff 
Tracking: 

G6 through 
this 
Attachment 
206 

Civil engineering plan (CEP) review:  Review by 
Planning Division 
 

$250; $341 CEP.  Original/1st submittal; 
each subsequent inc. 
deferral/piecemeal 
 

Before final plat approval 
by the City 

 

Inspections by Planning Division none; $341 Subdivision public and 
private improvements and 
building permit.  Any 2nd 
inspection or PW 
“walkthrough”; 3rd & each 
subsequent 

Upon inspection request 
or PW “walkthrough” 
invitation to Planning 
Division staff; 

 

V2d Fee for street trees omitted through civil 
engineering plan (CEP) review, or inspection 
missing tree fee 

$950 per tree Applies to omitted street 
trees or ones missing from 
required number 

By building permit 
inspection (of first 
dwelling) 

 

V3 Electric power pole(s) removal and line(s) burial $568 per lineal ft of 
line assessed at 
minimum 56 ft, 
then discounted by 
50%. 

Based on subdivision 
existing conditions Sheet 
C2.0 (May 5, 2021).   
(Anticipated that adjacent 
Brown Street Properties 
subdivision following Pre-
App PRE 21-25 would 
contribute remaining 50%.) 

By building permit 
inspection (of first 
dwelling) 

 

V6 through 
Attachment 
204 

Bond / bonding / performance guarantee:  
construction of public improvements:  
consideration and review of request to bond 

$4,474; $341 Original/1st submittal; each 
subsequent inc. 
deferral/piecemeal 

Were developer to 
request and if City willing 
to consider request 

 

V7 Tree removal:  Significant Trees $185 per tree 
assessed at min 10 
trees except per 
Note 1 at right. 

Per the Planning Division 
Fee Schedule, Tree Credit. 
Applies to Significant Trees 
as WDO 1.02 defines.  Note 
1:  Developer may lessen 
default fee by revising and 
re-submitting subdivision 
existing conditions Sheet 
C2.0 (May 5, 2021; 

Before any site grading 
occurs 
 
(As of October 4, 2021, 
County Assessor aerial 
view ( Attachment 103C) 
shows min 10 larger tree 
canopies on site, and 

 

159



Valentina Estates No. 2 ANX 2020-02, ZC 21-01, SUB 2020-02, & VAR 21-04 Staff Report / Final Decision 
Attachment 206 

Page 3 of 3 

Table 206B.  Conditioned Fees 

Condition 
Reference 

Fee Type Amount Context Timing Staff 
Tracking: 

Attachment 103B) no later 
than per Timing column to 
confirm number and 
locations of existing 
Significant Trees.   

Sheet C2.0 has min 38 
tree circles.) 

V9-T Transit:  Bus $290 per dwelling For City bus transit Building permit issuance 
per each dwelling 

 

 

160



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator __x____ City Attorney __x____ Finance __x___ 

  December 13, 2021 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council  
 
FROM: Scott Derickson, City Administrator 
  
SUBJECT: Severe Weather Center Operation Agreement  
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
  
Consider approval of the attached two-year agreement with A Ray of Hope, 
Today! for Severe Weather Center Program services in exchange for up to $5,000 
in reimbursable funds per year.   
 
SUMMARY: 
 
In recognition of an unmet community need, the City Council approved an 
agreement with Love INC in January 2020 for the formation and operation of a 
Severe Weather Center that that would provide a warm and safe place for 
people to stay when freezing temperatures (or other severe weather conditions) 
posed a threat to those without access to adequate shelter. Earlier discussions 
with community stakeholders, including the Woodburn Fire District, the Planning 
and Building Department, the Woodburn Police Department, Love INC, and the 
City Administrator, resulted in consensus on an agreement that provided for the 
operation of a City-funded Severe Weather Center conditioned on procedures 
intended to minimize risk to volunteers, participants, and the surrounding 
communities. 
 
It is believed that Love INC has not yet activated a Severe Weather Center, 
largely due to challenges resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic and changes in 
their organizational capacity that have occurred since that time. After 
determining that the community need for emergency severe weather shelter still 
exists, staff explored the availability of community resources and determined that 
the program could be effectively managed by the Neighbors Serving Under 
Sheltered Neighbors project, which is operated by A Ray of Hope, Today! The 
proposed agreement has been expanded from the previous version to identify 
the need for indoor shelter when temperatures fall below 37 degrees Fahrenheit 
or exceed 100 degrees Fahrenheit. 
 

161



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
A Ray of Hope, Today! is a North Marion County focused non-profit corporation 
that operates a number of community based programs, including the Ray of 
Hope Thrift Store, Neighbors Serving Under Sheltered Neighbors, Bridge Mentoring, 
and the Area Wide Prayer Initiative. 
 
Some of the agreement’s highlights include:  
 

• The shelter will operate when temperatures are forecast to fall below 37 
degrees during the months of November through March or above 100 
degrees during the months of May through September. Additionally, the 
shelter may also open when other weather conditions that poses a risk to 
life and property, such as strong wind, heavy rain, flooding, or other 
extreme weather are forecast for a period of 24 hours or more, regardless 
of the month.  
 

• A Ray of Hope, Today! shall operate the Severe Weather Shelter program 
at the Neighbors Serving Under Sheltered Neighbors facility located at 1560 
Hardcastle Ave.   
 

• A Ray of Hope, Today! shall provide access to the Center site to the City for 
City Building Official and Woodburn Fire District inspection and approval at 
least 72 hours prior to the site being used for Center services. The site will be 
evaluated for its suitability on the basis of a number of factors, including, 
size, location, available facilities, neighborhood impacts, and fire and life 
safety. 
 

• A Ray of Hope, Today!, through an identified Shelter Coordinator, shall 
monitor weather forecasts and determine if it has facility accommodations 
and volunteers to open the Center when Inclement or life-threatening 
weather is predicted for the Woodburn area. The Shelter Coordinator shall 
activate the Center by notifying 211info and by alerting the City's 
Communications Manager.  

 
• The maximum number of allowable temporary occupants shall be 

calculated using an occupant load factor of one individual for every 100 
square feet of room area available at the Center.  

 
• In providing services under this Agreement, A Ray of Hope Today! must 

permit and allow Center guests to be accompanied by qualified service 
animals.  
 

162



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

• Absolutely no drugs, alcohol, or marijuana are to be consumed or stored at 
the Center by any guests. Additionally, no weapons are to be allowed at 
the Center. A Ray of Hope, Today! will implement a bag search or bag 
storage policy to restrict guests from bringing prohibited items onto Center 
property.  
 

• Unaccompanied minors that present themselves at the Center for services 
shall be referred to law enforcement personnel.  
 

• At a minimum, A Ray of Hope, Today! must provide the following 
employees or volunteers to staff the Center:  
 

 Shelter Coordinator. Person(s) who will act as primary contact for 
all Center activities and operations.  
 

 Shelter Host. Person(s) who will oversee the Center operations and 
act as hosts on day or night shifts, greet guests at the door, and 
provide facility tours. There must be at least one (1) Host on site for 
every ten (10) guests, with no less than two (2) Hosts on site at all 
times. At least one (1) Host must be awake during Center hours 
(hosts may alternate sleep shifts). At least one (1) Host on site must 
also have completed a basic first aid class (e.g. Red Cross) and 
CPR training course (e.g. American Heart Association).  
 

 Logistics Coordinator. Person(s) who will provide services in 
support of the Center operations to include shopping for 
necessities, scheduling transportation, ensuring timely site set-up, 
etc.  

 
 Guest Guidelines. A Ray of Hope, Today! must have clear 

guidelines or a guest agreement contract that clearly states rules 
and expectations for use of Center facilities. Within these 
guidelines there must be outlined clear consequences for failure 
of a guest to abide by the agreement, up to and including 
exclusion from the Center in extreme cases.  

 
 Intake and Guest Sign-In Log. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall establish 

an intake process and maintain a guest log for all overnight stays.  
 

 Operations Guide. A ray of Hope, Today must have clear 
guidelines for all aspects of operations, including set up and use 
of space, check-in procedures for guests, securing of personal 

163



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 

belongings, health and safety issues, caring for person in physical 
or mental distress, and emergency procedures.  

 
 First Aid & Emergency Procedures. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall 

provide and have in effect a First Aid Plan. A Ray of Hope, Today! 
must also document procedures to be followed during an 
emergency and practice responses with Shelter Hosts.  

 
 Social Services Referral Guide. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall have 

onsite at the Center a social services referral and resource guide 
that is available to assist guests in acquiring or identifying 
additional needed services.  

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
If approved by the City Council, the City will reimburse A Ray of Hope, Today! for 
up to $5,000 per year for direct expenses related to the operations of the Severe 
Weather Center.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

164



SEVERE WEATHER CENTER OPERATOR AGREEMENT                     Page 1 of 8 

SEVERE WEATHER CENTER OPERATOR AGREEMENT 
 

THIS Severe Weather Center Operator Agreement (“Agreement”), dated this    day of  
   , 2022, is made and entered into by and between the City of Woodburn, an 
Oregon Municipal Corporation (the “City”), and A Ray of Hope, Today!, an Oregon nonprofit corporation 
(“A Ray of Hope, Today!”) (together the “Parties”). 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

A. The City has identified A Ray of Hope, Today!, a regional nonprofit organization, as an essential 
partner in providing vital services to benefit low- and moderate-income individuals, including 
people living without shelter; 
 

B. The City desires to provide funding to support A Ray of Hope, Today!’s proposal to operate a 
temporary emergency center for individuals during severe weather events; and 
 

C. This Agreement provides for the terms and conditions under which, in exchange for financial 
consideration from the City, A Ray of Hope, Today! shall provide an operate a severe weather 
center; 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1. Severe Weather Center. A Ray of Hope, Today!, in coordination with its community and faith-
based partners, shall operate a Severe Weather Center ("Center") that will provide emergency 
temporary shelter to houseless and unsheltered persons during periods of Inclement and Life-
Threatening Weather. For purposes of this Agreement, those terms are defined as follows: 

 
a. Inclement Weather. Harsh weather that is wet and cold where temperatures reach 37 

degrees Fahrenheit or below during winter months (i.e. November to March). High heat 
weather where temperatures reach 100 degrees Fahrenheit or above during summer 
months (i.e. May –September). 

 
b. Life-Threatening Weather. Weather that poses a risk to life and property that may include a 

special alert forecast predicting strong wind, heavy rain, flooding, or other extreme weather 
for a period of 24 hours or more regardless of the month.  

 
2. Conditions of Operation. 
 

2.1 Site Location. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall operate the Severe Weather Shelter program 
at the Neighbors Serving Under Sheltered Neighbors facility located at 1560 Hardcastle Ave.  At 
least 72 hours prior to its activation, the site location will be evaluated for its suitability on the 
basis of a number of factors, including, size, location, available facilities, neighborhood impacts, 
and fire and life safety per Section 2.4 below. The City reserves the right to conduct a re-
inspection of the site at any time and to deny approval of the site for any reason. 

 

165



SEVERE WEATHER CENTER OPERATOR AGREEMENT                     Page 2 of 8 

2.2 Center Activation. A Ray of Hope, Today!, through an identified Shelter Coordinator, 
shall monitor current and forecast weather conditions and determine if it has facility 
accommodations and volunteers to open the Center when Inclement or Life-Threatening 
Weather is predicted for the Woodburn area. The Shelter Coordinator activates the Center by 
notifying 211info and by contacting the City's Communication's Manager. Activation notices 
should include activation dates/times, shelter capacity information, Center location and 
provider contact information. The City's Communication's Manager will forward notices of 
Center activation to METCOM dispatch, local law enforcement, Woodburn Fire District, and 
other local social service organizations. When the Shelter Coordinator determines that the 
Inclement or Life-Threatening Weather is over and/or does not have facility and staffing to 
support the Center operations, the Shelter Coordinator will deactivate the Center by re-sending 
notice to 211info and the City's Communication's Manager.  

 
2.3 Maximum Occupancy. The maximum number of allowable temporary occupants shall be 
calculated using an occupant load factor of one individual for every 100 square feet of room 
area available at the Center. 
 
2.4 Fire & Life Safety. The City's Building Official and the Woodburn Fire District Fire 
Marshal, or their designee, shall conduct an inspection with the Shelter Coordinator present as 
part of the City's approval of the Center site (per Section 2.1). The inspection shall determine if 
the building or area is appropriate for the Center and identify if any work needs to be completed 
prior to operation.  
 
All sleeping areas at the Center shall be served by an automatic sprinkler system or additional 
fire extinguishers, sized and spaced by Woodburn Fire District, plus smoke alarms or a complete 
smoke detection system. All fire alarm systems, including fire sprinkler systems, must be 
monitored and maintained by an alarm monitoring company, unless an alternative approach is 
approved by the Fire Marshal.  Hallways serving as a means of egress for sleeping rooms shall be 
provided with a working smoke alarm or a smoke detector tied into an alarm system. All other 
areas of a site used for Center activities may be equipped with smoke detectors or smoke alarms 
as prescribed by the Fire Marshal. Smoke detectors or smoke alarms may be battery operated. 
There shall be no smoking or open flames allowed within the building during Center operations.  
 
Ground floor sleeping rooms with less than twenty (20) occupants shall have at least one (1) 
exit. All other sleeping rooms that have an occupant load of ten (10) of more shall have two (2) 
exits from the room, with maximum exit access travel distances of seventy-five (75) feet or less. 
Exit signs shall be fully illuminated at all times. Exit paths shall be unobstructed and exit doors 
maintained to be readily openable.  
 
The Center site shall have an emergency evacuation plan addressing the evacuation of all guests 
and staff in an emergency event. At a minimum, the emergency evacuation plan shall contain 
the following: (i) building floor plans for each floor being used as temporary shelter with the 
sleeping rooms clearly identified; (ii) the square footage of the rooms used as sleeping rooms 
and the use of adjacent rooms; (iii) a plan showing egress from the proposed shelter spaces and 
from the building; and (iv) information regarding fire extinguishers, sprinkler systems, smoke 
detection and/or fire alarm systems, or any other fire and life safety systems in the building.  
 

166



SEVERE WEATHER CENTER OPERATOR AGREEMENT                     Page 3 of 8 

2.5 Days & Hours of Operation. The Center, while activated, shall be open during hours 
consistent with the sheltering needs required by each applicable severe weather event. Guests 
must leave the Center site and surrounding property once the shelter has closed for the day. A 
Ray of Hope, Today! shall be responsible for ensuring that individuals do not loiter or remain at 
the Center once it has closed, unless they are utilizing the facility in a manner that is consistent 
with its normal operations.  
 
2.6 Pets. In providing services under this Agreement, A Ray of Hope, Today! must permit 
and allow Center guests to be accompanied by qualified service animals.  
 
2.7 Drugs, Alcohol, and Weapons. Absolutely no drugs, alcohol, or marijuana are to be 
consumed or stored at the Center by any guests. Additionally, no weapons are to be allowed at 
the Center. A Ray of Hope, Today! will implement a bag search or bag storage policy to restrict 
guests from bringing prohibited items onto Center property.   

 
2.8 Minors. Unaccompanied minors that present themselves at the Center for services shall 
be referred to law enforcement personnel.  
 
2.9 Staffing. At a minimum, A Ray of Hope, Today! must provide the following employees or 
volunteers to staff the Center: 
 

2.9.1 Shelter Coordinator. Person(s) who will act as primary contact for all Center 
activities and operations. The Coordinator will recruit volunteers to work as Shelter 
Hosts and Logistics Coordinators to arrange and provide Center services. The 
Coordinator will prepare and publish activation and deactivation notices and will 
maintain all recordkeeping to include signed guest documents, intake forms, volunteer 
logs, and other necessary documents. The Shelter Coordinator shall also serve as the 
liaison with City of Woodburn officials and emergency personnel.  
 
2.9.2 Shelter Host. Person(s) who will oversee the Center operations and act as hosts 
on day or night shifts, greet guests at the door, and provide facility tours. There must be 
at least one (1) Host on site for every ten (10) guests, with no less than two (2) Hosts on 
site at all times. At least one (1) Host must be awake during Center hours (hosts may 
alternate sleep shifts). At least one (1) Host on site must also have completed a basic 
first aid class (e.g. Red Cross) and CPR training course (e.g. American Heart Association).  

 
2.9.3  Logistics Coordinator. Person(s) who will provide services in support of the 
Center operations to include shopping for necessities, scheduling transportation, 
ensuring timely site set-up, etc.  

 
2.10 Shelter Program Plan Documents. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall ensure that it has the 
following policy documents in place as part of providing services under this Agreement. The City 
may request copies of these documents prior to approving the Center site.  

 
2.10.1  Guest Guidelines. A Ray of Hope, Today! must have clear guidelines or a guest 
agreement contract that clearly states rules and expectations for use of Center facilities. 
Within these guidelines there must be outlined clear consequences for failure of a guest 

167



SEVERE WEATHER CENTER OPERATOR AGREEMENT                     Page 4 of 8 

to abide by the agreement, up to and including exclusion from the Center in extreme 
cases.  

 
2.10.2 Intake and Guest Sign-In Log. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall establish an intake 
process and maintain a guest log for all overnight stays.  

 
2.10.3 Operations Guide. A Ray of Hope, Today! must have clear guidelines for all 
aspects of operations, including set up and use of space, check-in procedures for guests, 
securing of personal belongings, health and safety issues, caring for person in physical or 
mental distress, and emergency procedures.  

 
2.10.4 First Aid & Emergency Procedures. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall provide and have 
in effect a First Aid Plan. A Ray of Hope, Today! must also document procedures to be 
followed during an emergency and practice responses with Shelter Hosts.  

 
2.10.5 Social Services Referral Guide. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall have onsite at the 
Center a social services referral and resource guide that is available to assist guests in 
acquiring or identifying additional needed services.  

 
2.11 Shelter Exclusion. The Shelter Host is responsible for advising guests when they break 
the guest rules and restating the rules for clarity. After a series of warnings determined by 
Center policy, the Shelter Host may exclude a guest if the infraction is of a serious nature to 
cause concern for safety of the individual, other guests, or volunteers. Any violent behavior, 
observed criminal activity, behavior causing a disturbance, or behavior causing volunteers or 
guests to be uncomfortable or fearful for their safety should result in a 911 emergency request 
for police presence.  
 

3. Consideration. The City shall reimburse A Ray of Hope, Today! for direct expenses related to the 
operation of the Shelter.  Allowable expenses include, but are not limited to wages and/ or stipends paid 
to shelter hosts, meals provided to shelter hosts and guests, expenses related to transporting guests to 
the shelter, and other expenses directly related to the operation of the shelter.  Reimbursable expenses 
shall be capped at $5,000 per year.  
 
4. Term & Termination.  

 
4.1 Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement will be for a period of two (2) years. This 
Agreement may be extended with the grant of additional funding upon the mutual written 
agreement of both parties for succeeding one (1) year periods.  
 
4.2 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated as follows: 
 

a. Upon nonrenewal at the end of the Initial Term or a successive renewal term; 
 

b. By mutual consent of both parties; or 
 

c. By either party unilaterally, by giving at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to 
the other party. 

 

168



SEVERE WEATHER CENTER OPERATOR AGREEMENT                     Page 5 of 8 

4.3 Effect of Termination. Should this Agreement be terminated early, A Ray of Hope, 
Today! agrees to provide an accounting of its operating expenses to the City and return to the 
City any unexpended funds remaining.  
 

5. Reporting. By June 30th of each year, A Ray of Hope, Today! shall provide the City with a 
program activity report on Center operations. At a minimum, the report should provide a record of the 
dates/times of Center Activation during the previous winter months, the number of individuals served 
during each activation, and a financial accounting of expenses for Center operations. 
 
6. Fair Housing Act ("FHA"). In providing shelter services, A Ray of Hope, Today! shall be 
responsible for following the federal FHA. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall educate all relevant staff and 
volunteers on FHA requirements and have an internal process in place in case a guest raises a concern 
related to fair housing or files a fair housing complaint.  

 
7. Non-Discrimination. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall provide Center access and services on a basis 
that does not discriminate against any person on the basis of the person’s race, color, sex, sexual 
orientation, religion, ethnicity, national origin, age, disability, familial status, marital status, gender 
identity, source of income, veteran status, or membership in any other protected class under state or 
federal law. 

 
8. Limitation of Liability. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall take all necessary precautions and shall be 
responsible for the safety of its employees, volunteers, agents, and subcontractors in the performance 
of all services provided under this Agreement. The City shall not be liable for injury, damage, or loss 
suffered by A Ray of Hope, Today!, its employees, volunteers, agents, and subcontractors, not caused by 
the negligent or intentional acts of the City, its agents, employees, or contractors. 

 
9. Indemnification. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses 
or suits, including all legal costs and attorney fees, arising out of or in connection with A Ray of Hope, 
Today! performance under this Agreement, except for that portion of the injuries and damages caused 
by the City's negligence. The City's inspection or acceptance of any of A Ray of Hope, Today! work when 
completed shall not be grounds to avoid any of these covenants of indemnification.  

 
10. Insurance. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall ensure that the following insurance is procured and 
maintained for the duration of this Agreement in the types and amounts described as follows: 

 
10.1 Workers' Compensation Insurance. Workers’ Compensation insurance in compliance 
with ORS 656.017, which requires subject employers to provide Oregon workers’ compensation 
coverage for all their subject workers (contractors with one or more employees, and as defined 
by ORS 656.027). 
 
10.2 General Liability Insurance. General Liability Insurance with coverage extended for each 
of the Center sites/facilities with combined single limit, or the equivalent, of no less than 
$1,000,000 each occurrence for Bodily Injury and Property Damage. It shall include contractual 
liability coverage for the indemnity provided under this Contract. It shall provide that the City of 
Woodburn and their divisions, officers and employees are Additional Insureds but only with 
respect to services to be provided under this Agreement. 
 

169



SEVERE WEATHER CENTER OPERATOR AGREEMENT                     Page 6 of 8 

10.3 Automobile Liability Insurance. Automobile Liability Insurance with a combined single 
limit, or the equivalent, of not less than five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) each accident 
for Bodily Injury and Property Damage, including coverage for owned, hired or non-owned 
vehicles, as applicable. 
 
10.4 Notice of cancellation or change. There shall be no cancellation, material change, 
reduction of limits or intent not to renew the insurance coverage(s) without 30 days written 
notice form the A Ray of Hope, Today! or its insurer(s) to the City. 
 
10.5 Certificates of insurance. As evidence of the insurance coverage’s required by this 
Agreement, A Ray of Hope, Today! shall have on file and furnish upon request acceptable 
insurance certificates to the City prior to commencing the work. The certificate will specify all of 
the parties who are Additional Insureds. If requested, complete policy copies shall be provided 
to the City. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall be financially responsible for all pertinent deductibles, 
self-insured retentions and/or self-insurance. 

 
11. Relationship of the Parties. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, or is to be deemed to create 

a partnership or joint venture between the Parties. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall at no time hold 
itself out as a subsidiary or affiliate of the City. Further, nothing contained herein shall be 
deemed or construed by the Parties, nor by any third parties, as creating a relationship between 
the City and any officers, employees, volunteers, suppliers, contractors, or subcontractors used 
by A Ray of Hope, Today! to carry out any activities under this Agreement.  

 
12. Subcontracts and Assignment; Successors and Assigns. 
 

12.1 City has selected A Ray of Hope, Today! based on its reputation and specialized 
expertise. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall not enter into any subcontracts for any of the activities 
required by this Agreement, or assign or transfer any of its interest in this Agreement without 
City’s prior written consent. 
 
12.2 The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of 
the parties hereto, and their respective successors and permitted assigns, if any. 

 
13. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The City and A Ray of Hope, Today! are the only parties to this 
Agreement and are the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is 
intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly, 
indirectly or otherwise, to third persons unless such third persons are individually identified by name 
herein and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of this Agreement. 
 
14. Miscellaneous.  
 

14.1 Compliance with Applicable Law. A Ray of Hope, Today! shall comply with all federal, 
state and local laws, regulations, and ordinances applicable to this Agreement or to A Ray of 
Hope, Today!’s obligations under this Agreement, as those laws, regulations and ordinances may 
be adopted or amended from time to time. 
 

170



SEVERE WEATHER CENTER OPERATOR AGREEMENT                     Page 7 of 8 

14.2 Records. Each Party shall retain all its records relating to this Agreement and activities 
carried out under this Agreement for a period of six years following expiration or termination of 
this Agreement. 
 
14.3 Force Majeure. Neither the City, nor A Ray of Hope, Today! shall be held responsible for 
delay or default caused by fire, riot, acts of God, or war where such cause was beyond the 
reasonable control of the City or A Ray of Hope, Today!, respectively. A Ray of Hope, Today! 
shall, however, make all reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such a cause of delay or 
default and shall, upon the cessation of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its 
obligations under this Agreement. 
 
14.4 Notices. Any notice under this Agreement must be in writing and will be effective when 
actually delivered in person or three (3) days after being deposited in the U.S. mail, registered or 
certified, postage prepaid and addressed to the party at the address stated in this Agreement or 
such other address as either party may designate by written notice to the other. Mailing 
addresses for the parties are as follows: 
 

(a) The City. City Administrator, City of Woodburn, 270 Montgomery Street, 
Woodburn, Oregon 97071. 

 
(b) A Ray of Hope, Today!, President, 10013 Wiseacre Ln, Aurora, OR 97002. 

 
14.5 Severability. The parties agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is 
declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity 
of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the 
parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular term 
or provision held to be invalid. 
 
14.6 Governing Law; Venue; Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by 
and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of 
conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between the City and 
A Ray of Hope, Today! that arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and 
conducted solely and exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County for the State of 
Oregon. A Ray of Hope, Today! hereby agrees to the in personam jurisdiction of such court and 
waives any claims of an inconvenience forum. 
 
14.7 Merger Clause; Waiver. This Agreement and attached exhibits constitute the entire 
agreement between the parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, 
agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. 
No waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either party 
unless in writing and signed by both parties. Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if 
made, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given. The 
failure of the City to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by the 
City of that or any other provision. 

 
The parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the day and year specified above. 
 
 

171



SEVERE WEATHER CENTER OPERATOR AGREEMENT                     Page 8 of 8 

CITY OF WOODBURN,  
an Oregon municipal corporation 
 
 
 
 
       
Scott Derickson, City Administrator 
 
 
  
Date 

A Ray of Hope, Today!, 
an Oregon nonprofit corporation 
 
 
 
 
       
Alesa Hintz, President 
 
 
  
Date 

 
 

172



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator __X____ City Attorney __X____ Finance ___X__ 

    December 13, 2021 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council (acting in its capacity as the 

Local Contract Review Board) through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Chris Kerr, Community Development Director 
 Melissa Gitt, Building Official 
 
SUBJECT: Award a Contract for Professional Plan Review and Inspection 

Services on an As Needed Basis 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Award a Contract for Professional Plan Review and Inspection Services on an As 
Needed Basis to Clair Company, Inc. and authorize the City Administrator to sign 
the Agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Given the historically high rate of industrial, commercial, and residential 
development activity, staff determined that it was necessary to hire an 
independent consultant to provide professional plan review and inspection 
services on an as needed basis.   
 
Staff utilized a Request for Proposals (RFP) process to solicit professional building 
plan review and inspection services, as needed. The RFP was advertised on the 
City website and sent to all approved firms licensed through the State of Oregon, 
Department of Consumer and Business Services, to complete third party plan 
review/ Inspections.  
 
Staff received and reviewed the submitted proposal in accordance with the RFP 
guidelines and State requirements (ORS 279C.105; State procurement of goods 
and services).  The Clair Company, Inc. was selected as the qualified proposer.  
Staff then proceeded to negotiate the scope of work and fees with Clair.  After 
successful negotiations, City staff and Clair Company agreed upon a contract fee 
amount of 75% of the plan review fees collected by the City under the adopted 
fee schedule for building plan review services.  For Inspection services, the hourly 
rate of $75/ hr. for residential and $85/ hr. for commercial inspection services will 

173



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
be applied.  Both plan review and inspection services will be completed in 
accordance with the documented timelines set forth in ORS 455.467. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City is currently experiencing development activity (residential, commercial, 
and industrial) at a historical high rate.  For perspective, in the last 18 months the 
Building Department has issued permits for more than twice as many housing units 
(1,096 units) than were issued during the previous 12 years combined (457 units).  
Based on recent land use approvals and subdivisions that have been recorded, 
Staff believes residential construction will continue at high levels into the short-term 
future.  Additionally, permits were recently issued for the Amazon site, one of the 
State’s largest fulfillment centers, demanding approximately 75% of our 
commercial building inspector’s time.   
 
Contracting some of the overflow of building plan review and inspection services 
out to Clair Company, Inc. will allow City Building and Community Development 
staff to focus on current and ongoing residential, multi-family and commercial 
projects while providing oversight for incoming projects. 
 
The contract award is in conformance with public contracting laws of the State of 
Oregon as outlined in ORS Chapter 279C and the laws, and regulations of the City 
of Woodburn. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Contract for Professional Building Plan Review and Inspection Services with The 
Clair Company, Inc. will be funded from 75% of the plan review fees collected by 
the City and paid by the applicant of the project. 25% of the plan review fees will 
be retained by the City to cover its costs for overseeing the review process. 

174



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator __X____ City Attorney ___X___ Finance _X___ 

        December 13, 2021 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Jamie Johnk, Economic Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: Business Oregon Special Public Works Fund (SPWF) Application – 

Butteville Road Realignment Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize staff to apply for funding through the Business Oregon SPWF program 
for the Butteville Road Realignment Project and authorize the City Administrator 
to sign the application for submission.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City has been working with Business Oregon on a business development 
opportunity to attract Amazon’s new Fulfillment Center to Woodburn’s I-5 
Logistics Center.  Amazon’s new Fulfillment Center (code named “Project 
Basie”) will provide more than 1,000 new year-round, stable jobs with a full 
benefits package (dental, medical, vision, 401k, etc.). These jobs will provide 
workers in the region the opportunity to earn reliable income and build the work 
experience necessary for future career endeavors.  
 
Amazon’s proposed development is located along Butteville Road and OR-214.  
This location has a failing intersection at Butteville and OR-219 and due to the 
sheer size of this proposed development, expanding the capacity of nearby OR-
219 and the re-alignment of Butteville Road is an essential improvement for 
transportation flow and business access for this project.   
 
The City of Woodburn has the opportunity to apply for a Business Oregon SPWF 
grant in order to offset some of the Butteville Road realignment costs.  Business 
Oregon offers communities the opportunity to apply for SPWF funds based on a 
business’s commitment to make investment in Oregon and create new jobs.  
Amazon intends to develop a 3.8 million square foot, $400 million distribution and 
fulfillment center. As well as bring 1,000 to 1,800 jobs with starting wages of $17 
per hour plus a benefits package valued at approximately 20%. 
 

175



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
December 13, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
After consultation with the City, Marion County, and ODOT, Amazon has 
proposed transportation improvements to meet the near-term buildout of the 
company and the long-term growth projections of the larger study area, which 
include: 
• Butteville Road realignment and roundabout intersection with OR-219, close 

the old Butteville Road connection with OR-219.  
• Reconstruct and widen the southern segment of Butteville Road abutting the 

development site. Include a shoulder on the west side, six-foot bike lanes, and 
curb, landscape strip and a six-foot sidewalk on the east side.  

 
Benefits of the proposed transportation improvements include: 
• Improved vehicular and pedestrian safety at an already-problematic 

intersection.  
• Sufficient traffic capacity for the development of this job-creating industrial 

project.  
• Capacity to accommodate future traded-sector development and job 

creation opportunities.  
• Preservation of wetlands along Butteville Road.  
 
The City of Woodburn has prepared the application for a Business Oregon SPWF 
request in the amount of $500,000, with a total cost of $7,937,050.  Remaining 
funds for the project include: ODOT Immediate Opportunity Funds of $1,000,000 
and Amazon investment of $6,437,050. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The City will submit the SPWF funding request of $500,000.  Funds would be 
received by the City and applied towards the construction costs of Butteville 
Road Realignment. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

176



 

 

 

 

 

 

177



 

 

178



Application Supplement 
for Special Public Works Fund 

Development Project 

Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 1 

Applicant: City of Woodburn 

  
Project Name: Butteville Road Realignment 

Section I: Property Acquisition / Ownership / Operation 

A. Is the project a “Development Project” for the acquisition, improvement, 

construction, demolition or redevelopment of municipally owned utilities, 

buildings, land, transportation facilities, or other facilities that assist the 

economic and community development of the municipality? 

 If yes, answer questions B. through E. of this section.  If no, please contact your 

Regional Development Officer. 

 Yes  No 

B.     What is the physical location of the project? 

 450 S. Butteville Road 

  

C. Will the applicant own the facility / improvements once constructed? 

 If no, explain:       

 Yes  No 

D. Will the applicant operate and maintain the facility / improvements once 

constructed? 

 If no, describe:       

 Yes  No 

E. Does the project include any acquisition of real property, including permanent 

easements and rights-of-way, which are directly related to or necessary for the 

project? 

 If yes, describe:       

 Yes  No 

F. Does the project include the purchase of motor vehicle(s)? 

 If yes, describe:       

 Yes  No 

G. Does the project include the purchase of any other equipment which is not 

directly related to or necessary for the project? 

 If yes, describe:       

 Yes  No 

H. Will a private entity or business have a special legal entitlement to the project? 

(e.g., through either a transfer of, or partnership in ownership, a lease, 

management contract, special user rates or development fees, or priority for use) 

 If yes, describe:       

 Yes  No 

 

179



Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 2 

Section II: Project Results 

Please answer each of the following items and provide a brief explanation below for each item marked “Yes.” 

A. Will the project result in direct job creation or retention of permanent 

industrial or commercial jobs within two years of completion of the project? 

 Yes  No 
Skip to 

question B. 

 1. Is the project a “firm business commitment” project in response to a 

specific business development, expansion or retention proposal where 

assistance is necessary to enable the proposal to proceed? 

  If yes, describe: Butteville Road infrastructure improvements/ 
realignment are required in order for the business to locate in the 
Woodburn I-5 Logistics Center site. 

 Yes  No 

 2. Does the “firm business commitment” project include industrial or 

commercial jobs for traded sector businesses, e.g., those selling goods or 

services in markets for which national or international competition exists? 

  If yes, describe: The company proposes to create 1000 to 1800 new jobs 
in the warehouse/distribution sector.  

 Yes  No 

 3. Will the identified business be relocating from another part of the state? 

  If yes, describe:       

 Yes  No 

B. Will the project result in business growth or expansion that would not occur in 

Oregon without an investment from the Special Public Works Fund? 

 If yes, describe: Butteville Road infrastructure improvements/realignment 
are required in order for the business to locate in the Woodburn and 
create the proposed jobs. 

 Yes  No 

C. Will the project include improvement, expansion or new construction of 

infrastructure systems necessary to maintain usable industrial and 

commercial lands? 

 If yes, explain: The project will redesign and realign Butteville Road 
including new infrastructure, street, curbs, sidewalks, storm, etc.  

 Yes  No 

D. Will the project support future industrial growth and commercial enterprise to 

create or retain employment opportunities with buildings, land or other 

facilities? 

 If yes, explain: The realignment of Butteville Road and its connectivity to 
the round about on OR 219 has been designed to accommodate current and 
future industrial development as well as to service the continued needs of 
the agricutltural and commuter transportation needs. 

 Yes  No 

180



Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 3 

E. Is the project necessary to encourage economic revitalization in an urban or 

rural area where economic growth is prevented by existing conditions, such as 

an absence of community facilities, developable industrial or commercial land, 

or lack of capacity in infrastructure systems? 

 If yes, explain: The existing OR219 and Butteville Road intersection would 
not accommodate increased traffic as a result of development.  In order to 
bolster economic growth and job creation in the region, the redesign and 
realignment of the Butteville Road and OR 219 was essential for the current 
Amazon project as well as future traded sector development within the 
region. 

 Yes  No 

F. Will the project promote or contribute to the economic and community 

development goals of the municipality? 

 If yes, explain: This project directly supports the City's goals of promoting 
economic development through investment and job creation. 

 Yes  No 

G. Will the project provide the local match for an emergency project receiving 

federal disaster relief? 

If yes, briefly describe the emergency project activities:        

          

Note: Attach copies of the FEMA approved “Project Worksheets” as 

Attachment Q. 

 Yes  No 

H. Will the project result in the restoration, rehabilitation or new construction of 

essential community facilities that provide support services to public health 

and safety, including but limited to police and fire protection, medical 

treatment, public utilities, transportation and auxiliary shelter facilities? 

 If yes, explain:       

 Yes  No 

I. Is the project one of the special types of development projects listed in 

OAR 123-042-0038 - land acquisition only; a privately owned railroad; 

telecommunication system; energy system; marine facility; or a utility system 

connected to another municipality’s utility system? 

 If yes, explain:       

 Yes  No 

 
Section III: Additional Project Information 

A. What is the estimated useful life of the improvements included in the project? 

 20 Years 

  

181



Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 4 

B. Is there documentation of substantial local commitment to the project’s success? 

 If yes, describe (public hearings held; project is included entity’s adopted 

budget, CIP, master plan; private partnership or foundations are involved in 

funding project, et cetera): 

 The City, Marion County and ODOT completed an OR219 and Butteville Road 
Design Concepts Conclusions and Recommendation Report (2/2021) where 
the interesction was analyzed and traffice management designs were 
considered in order to determine short- and long-term improvements.  The 
findings from this Report were included in recent updates to the City's 
Transportation System Plan.  In addition, the City has facilitated and 
participated in numerous meetings and dicussions regarding the OR219 and 
Butteville Road improvements with Marion County and ODOT 
representatives.  City staff and Amazon has held public hearings regarding 
the development of the fulfilllment center at the Woodburn location, as well 
as the realignment of Butteville Road and the OR219 round-about. 

 Yes  No 

C. Please list the permits and regulatory authorizations needed for the project to be 

ready to proceed with construction and indicate whether they have been 

obtained or not. 

  

Permit Type Review Agency Status of Approval 
If pending, anticipated 

approval date 

             Obtained  Pending       

             Obtained  Pending       

             Obtained  Pending       

             Obtained  Pending       

 
For Drinking Water System Improvement Projects Only 

D. Water system identification number:       
 

  

E. Are all service connections to your drinking water system metered?  Yes  No 

 If yes, skip to question “F” below. 

If no, has a plan been adopted to install the meters?  Yes  No 

F. If a plan has been adopted, describe: 

       

  

 
Section IV: Financial Information 

A. Are user rates for the project-funded utility system(s) expected to change in the 

next five years? 

 If yes, describe:       

 Yes  No 

182



Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 5 

B. What sources of revenue are being pledged to repay a loan? 

       

  

C. Is other debt serviced or secured by those revenues?  Yes  No 

 If yes, is the other debt described in the applicant’s audit reports?  Yes  No 

 If the other debt is not described in the audit report, refer to the specific 

authorization, such as an ordinance or resolution.  List below and attach a copy 

as Attachment N.  

  

Lender Amount of Note Year Incurred 

                  

                  

                  

D. Has the applicant ever defaulted on a debt?  Yes  No 

 If yes, provide a complete summary of the circumstances related to the default: 

      

  

E. Is there actual/pending litigation that could impair the applicant’s ability to 

repay debt? 

 If yes, describe:       

 Yes  No 

 
Section V: Budget Information 

A. Does the project budget (as included on the General Application) propose direct 

project management expenses? 

 (Direct project management is defined as expenses that will be incurred that are 

directly related to and necessary solely to support or manage project activities 

and are not routine or ongoing expenses of the municipality or expenses for 

current staff that are already included in the municipality’s adopted budget. ) 

 If yes, describe how the direct project management services will be provided: 

       

 Yes  No 

B. A current engineer’s cost estimate must be included as Attachment U. Who 

prepared the cost estimates for the project? 

         Note: To be considered current, the cost estimate must have been completed 

within the past 6 months. 

 Name: Matt Hughart 
 Title: Principal Planner 
 Company: Kittleson & Associates 

 Phone Number: 503-535-7425 

 Date of project cost estimate: Oct 27, 2021 
 

  

183



Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 6 

C. Will reimbursement be requested from the IFA for any directly related project 

expenses that have been, or will be, incurred prior to an award? 

 If yes, identify and describe the amount and type of pre-award expenses below: 

 

Note: Pre-award expenses must be included as a separate line-item in the 

project budget in the General Application Form.  

 

 Yes  No 

 1. Preliminary design or engineering incurred within the past 12 months? 

  If yes, describe:       

 Yes  No 

 2. Construction activities, including land acquisition, site preparation, 

mobilization and similar costs incident to commencement of construction? 

  If yes, describe:       

 Yes  No 

 3. Other activities necessary to allow the project to proceed? 

  If yes, describe:       

 Yes  No 

 4. Are pre-award expenses less than 20% of the total cost of the project? 

  If no, describe:       

 Yes  No 

   

184



Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 7 

Attachments 

 Attachment Description 
For IFA Use 

(X Attached?) 

Required 
with all 

applications 

A 
Documentation from the appropriate entity (city or county planning 
department) that indicates that the project is consistent with the 
acknowledged local comprehensive plan. 

 

B 
Map(s) showing the location of the project, including tax lots / parcels and 
road widths, etc. 

 

C 

The preliminary architectural / engineering / planning work or study 
conducted to determine the feasibility of the proposed building, utility 
system or other improvements. The documents must be certified by a 
professional architect / registered engineer licensed in Oregon. 

 

D Applicant’s adopted budget.  

E 
Applicant’s last three audit reports (if not available at  the Secretary of 

State website: http://www.sos.state.or.us) 
 

F 

List the ten largest property tax payers in the applicant’s jurisdiction, their 
type of business, local taxes and current assessed value. If net revenues 
from your drinking water and/or sewer system will be pledged to repay the 
loan, also complete the “Summary of Users, Consumption and Rates” and 
“System’s Ten Largest Customers” tables for the applicable system(s) (see 
Attachment F). 

 

G 

A Schedule of Pro Forma Revenues and Expenditures for the applicable 
fund(s) that will be pledged to repay the loan for each of the next five years 
and any underlying assumptions used in the Applicant’s adopted budget 
(see Attachment G). 

 

U Current engineer’s cost estimate (see Section 5 B).  

Check If 
Applicable 

 
Check box at left and include any of the following attachments 

that are applicable to the project proposal 
 

 H 
If the project is for improvement or expansion of a drinking water and/or 
sewer system, submit a copy of the Water System Master Plan or 
Wastewater Facilities Plan for the system(s). 

 

 I 
If the project is for improvement or expansion of a drinking water system 
and/or sewer system, attach a copy of the current rate schedule, including 
rates for System Development Charges (SDCs). 

 

 J 
If the project is for improvement or expansion of a drinking water and/or 
sewer system, attach a copy of the most recent resolution or ordinance 
that adopts the current rate schedule. 

 

 K 
If the project overlaps municipal boundaries, attach an executed copy of an 
intergovernmental cooperation agreement that sets out the duties and 
obligations of each entity. 

 

 L 
If project includes a firm business commitment where permanent jobs will 
be created or retained, submit the “Job Creation and Retention and 
Average Wages” form completed by the business (see Attachment L). 

 

 M If available, the plans and specifications for the project.  

185

http://www.sos.state.or.us/


Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 8 

 N 
Copies of all ordinances/resolutions that authorize debt that is supported 
by the source of repayment for this financing (refer to the Section IV: 
Financial Information, Item B.).  

 

 O 
If the applicant will own the facility and another entity will operate the 
facility, attach an executed copy of the operating agreement between the 
parties. 

 

 P 
If the project is for downtown revitalization, attach a copy of the 
downtown revitalization plan. 

 

 Q 
If the project is an emergency project with the commitment of federal 
disaster relief assistance, attach a copy of the FEMA approved “Project 
Worksheet(s)” that are the basis for this funding request. 

 

If a Telecommunications Project  

 R 

If the project is for telecommunications infrastructure, attach a resolution 
that includes findings and states that project is necessary and would not 
otherwise be provided by a for-profit entity within a reasonable time/for a 
reasonable cost. 

 

 S 
If the project is for telecommunications infrastructure, attach a copy of the 
notice and minutes of the public hearing at which the above resolution was 
adopted. 

 

If a grant is likely and it is possible the grant could exceed the property value  

 T 

One of the following: 

1) real market value (obtained from the county tax assessor) of the 
property and improvements that will be put on the tax assessment roll, 
after the project improvements have been completed; or 

2) an appraisal (conducted by an independent appraiser) of the future fair 
market value of the subject property after the project improvements have 
been completed. 

 

186



Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 9 

Attachment F 

Information for the following tables should be the most current available and may be found from these sources: 
Ten largest taxpayers: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), County Assessor, Financial Audit Report 

Summary of users: billing records 

Populations served: your system’s service area information; 2010 Census, Portland State University 

System’s ten largest customers: billing records 

Ten Largest Property Taxpayers (in applicant’s jurisdiction) 

Taxpayer Type of Business Total Taxes Current Assessed Value 

WINCO Foods Distribution/Warehousing $1,396,858 $74,842,198 

Woodburn Premium Outlets Commercial/Retail $1,364,051 $70,264,829 

Food Services of America Food Warehousing/Distribution $545,012 $29,901,360 

Hardware Wholesalers/Do It Best Distribution/Warehousing $339,399 $17,068,670 

Wal-Mart Commercial/Retail $333,956 $17,791,840 

Cascade Meadow LLC Residential Care $292,347 $14,702,400 

Portland General Electric Utility Provider $283,958 $15,572,783 

Crown 2 Development LLC Residential Care $261,371 $13,144,580 

Northwest Natural Gas Utility Provider $237,444 $13,028,000 

Pacific Realty Associates LP Business Center $210,987 $10,637,480 
 

If Water or Sewer Project, also Complete These Tables 

Summary of Users, Consumption and Populations Served 

 Connections Equivalent Dwelling Units** 
Annual Water Consumption 

(in gallons) 

User Current Future* Current Future Current 

Residential                               

Commercial                               

Industrial                               

Other                               

Totals 0 0 0 0 0 

*20-year project life **1 EDU = 7,500 gallons of water consumption per month per residential user 

Populations Served 

 All Residents Permanent Residents* 
*Excludes transient and 
part-time residents 

Number served by system             

Number served by this project             

System’s 10 Largest Customers 

Customer 
Annual Water 
Consumption 

(in gallons) 

% Total Water 
Consumption for 

System 

Annual Revenue 
Received by 

System 

% Total Annual 
Revenue Received by 

System 

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              
 

187

http://pdx.edu/prc/census-2010-data-for-oregon


Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 10 

 Schedule of Pro Forma Revenues and Expenditures Attachment G 

 Pro Forma Current FY       

1 Year (ending June 30) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Please contact your RDO if you have questions 
completing this form. 2 Beginning Fund Balance 0 2,204,736 0 0 0 0 

 Operating Revenues       Primary revenue source (e.g., user charges). 
Include, on lines 4 or 5, revenues such as taxes, 
hook-up fees and rent/lease income. Do not 
include interest, SDCs, etc., in this section; rather, 
enter these revenues on line 15. 

3 Primary Revenue Source 6,437,050                               

4 Other Revenue Source 1 500,000                               

5 Other Revenue Source 2 1,000,000                               

 Total Operating Revenues 7,937,050 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Operation, Maintenance & 

Replacement (OM&R) Expenses 
      

Include short-lived asset replacement with a 
useful life of 15 years or less. Do not include 
capital outlay, transfers, depreciation, etc; rather, 
enter these revenues to lines 12–17. 

6 Personal Services                                     

7 Materials & Services                                     

8 Other Operating Expenses 5,732,314 2,204,736                         

 Total Operating Expenses 5,732,314 2,204,736 0 0 0 0 

 Debt Services       

Enter and specify annual debt service amounts for 
existing and proposed debt support by this fund, 
including any proposed non-IFA debt for this 
project, e.g., USDA, DEQ, etc. 

 Funds Avail for Debt Service 2,204,736 (2,204,736) 0 0 0 0 

9 Existing Debt 1                                     

10 Existing Debt 2                                     

11 Other Proposed Debt                                     

 Total Debt Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Other Activities       
Anticipated drawdown schedule for requested 
loans. Include capital outlay in brackets (negative 
amount) for this project. Anticipated 
contributions for system replacement. Asset 
sales, SDCs, interest income (specify†). 

 Cash Avail After Debt Service 2,204,736 (2,204,736) 0 0 0 0 

12 Loan Proceeds / Drawdowns                                     

13 Capital Outlay                                     

14 System Replacement Reserves                                     

15 Other Non-Operating Activity                                     

 Net Other Activity 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Include transfers to reserve accounts (specify†). 
Explain any adjustments 

16 Net Transfers IN (OUT)                                     
17 Adjustments                                     

 Net Transfers & Adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 0  

 Ending Fund Balance 2,204,736 0 0 0 0 0  

18 Connections                                      

19 EDUs                                      

20 Monthly Rate per EDU                                      

†Describe any assumptions used in calculating above figures, such as changes in user rates, EDU/connection growth, loan repayments, operating expenses, transfers, 
adjustments:       

188



Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 11 

 Job Creation / Retention and Average Wages Attachment L 

Business Name & Address of Project Business Site:  Contact Person: 

(street address, city, zip code):  Name: Stephen Maduli-Williams 

Amazon  
450 S Butteville Road 
Woodburn, OR  97071 

 Title: 

Manager, Economic 
Development 

 Phone Number: 415-230-9788 

Federal Tax Identification Number (EIN):  91-1646860 

Oregon Business Identification Number (BIN):  1632496-92 

Product(s) produced: Fulfillment Center 

 

A. Current number of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) jobs:  

 1. Total number of Hours Worked* to Employees** during the previous 12 

months: 0.00 

  Divided by 1,820 hours per year = Current FTE = 0.00 

 2. Of the current FTE, how many do you estimate would no longer exist if the 

proposed project is not completed?       

 3. By what date do you estimate the FTE jobs in 2. (above) would no longer 

exist if the proposed project is not completed?       

 4. What 12-month period was used for 1. (above)?       to       

* “Hours worked” for an hourly Employee means all hours the Employee performed work on the job.  It does 
not include sick leave, vacation time or other paid time where no work is performed.  This definition was 
developed to be consistent with the data collected by the Oregon Employment Department for the Oregon 
Quarterly Reports and Form 132 (for Unemployment Insurance Tax).  The 1820 figure represents 35 hours per 
week and was developed in coordination with the Oregon Employment Department.  The 1820 figure assumes 
6.5 weeks (260 hours) of paid and unpaid leave each year out of a total 2080 hours (40 hours x 52 weeks) per 
year.  The 6.5 weeks of paid and unpaid leave consists of: 2.5 weeks of vacation, 1.5 weeks of sick leave, 1.5 
weeks of holidays and 1 week of other leave (such as family leave).  All jobs that are covered under 
unemployment compensation shall be counted.  Contract labor also may be included if the jobs are expected 
to be permanent, but hired though a third party contract agency. 

** “Employee” means: 
A. A person who is paid through a business’s normal payroll system; 
B. A person for whom FICA and state and federal income taxes are deducted from gross wages, which are 

then forwarded to the appropriate agencies by the business on behalf of the person; 
C. A person for whom the business pays state and federal unemployment insurance; and 
D. A person for whom the business contributes to FICA. 

An exception to the above is allowed if the business uses a leasing agent for its Employees and the terms of 
the leasing agreement are such that hiring decisions are made by the business and for all intents and purposes 
the “Employees” are working for the business.  The fees paid by the business to the leasing agent should not 
be considered as part of the Employees’ salary / wages. 

An “Employee” is not: 
A. A person hired through a temporary agency; or 
B. A person acting as an independent contractor. 

189



Revised September 2021 

SPWF Development Project Application Supplement Page 12 

B. Average annual wage of current FTE jobs:  

 1. Total wages / salaries paid to Employee during previous 12 months:       

  Total number of Hours Worked* to Employees** during the previous 12 

months:       

  Divided by 1,820 hours per year = Current FTE = 0.00 

  Wage divided by current FTE =       
 

C. Estimated number of new FTE job that will be created as a result of this 

project by the end of the second year after beginning operations:  

(These jobs must then be maintained for a minimum of four consecutive 

calendar quarters.) 1000.00 

 1. Estimated date operations resulting from the proposed project will begin: May 1, 2023 

 2. Estimated annual average wage of these new FTE jobs: $37,440.00 

 3. How many new FTE jobs do you estimate will be created as a result of this 

project by the end of the fifth year after beginning operations? 1500.00 
 

D. First Source Hiring Agreement   

 1. I acknowledge that execution of a First Source Hiring Agreement between 

this business and a publicly funded job training provider will be a condition 

of the potential funding award the municipality is applying for. 

 Yes  No 

I certify and affirm that all statements and information contained herein are true and complete to 

the best of my knowledge. 

   

Business Representative / Preparer’s Signature   

             

Typed Name and Title  Date 
 

For IFA Use Only 

Does this business already exist in Oregon?  Yes  No 

If yes, has program staff requested a report from the Employment Department for the 

previous four quarters to establish the business’s Base FTE Jobs?  Yes  No 

If no, list other documentation that will be used to establish Base FTE Jobs, or provide the date when a 

report from the Employment Department will be requested. 

      

        

Signature of Project Coordinator  Date 
 

190



 

191



 

 

 

192



 
Figure 3: Proposed Redesign 

193



General Application 
775 Summer St NE, Suite 200 

Salem, OR 97301-1280 

General Application • Rev 02-2017 Page 1 

 

Applicant 

 

City of Woodburn          93-6002282 

Name  Federal Tax ID Number 

270 Montgomery Street, Woodburn OR 97071        

Street Address  Mailing Address 

Organization Type: 

 City  County  Special District under 

ORS       

 Port District under 

ORS       

 Tribe 

 

Jamie Johnk  Economic Development Director 

Contact Name 

(Person we should contact with project questions) 

 Title 

503-980-6319         jamie.johnk@ci.woodburn.or.us 

Phone Number  Fax Number  Email Address 

Representation (Information may be found at www.leg.state.or.us/findlegsltr ) 

11  Peter Courtney 

Senate District Number  Senator’s Name 

22  Teresa Alonso-Leon 

House District Number  Representative’s Name 

 

Project Information 

Butteville Road Realignmenet 

Project Name:  (e.g., Stayton Water System Improvements) 

 

Opportunity/Problem 

Briefly describe the opportunity or problem facing the applicant: 

194

http://www.leg.state.or.us/findlegsltr


General Application • Rev 02-2017 Page 2 

Business Oregon has been working with the City of Woodburn on a business development 
opportunity to attract Amazon’s new Fulfillment Center to Woodburn’s I-5 Logistics Center.  
Amazon’s new Fulfillment Center (code named “Project Basie”) will provide more than 1,000 new 
year-round, stable jobs with a full benefits package (dental, medical, vision, 401k, etc.). These jobs 
will provide workers in the region the opportunity to earn reliable income and build the work 
experience necessary for future career endeavors.  
 
Woodburn is a diverse, growing, rural community of 26,000 that has struggled to create new 
employment opportunities. The largest employment sector in the region is agriculture, which 
provides seasonal employment at low wages. Woodburn’s poverty rate of 18% is significantly 
higher than the state average of 11%.  Woodburn is far more racially and ethnically diverse than 
Oregon as a whole, and we expect that this project should result in increased employment 
opportunities for immigrants and people of color.  Amazon has committed to significant public 
benefit and equity actions, including its “career choice” program that pays up to $6,000 per year of 
employees’ educational expenses with no obligation to remain at Amazon.  
 
Amazon will forego Enterprise Zone tax benefits on its proposed 3.8 million square foot facility 
even though this site was within the Woodburn Enterprise Zone when Amazon chose it. This will 
result in significant, sustained property tax revenue increases for Marion County and the city of 
Woodburn, which the city intends to use to strengthen city government and improve service 
delivery in this diverse city.  
 
The I-5 Logistics Center and Amazon’s proposed development are located along Butteville Road 
and OR 214.  This location has a failing intersection at Butteville and OR-219 and due to the sheer 
size of this proposed development, expanding the capacity of nearby OR-219 and the re-alignment 
of Butteville Road is an essential improvement for transportation flow and business access for this 
project.   

195



General Application • Rev 02-2017 Page 3 

Response to Opportunity/Problem 

Briefly describe the major alternatives considered to address this opportunity or problem: 

 
The Woodburn I-5 Logistics Center is 108 acres of vacant greenfield land designated for industrial 
development and ideal for transportation, warehousing, and logistics.  The City of Woodburn has 
made significant investment in preparing this area for development, including extension of a 12” 
water line and a 15” sewer line to the Amazon site.  Amazon intends to develop a 3.8 million 
square foot, $400 million distribution and fulfillment center. Grading preparatory to construction 
began in July 2021 with a goal of being operational by Q2 2023. Amazon states that this project 
will bring 1,000 to 1,800 jobs with starting wages of $17 per hour plus a benefits package valued 
at approximately 20%.  
 
The OR-219 and Butteville Road intersection is problematic at current traffic levels. Four injury 
crashes have occurred at this intersection in recent years. Development contractor Kittleson and 
Associates prepared a Traffic Impact Analysis estimating an additional 3,628 vehicles will pass 
through the intersection daily due to the new project, representing a 38% increase over the 
baseline of 9,600 vehicles/day.  
 
Project Amazon will operate its new facility 24 hours/day, significantly increasing both truck and 
passenger car volume. Amazon expects to operate two shifts of up to 937 people, meaning that 
much of the new traffic volume will consist of employees arriving and departing. Amazon has 
committed to implementing various Transportation Demand Management measures, including 
close coordination with Woodburn Premium Outlets (one of Oregon’s top tourist destinations) 
during the Christmas shopping season. However, demand management alone will not solve the 
throughput problems at the intersection of OR-219 and Butteville Road. This intersection cannot 
support an Amazon site without significant improvement.  
 

Detailed Project Description 

 Clearly describe the proposed project work to be accomplished: 

After consultation with the city, Marion County, and ODOT, Amazon has proposed transportation 
improvements to meet the near-term buildout company and the long-term growth projections of 
the larger study area, which include: 
 
     • Butteville Road realignment and roundabout intersection with OR 219, close the old Butteville 
        Road connection with OR 219.  
     • Reconstruct and widen the southern segment of Butteville Road abutting the development 
        site. Include a shoulder on the west side, six-foot bike lanes, and curb, landscape strip and a  
        six-foot sidewalk on the east side.  
 
Benefits of the proposed transportation improvements include: 
  
     • Improved vehicular and pedestrian safety at an already-problematic intersection.  
     • Sufficient traffic capacity for the development of this job-creating industrial project.  
     • Capacity to accommodate future traded-sector development and job creation opportunities.  
     • Preservation of wetlands along Butteville Road.  
 

196



General Application • Rev 02-2017 Page 4 

Project Work Plan 

List project activity milestones with estimated start and completion dates. Identify estimated date of first cash draw: 

Activity 
Estimated Date 

Start Completion 

Construction of Butteville Road Realignment May 1, 2022 Oct 31, 2022 

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

 

Estimated First Draw Date:   Jun 30, 2022 

197



General Application • Rev 02-2017 Page 5 

Project Budget 

List individual project budget line items with requested budgeted amounts by IFA and non-IFA funding sources. 

Change budget column labels to identify the specific requested IFA funding sources. Non-IFA sources are those 

funds other than those requested from IFA. 

 

Please be aware that the award loan amount will be subject to a less than 1% issuance fee if the loan is 

included in the Oregon Bond Bank.  Please contact Business Oregon for additional information. 

 

Budget Line Item IFA Funding Non-IFA  

(Adjust budget items to suit the project) 

Below are general items most used 
Source 1 Source 2 Funds Total 

Engineering/Architecture $0 $0 $0 $0 

Construction 500,000       7,437,050 7,937,050 

Construction Contingency                   0 

Land Acquisition                   0 

Legal                   0 

Construction Management                   0 

Other                         0 

Other (Specify)                   0 

Other (Specify)                   0 

Other (Specify)                   0 

Totals 500,000 0 7,437,050 7,937,050 

Details of Non-IFA Funds 

Source of Non-IFA Funds 

 
Amount 

Status: 

C-Committed,  

A-Application  

S-Submitted,  

AI-Application Invited, 

PS-Potential Source 

Dates 

Required  

Funds will be  

Committed 

and Available 

Amazon $6,437,050 C       

ODOT IOF 1,000,000 P 1-Jan-22 

                        

                        

                        

Totals 7,437,050   

 

If “Non-IFA funds” include USDA Rural Development funding that will require interim financing, please 

indicate the source of the interim financing. N/A 

198



General Application • Rev 02-2017 Page 6 

General Certification 

I certify to the best of my knowledge all information, contained in this document and any attached supplements, is valid 

and accurate. I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge: 

1. The application has been approved by the governing body or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body's 

lawful process, and 

2. Signature authority is verified. 

Check one: 

 Yes, I am the highest elected official. (e.g., Mayor, Chair or President) 

 No, I am not the highest elected official so I have attached documentation that verifies my authority to sign on 

behalf of the applicant. (Document such as charter, resolution, ordinance or governing body meeting minutes 

must be attached.) 

The department will only accept applications with proper signature authority documentation. 

 

 

      

Signature  Date 

Eric Swenson  Mayor 

Printed Name  Printed Title 

FOR BUSINESS OREGON USE ONLY 

      

 

      

Concept Number  Intake Approval Date 

Project Type: 

 Planning 

 Design 

 Construction 

 Design & Construction 

 Other:       

 

199


	Reappointments 12-13-21
	Anabel Hernandez-Mejia-- Application_for_commission_committee_board_member_0
	November 8, 2021
	Council Executive Session Minute  November 8, 2021
	November 18, 2021 special
	Council Executive Session Minute  November 18, 2021
	School Easements
	Agenda Item - Heritage PUE Easement
	ATTACHMENTS

	Heritage School Easement Dedication
	Agenda Item - Heritage RW Dedication
	ATTACHMENTS

	Heritage School RW Dedication
	Agenda Item - Lincoln - PUE Easements
	ATTACHMENTS

	Lincoln School PUE Dedications
	Agenda Item - Lincoln Right-of-Way Dedication
	ATTACHMENTS

	Lincoln School RW Dedication

	Eastside Apartments EASEMENT
	Agenda Item - Eastside Apts - PUE Easements
	ATTACHMENTS

	Woodburn East Apart. Easements for Council

	Opioid Litigation Global Settlement Authorization Staff Report_12.06.21
	SR - 2nd AMENDMENT TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
	2nd AMENDMENT TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
	MOU with LCD
	2021 Staff Repot.IGA.MJNHMP
	MOU.Dept of Land Conservation and Development

	Hubbard Agreement Firearms range use
	Staff Report.Hubbard Range Agreement
	Proposed Hubbard PD Range Agreement
	Intergovernmental Agreement for Police Firearms Range Usage
	RECITALS
	1. By the authority granted in ORS Chapter 190, incorporated cities may enter into agreements with other Law Enforcement agencies for the performance of any of the functions and activities that they have the legal authority to perform.
	TERM
	LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY
	COMMUNICATION AND NOTICE

	AMENDMENTS
	Agreement represents the complete and integrated agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.  As such, this Agreement cancels and supersedes all prior ...




	1560 W Hayes ROW PUE
	Agenda Item - Smith Creek 3B RW and PUE Dedication
	Attachments

	Exhibit P - Supplemental - Section and Detail
	ROW Dedication Church Exhibit SIGNED
	ROW Dedication Deed Form
	PUE Church Ex - Signed
	PUE-TP FORM - Corporate

	CIS Settlement Staff Report (003)
	memo - 2021-11 November
	270 Montgomery Street        Woodburn, Oregon 97071          (503) 982-5246

	Annexation
	0 CC 2021-12-13 agenda item cover staff report ANX 2020-02 draft 1 post-CK
	1 ANX 2020-02 Staff report PC Valentina Estates No 2 fin w attachs
	ANX 2020-02 Staff report PC Valentina Estates No 2 fin
	Issue before the Planning Commission
	Executive Summary
	Recommendation
	Conditions of Approval
	Actions
	Attachment List
	Attach 101 Tax Map 051W18C
	Attach 102 Analyses and Findings
	Project Name & Case File Numbers
	Location
	Land Use & Zoning
	Statutory Dates
	Annexation Provisions
	Zoning Map Change Provisions
	Subdivision Preliminary Approval Provisions
	Variance Provisions
	Remaining Provisions
	Recommended Conditions of Approval
	Applicant Identity
	Notes to the Applicant

	Attach 102A Public Works comments
	Public Works Land Use Conditions
	VALENTINA ESTATES PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION
	ANX 2020-02 & SUB 2020-02

	Attach 103A Annexation Service Provider Letters (SPLs)
	Attach 103B Site plan existing site conditions Sheet C2.0 (dated May 4, 2021; submitted May 5, 2021)
	Attach 103C Marion County Assessor’s Office aerial view of tree canopies (Oct. 6, 2021)
	Attach 103D Site plan Sheet C1.0 (dated July 23, 2021; submitted July 26, 2021)
	Attach 104 Transportation System Plan (TSP) Fig. 2 “Functional Roadway Classification” [2019]
	ANX20-02 201 - Dictionary and Glossary
	ANX20-02 202 - Administration Provisions
	ANX20-02 203 - Civil Engineering Plan (CEP) Review Provisions
	ANX20-02 204 - Performance Guarantee / Bond / Bonding Provisions
	ANX20-02 206 - Conditioned Fees

	Severe Weather Center Operation Agreement



	Council memo as needed Clair contract
	Staff Report - SPWF Application Butteville Road Realignment -December 13, 2021
	butteville widening attachments
	Butteville Road Estimate
	City of Woodburn SPWF Application (3)
	Project Location Maps
	Proposed Realignment
	Woodburn General Application - SPWF

	ADP7431.tmp
	FROM: Scott Derickson, City Administrator
	URECOMMENDATIONU:
	USUMMARYU:
	In recognition of an unmet community need, the City Council approved an agreement with Love INC in January 2020 for the formation and operation of a Severe Weather Center that that would provide a warm and safe place for people to stay when freezing t...
	It is believed that Love INC has not yet activated a Severe Weather Center, largely due to challenges resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic and changes in their organizational capacity that have occurred since that time. After determining that the comm...
	A Ray of Hope, Today! is a North Marion County focused non-profit corporation that operates a number of community based programs, including the Ray of Hope Thrift Store, Neighbors Serving Under Sheltered Neighbors, Bridge Mentoring, and the Area Wide ...
	UFINANCIAL IMPACTU:
	If approved by the City Council, the City will reimburse A Ray of Hope, Today! for up to $5,000 per year for direct expenses related to the operations of the Severe Weather Center.




